
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
MARCH 19, 2007 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting 
should contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days 
in advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
I. Enhance the livability and safety of the community  
II. Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and effectiveness of        

City government 
III. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment 
IV. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally 
V. Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing public 

needs 
VI. Emphasize regionalism and incorporate creativity into the annual 

strategic planning process 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

March 19, 2007 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 
  

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Tony Boos – Faith Lutheran 
Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations: 1 

a) Oakland County Fire Prevention Association – Presentation of Fire Inspectors 
of the Year Award to Lt. Robert Matlick and Lt. Rodney Bovensiep ..................... 1 

b) Presentation to Troy Community Coalition – Parenting Awareness Month – 
March, 2007.......................................................................................................... 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-725) – Proposed Office Building, East of 
Livernois, South Side of Wattles, Section 22 – R-1C to O-1 1 

C-2 Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 189) – A Section of Alley, West of 
Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, abutting Lots 5-13 and 54 of Troy 
Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3 2 

NOTICE:  Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should contact 
the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us at least two working days in advance of the 
meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 



 

 

C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Articles IV and 
XXXV – Planned Unit Development Provisions 2 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

D-1 Proposed Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease 
in Cost of Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland County Resource 
Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member David 
Lambert 3 

CONSENT AGENDA: 5 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 5 

E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 5 

a) Parenting Awareness Month – March, 2007......................................................... 5 
b) Community Development Block Grant Week – April 9-15, 2007 .......................... 5 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 6 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 
Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League ... 6 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Auction Services .... 6 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Upgraded Landscape 

Maintenance......................................................................................................... 6 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program – 

Contract #071B4200234 – Voting Systems.......................................................... 7 

E-5 Application for New SDM License for Target Corporation 7 

E-6 Troy Racquet Club Rates 7 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 8 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 8 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; and Economic Development Corporation b) City Council 



 

 

Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; Advisory 
Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; Charter Revision 
Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; Municipal 
Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board 8 

F-2 Scheduling Special Meetings 10 

F-3 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation 11 

F-4 Third Addendum to Tennis Lease 11 

F-5 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment 11 

F-6 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Food Service Agreement with Kosch Special Events, 
LLC 12 

F-7 Request for Annual Personnel Review 14 

F-8 Library Issues 14 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 15 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 15 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 15 

a) UM/ULI Funding Request ................................................................................... 15 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 15 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 15 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 15 

I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 15 

REPORTS: 15 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 15 



 

 

a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – March 8, 2006 .................................. 15 
b) Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 3, 2006................................. 15 
c) Historic Commission/Final – October 24, 2006................................................... 15 
d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 7, 2006 ............................. 15 
e) Historic District Commission/Final – November 21, 2006................................... 15 
f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 5, 2006 ............................. 15 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – January 16, 2007............................................ 15 
h) Historic District Commission/Final – January 16, 2007....................................... 15 
i) Youth Council/Final – January 24, 2007............................................................. 15 
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 1, 2007 ..................... 15 
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 6, 2007 .......................... 15 
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 7, 2007................................. 15 
m) Planning Commission/Draft – February 13, 2007 ............................................... 15 
n) Planning Commission/Final – February 13, 2007 ............................................... 15 
o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – February 27, 2007 ........................ 15 
p) Youth Council/Draft – February 28, 2007 ........................................................... 15 
q) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 1, 2007.......................... 15 
r) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – March 6, 2007 .................................. 15 

J-2 Department Reports: 15 

a) Police Department – 2006 Calls for Police Service Report................................. 15 
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February, 2007...... 15 
c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee – Recommended Appointment to Parks and 

Recreation Advisory Board................................................................................. 15 
d) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – February 28, 2007 ............................... 15 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 16 

a) Letter to Chief Craft from Edward Crippen Commending Officer Mouch for 
Assisting a Citizen .............................................................................................. 16 

b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Corso, Drug Enforcement 
Administration, Regarding the Active Shooter Training Received from Sgt. 
Bjork, Officer Barton and Officer Fitzpatrick ....................................................... 16 

c) Letter of Thanks to Troy City Council from Bradley Miller, Reproductive 
Medicine Associates of Michigan, in Appreciation of the Assistance Received 
from the Building and Fire Departments ............................................................. 16 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 16 

a) State of Michigan Senate Resolution No. 13 – A Resolution Commemorating 
March, 2007 as Ethnic and Cultural Heritage Month in the State of Michigan.... 16 

J-5  Calendar 16 

J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 
Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. 
U-15190 16 

J-7  Report from SEMCOG – American Community Survey Profile for 2005 16 



 

 

J-8  Communication from Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart Regarding 
Welcome Home Recognition for Local Servicemen and Women 16 

STUDY ITEMS: 16 

K-1 Strategic Planning Initiatives – Part 1 16 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 16 

CLOSED SESSION: 17 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 17 

ADJOURNMENT 17 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 17 

Monday, April 2, 2007 Regular City Council.......................................................... 17 
Monday, April 16, 2007 Regular City Council........................................................ 17 
Monday, May 14, 2007 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 
Monday, May 21, 2007 Regular City Council ........................................................ 17 
Monday, June 4, 2007 Regular City Council ......................................................... 17 
Monday, June 18, 2007 Regular City Council ....................................................... 17 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Tony Boos – Faith Lutheran 
Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
Wade Fleming 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) Oakland County Fire Prevention Association – Presentation of Fire Inspectors of the 

Year Award to Lt. Robert Matlick and Lt. Rodney Bovensiep  
b) Presentation to Troy Community Coalition – Parenting Awareness Month – March, 2007       
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-725) – Proposed Office Building, East of 
Livernois, South Side of Wattles, Section 22 – R-1C to O-1 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, The City is in receipt of a rezoning request, from R-1C to O-1, File Number Z-725, 
as demonstrated by the Ordinance to amend Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy;  
 
WHEREAS, The application is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan, and 
the application constitutes an undesirable spot zone; and 
 
WHEREAS, The rezoning is recommended for denial by the Planning Commission and City 
Management; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the proposed rezoning from R-1C to O-1 is hereby 
DENIED. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
C-2 Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 189) – A Section of Alley, West of 

Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, abutting Lots 5-13 and 54 of Troy 
Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, A request has been received for the vacation of a section of the 20-foot-wide 
platted alley, located west of Rochester Road, between Marengo and DeEtta, and abutting lots 
5-13 and 54 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision, in Section 3;   
 
WHEREAS, The property which shall benefit from this requested vacation is Lot 12 (City of Troy 
Tax Parcels 20-03-278-027) and Lots 10 and 11 (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-03-278-029) and 
lots 5 through 9 (City of Troy Tax Parcels 20-03-278-032), of Troy Little Farms Subdivision 
Section 3; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission recommends that this alley vacation be granted with the 
retention of public and private utility easements; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council hereby VACATES the portion of the 
alley. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Articles IV and 

XXXV – Planned Unit Development Provisions 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Articles IV (DEFINITIONS) and XXXV 
(PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENTS) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance as written in the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 225), City Council Public Hearing Draft, 
as recommended by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Proposed Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage Reflecting the Decrease 
in Cost of Trash Collection as a Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) Member City – Referred by Council Member David Lambert 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by    
Seconded by  
  
(a) To Reduce the Property Tax Millage Rate Reflecting the Decrease in Cost of Trash 

Collection as a SOCRRA Member (Referred by Council Member Dave Lambert) 
 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and Hazel Park 
Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to reduce the cost of trash 
collection that was spinning out of control;  
 
WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting member of cities in SOCRRA, and the new team 
met the challenge to reduce costs for the trash consortium;   
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCRRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and decreased the 
cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCRRA member cities amounting to a 
savings of approximately $2,730,000 per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% to 24%, and the City of 
Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $786,000 per year of taxpayers cost; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council shall REDUCE the property tax 
millage to equal the $786,000, and that the Troy City Council requests that the City Manager 
and staff REDUCE this cost starting in the 2007 Troy City budget; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby REQUESTS that the Troy 
City Manager FORWARD copies of this resolution to the local media to inform citizens and 
taxpayers of this savings and reduction. 
 
Or 
 
(b) Troy City Council Instructs the City Manager and Staff to Allocate the $786,000 in 

the Budget Stabilization Fund to be Used to Make up for Shortfalls in Future 
Revenues in the Refused and Recycling Fund 

 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and Hazel Park 
Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to reduce the cost of trash 
collection that was spinning out of control;  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting member of cities in SOCRRA, and the new team 
met the challenge to reduce costs for the trash consortium;   
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCRRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and decreased the 
cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCRRA member cities amounting to a 
savings of approximately $2,730,000 per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% to 24%, and the City of 
Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $786,000 per year of taxpayers cost; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby INSTRUCTS the City 
Manager and staff to ALLOCATE the $786,000 in the Budget Stabilization Fund to be used to 
make up for shortfalls in future revenues in the Refused and Recycling Fund. 
 
Or  
 
(c) Troy City Council Instructs the City Manager and Staff to Allocate the $786,000 

into the Capital Improvements Fund for Use in Maintaining or Upgrading the City’s 
Infrastructure 

 
WHEREAS, Troy City Council Members, Royal Oak City Commissioners, and Hazel Park 
Council Members, and other officials accepted the responsibility to reduce the cost of trash 
collection that was spinning out of control;  
 
WHEREAS, A new leadership team at the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery 
Authority (SOCRRA) was formed by voting member of cities in SOCRRA, and the new team 
met the challenge to reduce costs for the trash consortium;   
 
WHEREAS, This new SOCRRA leadership has successfully lowered prices and decreased the 
cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCRRA member cities amounting to a 
savings of approximately $2,730,000 per year; and 
 
WHEREAS, All the member cities projected savings are between 10% to 24%, and the City of 
Troy’s savings will be 18.6% or $786,000 per year of taxpayers cost; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby INSTRUCTS the City 
Manager and staff to ALLOCATE the $786,000 into the Capital Improvements Fund for use in 
maintaining or upgrading the City’s infrastructure. 
 
Or 
 
(d) No Action 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby TAKES NO ACTION on the resolution referred 
by Council Member Dave Lambert on February 26, 2007 regarding SOCRRA leadership 
lowering prices and decreasing the cost of trash collection for the taxpayers in all the SOCRRA 
member cities amounting to a savings of approximately $2,730,000 per year. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of March 5, 2007 
be APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2006-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That the following City of Troy Proclamations be APPROVED: 
 
a) Parenting Awareness Month – March, 2007  
b) Community Development Block Grant Week – April 9-15, 2007 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for Membership 

Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 – Michigan Municipal League              
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That payment is AUTHORIZED for annual membership dues to the Michigan 
Municipal League, for the time period of May 1, 2007 through April 30, 2008, in the amount of 
$11,814.00. 
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidders – Auction Services           
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide two-year requirements of auctioneering services for the 
City of Troy and various members of the Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) 
Purchasing Cooperative with an option to renew for two additional years are hereby AWARDED 
to the lowest bidders by line item, Mid-Thumb Auctioneering, LLC of Goodells, MI for line item 
#3 and Chuck Cryderman & Associates, LLC of Armada, MI for line items #1, #2, #4, #5, and 
the additional equipment and real estate sales at the commission rates contained in the bid 
tabulation opened January 30, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting, which will expire March 31, 2009; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Upgraded Landscape 

Maintenance              
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to provide three (3) year requirements of landscape maintenance 
services for the Civic Center and DDA street islands with two, one (1) year options to renew is 
hereby AWARDED to WH Canon, Inc. of Romulus, MI, the bidder with the highest score as a result 
of a best value process, which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest, at 
unit prices contained in the RFP tabulation opened January 3, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with a contract expiration of December 31, 
2009; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program – 
Contract #071B4200234 – Voting Systems              

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase six (6) Optical 
Scan Tabulators (M-100) with ballot box and one hundred and eighty two (182) Model VI Voting 
Booths with Lamp from Election Systems and Software, Inc. (ES&S) of Omaha, Nebraska 
through the State of Michigan MiDEAL Program Contract #071B4200234 at an estimated total 
cost of $56,072.00, from FY 2007-08 budgeted funds with delivery of equipment to occur on or 
before June 30, 2007. 
 
E-5 Application for New SDM License for Target Corporation  
 
(a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Target Corporation for a new SDM license to be located at 
1301 Coolidge, Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County, be CONSIDERED for APPROVAL; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED for issuance. 
 
(b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-03- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES 
an agreement with Target Corporation for a new SDM license to be located at 1301 Coolidge, 
Troy, MI 48084, Oakland County; and the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO 
EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
E-6 Troy Racquet Club Rates  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That the 2007-2008 rates for court time for Troy Racquet Club are hereby 
APPROVED as stated in the report from the Parks and Recreation Department dated March 9, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

2007, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting.  
  
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
NOTE: Any item selected by the public for comment from the Regular Business Agenda 
shall be moved forward before other items on the regular business portion of the agenda 
have been heard. Public comment on Regular Agenda Items will be permitted under 
Agenda Item 11 “F”.  

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield 
Redevelopment Authority; and Economic Development Corporation b) City 
Council Appointments:  Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens; Board of Zoning Appeals; Charter 
Revision Committee; Historic District Commission; Library Advisory Board; 
Municipal Building Authority; and Parks & Recreation Board    

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing). Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 

 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments  
 
Suggested Resolution 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR to serve on 
the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  
Appointed by Mayor (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Economic Development Corporation 
Appointed by Mayor  (9) – 6 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/13 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities  
Appointed by Council (9-Regular; 3-Alternate) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Alternate) Term Expires 11/01/09 
 
Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens  
Appointed by City Council (9) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals  
Appointed by City Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Charter Revision Committee  
Appointed by City Council (7) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Historic District Commission  
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 Year Term 
 
 Term Expires 03/01/10 
 
Library Advisory Board  
Appointed by City Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
 Term Expires 04/30/10 
 
Municipal Building Authority  
Appointed by Council (5) – 3 Year Terms 
 
 Unexpired Term 01/31/09 
 
Parks & Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council (10) – 3 Year Terms 
 

(Adv. Committee for Senior Citizens Rep) Term Expires 04/30/08 
 

(Troy Daze Committee Rep) Unexpired Term Expires 11/30/07 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Scheduling Special Meetings  
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES special meetings on Monday, April 
23, 2007 and Monday, April 30, 2007 at 7:30 PM in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment to Chapter 13 
Section 3, which removes the historic district designation of the property located at 2955 Quail 
Run Drive, in the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Third Addendum to Tennis Lease 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the third addendum to the lease 
agreement between the City of Troy and Don Pierce/Troy Racquet Club, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No:   
  
F-5 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment 
 
Suggested Resolution  
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
(a)  Rejection of Proposed Consent Judgment 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council has REVIEWED AND CONSIDERED the March 12, 2007 
Consent Judgment proposal for the Hooters of Troy Inc. v. City of Troy case, which was drafted 
by the attorney for Hooters of Troy; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REJECTS the proposed March 
12, 2007 Proposed Consent Judgment in the Hooters of Troy Inc. and the City of Troy case. 
 
Or 
 
(b)  Approval of Proposed Consent Judgment 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the March 12, 2007 Proposed 
Consent Judgment in the Hooters of Troy Inc. and the City of Troy case, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That upon the execution of the Consent Judgment by the Court, 
Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia 
Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed business with outdoor service (1 
area), and new Entertainment Permit located at 2950 Rochester Road Troy, MI 48083 Oakland 
County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc.; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement with 
Hooters of Troy, Inc., (a Georgia Corporation) to transfer ownership of a 2005 Class C licensed 
business with outdoor service (1 area), and new Entertainment Permit located at 2950 
Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County from Sign of the Beefcarver, Inc., and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are hereby AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Food Service Agreement with Kosch Special Events, 

LLC 
 
Proposed Reconsideration of Resolution #2007-02-055 - Standard Purchasing Resolution 
8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECONSIDERS Resolution #2007-02-055, Moved 
by Howrylak and Seconded by Lambert, as it appears below: 
 

RESOLVED, That a contract to provide Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course for 
two years with an option to renew for two additional years is hereby AWARDED to 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 13 - 

Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining, and the City Council of the City of Troy has deemed 
that Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining is the best available bidder based on the bid 
awards as a result of a Best Value process which the Troy City Council determines to be 
in the public interest at a guaranteed rate of 5% of gross revenue over $125,000.00 and 
7.5% of gross revenue over $150,000.00; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor 
submission of proper executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance 
certificates and all specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are 
AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreements when in acceptable form.  
 
Yes: All-7 

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend Reconsidered Resolution #2007-02-055 by Substitution 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS Resolution #2007-02-055, Standard 
Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value – Food Service Provider – Sanctuary Lake Golf Course by 
STRIKING it in its entirety and SUBSTITUTING it with the following: 
 

RESOLVED, That a contract to provide Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course for 32 
months with an option to renew for two years is hereby AWARDED to Kosch Special 
Events, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability Company, formerly known as Kosch Catering & 
Corporate Dining, and the City Council of the City of Troy has deemed Kosch Special 
Events, L.L.C., a Michigan Limited Liability Company, formerly known as Kosch Catering & 
Corporate Dining, is the best available bidder based on the bid awards as a result of a Best 
Value process which the Troy City Council determines to be in the public interest at a 
guaranteed rate of 5 % of gross revenue over $125,000.00 and 7.5% of gross revenue over 
$150,000.00; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor 
submission of proper executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance 
certificates and all specified requirements; and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED 
TO EXECUTE the agreements when in acceptable form; and 

  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECOMMENDS APPROVAL 
of the issuance of a municipal golf course Class C liquor license under MCLA 436.1515 and 
an SDM license with Sunday Sales Permit, Outdoor Service Permit, two Additional Bar 
Permits and an Official Permit for the sale of food and registering of golfers for Kosch 
Special Events, LLC, a Michigan Limited Liability Company, for the Troy Sanctuary Lake 
Golf Course, located at 1450 East South Boulevard, Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, 
above all others, and that this resolution shall be FORWARDED to the Michigan Liquor 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 14 - 

Control Commission, and in granting this approval, City Council ACKNOWLEDGES that the 
Troy Liquor Advisory Committee was not provided with the opportunity to review and make 
a recommendation concerning this liquor license request, but that a copy of this Resolution 
shall be FORWARDED to the Troy Liquor Advisory Committee as information.  
 

Yes: 
No:   
 
F-7 Request for Annual Personnel Review 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by State Statute, MCL 15.268 (a), periodic personnel evaluation of City Attorney, in 
the City Council Board Room on _____________________(date) at __________________ 
(time).         
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-8 Library Issues 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2007-03- 
Moved by  
Seconded by  
 
WHEREAS, The most critical step in deciding whether or not to construct a new library building 
is to determine what is actually needed;   
 
WHEREAS, Many factors are used to determine essential needs; and  
 
WHEREAS, A consultant could determine the actual floor space required for a new library and 
also make recommendations as to potential uses for the existing library building, or help the 
Council reach a determination if the existing library should be razed; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That staff is DIRECTED to hire appropriate consultants to 
perform a space-needs analysis on the Troy Public Library. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 15 - 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
    
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) UM/ULI Funding Request 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced  
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – March 8, 2006 
b) Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 3, 2006 
c) Historic Commission/Final – October 24, 2006  
d) Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 7, 2006  
e) Historic District Commission/Final – November 21, 2006 
f) Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 5, 2006  
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – January 16, 2007  
h) Historic District Commission/Final – January 16, 2007  
i) Youth Council/Final – January 24, 2007 
j) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 1, 2007  
k) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 6, 2007  
l) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 7, 2007 
m) Planning Commission/Draft – February 13, 2007  
n) Planning Commission/Final – February 13, 2007  

– February 27, 2007 o) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft 
p) Youth Council/Draft – February 28, 2007  

 007   q) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 1, 2
) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – March 6, 2007 r

 
J-2 Department Reports:    
a) Police Department – 2006 Calls for Police Service Report  
b) Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of February, 2007  
c) Troy Daze Advisory Committee – Recommended Appointment to Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board  
) City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – February 28, 2007 d

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 16 - 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Craft from Edward Crippen Commending Officer Mouch for Assisting a 

Citizen 
b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Corso, Drug Enforcement Administration, 

Regarding the Active Shooter Training Received from Sgt. Bjork, Officer Barton and 
Officer Fitzpatrick  

c) Letter of Thanks to Troy City Council from Bradley Miller, Reproductive Medicine 
Associates of Michigan, in Appreciation of the Assistance Received from the Building 
and Fire Departments  

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:   
a) State of Michigan Senate Resolution No. 13 – A Resolution Commemorating March, 

2007 as Ethnic and Cultural Heritage Month in the State of Michigan  
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service Commission Regarding 

Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-
15190 

 
J-7  Report from SEMCOG – American Community Survey Profile for 2005 
 
J-8  Communication from Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart Regarding 

Welcome Home Recognition for Local Servicemen and Women  
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 Strategic Planning Initiatives – Part 1 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA  March 19, 2007 
 

- 17 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, April 2, 2007 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 16, 2007 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 14, 2007.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 21, 2007.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, June 4, 2007............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, June 18, 2007............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



PROCLAMATION  
PARENTING AWARENESS MONTH 

MARCH 2007 
 
WHEREAS, March is Parenting Awareness Month in the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month celebrates people who are raising children and 
promotes parenting as the foundation for guiding children to be healthy and drug free; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month seeks to draw public attention to the critical 
importance of parenting in helping children to become healthy, caring, and contributing 
citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month seeks to promote education and resources for 
developing parenting skills throughout the year and also encourages the development of 
local parent networks; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month encourages everyone to participate in the lives 
of all of our children; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy supports all efforts and resources, like the Troy Community 
Coalition for the Prevention of Alcohol and Drug Abuse, that promote, encourage, support 
and educate the community on parenting issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy upholds the vision that every person, everywhere, every day 
understands their responsibility in raising our children. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy does 
hereby proclaim March 2007 to be Parenting Awareness Month in the City of Troy and 
encourages all citizens to celebrate people raising children and promote resources to help 
with this important task.  
 
Signed this 19th day of March 2007.  

campbellld
Text Box
A-01b



 1

 
 
March 13, 2007 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Proposed Office Building, East of Livernois, South side of Wattles, 

Section 22 – R-1C to O-1 (File Number: Z-725) 
 
 
Background: 
 

• The Planning Commission recommended denial of the request to rezone the parcel to O-1 at 
the February 13, 2007 Regular meeting.   

 
• The Future Land Use Plan classifies the Rochester Road frontage in this area as Public and 

Quasi-Public (Community Facility).  The parcel has been planned as Public and Quasi-Public 
(Community Facility) since 1999. 

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations for this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to act on this application.  
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 

• Denial of the rezoning request would be consistent with City Council Goal I, Enhance the livability 
and safety of the community. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-01



 2

Options: 
 
• City Council can approve the rezoning application. 
 
• City Council can deny the rezoning application. 
 
• The Planning Commission recommended denial of the rezoning application on February 13, 

2007.   
 

 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Statement from applicant. 
3. Minutes from February 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File /Z 725 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-725 Office Building Sec 22\CC Public Hearing 03 19 07.doc 
 
 
  
 
 



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
File Number Z-725 

 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Zoning District Map 
 
This Ordinance shall amend the Zoning District Map, from R-1C One Family 
Residential to O-1 Low Rise Office Building, for parcel 88-20-22-101-003, located 
east of Livernois on the south side of Wattles in Section 22, and described in the 
following legal description and illustrated on the attached Survey Drawing: 
 

T2N, R11E, NW 1/4 of Section 22 
 

Commencing at the N.W. corner of Section 22; thence S 88°28'45" E, 603.40 ft. 
measured (603.25 ft. record), along the North line of Section 22 and the 
centerline of Wattles Rd. and the Point of Beginning; thence continuing S 
88°28'45" E, 350.00 ft.; thence S 01°31'15" W, 33.00 ft.; thence S 50°35'13" W, 
463.87 ft. measured (463.00 ft. record); thence N 01°35'42" E, 336.92 ft. 
measured (336.00 ft. record) to the Point of beginning and containing 1.014 ac.  
Except the North 60 ft. taken for Wattles Rd. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this penal 
regulation, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new 
prosecutions may be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this 
ordinance may be continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this 
ordinance, under and in accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the 
time of the commission of such offense. 
 
 
 



Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
_______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
 
G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-725 Office Building Sec 22\ZOTA 725 Ordinance 03 19 07.doc 





R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.SUBJECT PROPERTY



CRESTFIELD

E WATTLES

M
IR

A
C

LE

W WATTLES

LANGE

H
A

N
O

V
E

R

SCOTTSDALE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED WATTLES RD. OFFICE BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
S SIDE OF WATTLES, W OF LIVERNOIS
SEC. 22  (Z-725)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY



CRESTFIELD

E WATTLES

M
IR

A
C

LE

W WATTLES

LANGE

H
A

N
O

V
E

R

SCOTTSDALE

LI
V

E
R

N
O

IS

(R-1C)

(C-F)

(E-P)

(B-1)

(O-1)

(R-1B)

(P-1)

CJ-9

REZONING REQUEST
PROPOSED WATTLES RD. OFFICE BLDG.
FROM R-1C TO O-1
S SIDE OF WATTLES, E OF LIVERNOIS
SEC. 22  (Z-725)

0 100 200 300 40050
Feet ³

SUBJECT PROPERTY







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
   

REZONING REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING REQUEST (Z-725) – Proposed Office Bldg., 

East of Livernois, South side of Wattles, Section 22 – From R-1C (One Family 
Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Planning Director Miller presented a summary on the Planning Department report 
for rezoning request Z-725.  He noted that there was an error on the written 
correspondence regarding this location, and it should read that it is located on 
the south side of Wattles.   
 
Bill Mosher, 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was present on behalf of the 
petitioner.  He stated that this is a unique parcel.  It has been for sale for three 
years with residential zoning, but the housing market is weak.  There have, 
however, been a lot of inquiries for office use.  This is a more compatible use in 
light of the surrounding parcel arrangements and their uses.  
 
Tony Haddad, 6507 John R, the petitioner, stated he would like to proceed with 
the rezoning request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lee Nardi, 6507 John R, stated he lives directly across the street from the 
proposed office.  There is way too much noise from the church and mainly the 
school.  There are floodlights on at the school that light up the neighborhood.  
The proposed office location will be directly in front of his front window and he 
does not wish to look at it.  In addition, we have a lot of truck traffic creating a 
large amount of noise, and any office use would make the area less desirable. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Vleck stated he agreed that if it were to be rezoned, it would be 
spot zoning; however, we have a piece of property where on the north it is 
residential, but on both the east and west side there are heavy use zoning.  It 
would be difficult to justify a residential use going into this area and poses a 
difficult zoning question. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked if there are any wetlands. 
 
Planning Director Miller replied that the natural features map does not indicate 
any wetlands. 
 
Chairperson Schultz added that the east and south property of the border are 
active drains. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
   

Mr. Haddad informed the Planning Commission that approximately a year ago 
the Brookfield academy wanted to buy the property.  They were unable to put a 
daycare in the location due to ordinance restrictions.  Despite the ordinance 
being changed, they pulled out of the purchase agreement.  The point is, the 
ordinance already exists to permit daycare at a private academy and that is 
consistent with office zoning.  
 
Chairperson Schultz asked if daycares, in schools, require O-1 zoning. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded that the City amended the Zoning Ordinance 
to allow a daycare be in a single family zoning district in a private school.  They 
are also permitted in other residential zoning when they are adjacent to an O-1 
zoning or other commercial zoning. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified that this property does not require O-1 zoning if 
Brookfield Academy wanted to put a daycare at that site.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02- - 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size, be 
granted. 
 
MOTION DIED for lack of second. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-034 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. If approved the O-1 parcel would constitute an undesirable spot zone. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Vleck, Kerwin 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
   

NO ACTION ON MOTION due to failure to obtain minimum of five (5) votes 
needed to pass or fail. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-035 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby reconsiders the vote on the 
R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the south side of 
Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-036 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. If approved the O-1 parcel would constitute an undesirable spot zone. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Schultz, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

G:\REZONING REQUESTS\Z-725 Office Building Sec 22\02-13-07 PC Minutes Excerpt.doc 
 
 



 1

 
 
March 13, 2007 
 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing – Street Vacation Application (File Number SV 189) – A section of alley, 

west of Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, abutting Lots 5-13 and 54 of 
Troy Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3 

 
 
Background: 
 

• The subject alley is 20 feet wide and 489.5 feet in length. 
 

• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on February 13, 2007, and 
recommended approval of the proposed street vacation.   

 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 

• There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 

• City Council has the authority to approve the street vacation request. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 

 
• The street vacation would not eliminate access for any parcels abutting the alley.  
 
• The item is consistent with City Council Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 

encouraging redevelopment) and Goal V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet 
changing public needs). 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-02



 2

Options: 
 

• City Council may approve or deny the street vacation request.  
 

• The Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposed alley vacation. 
 
 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Maps. 
2. Minutes from February 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Letter of opposition. 

 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
 
G:\STREET VACATION\SV 189 Alley btwn Marengo and DeEtta Sec 3\CC Public Hearing 03 19 07.doc 
 
 
 
 



R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

D
E

Q
U

IN
D

R
E

LONG LAKE
JO

H
N

R

SOUTH BLVD

WATTLES

SQUARE LAKE

BIG BEAVER
I75

I75

STEPH
EN

SO
N

C
O

O
LID

G
E

C
R

O
O

K
S

MAPLE

FOURTEEN MILE

A
D

A
M

S



CITY OF TROY

PR
E

P
AR

E
D

 B
Y 

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
TR

O
Y

 P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 D
EP

T.

SUBJECT PROPERTY



1

943

965

964

94476 900 914 926

92790167 915

990
97642 954

951 985

6455

6493

6511

6445

6535

MARENGO

DEETTA

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 20 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
W OF ROCHESTER, BTWN MARENGO & DEETTA
SEC. 3   (SV-189)

0 50 10025
Feet

EXISTING ALLEY REQUESTED
TO BE VACATED

PARCEL CONTROLLED BY APPLICANT



MARENGO

DEETTA

W
O

O
D

SI
D

E

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 20 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
WEST SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD. BTWN MARENGO AND DEETTA
SEC. 3 (SV-189)

0 100 20050
Feet ³

EX. ALLEY REQUESTED
TO BE VACATED



MARENGO

DEETTA

W
O

O
D

SI
D

E

R
O

C
H

E
S

TE
R

(B-1)

(PUD)

(R-1B)

(CR-1)

CJ-32

STREET VACATION REQUEST
EXISTING 20 FT. WIDE PUBLIC ALLEY
WEST SIDE OF ROCHESTER RD. BTWN MARENGO AND DEETTA
SEC. 3 (SV-189)

0 100 20050
Feet ³

EX. ALLEY REQUESTED
TO BE VACATED



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
   

STREET VACATION 
 
11. PUBLIC HEARING - STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-189) – Alley, west of 

Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, approximately 489.50 feet 
abutting Lots 5 through 13 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3 – Zoned B-1 
(Local Business) and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Principal Planner Savidant reviewed the Planning Department report pertaining 
to the Street Vacation Request, SV-189. 
 
David Plunkett, 300 N. Old Woodward, was present on behalf of the petitioner. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked if the alley is 100% located on the applicant’s 
property?  
 
Principal Planner Savidant responded that because it is an alley, it currently is 
City property.  It abuts the entire plat of the applicant’s property. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified that the entire 20 feet will go to the petitioner. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant responded yes. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster noted that the City will look at the plat, and if it 
is on the plat, it will revert back to the property of the plat.  This issue will still 
need to be researched and verified.   
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-042 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for an alley located west of 
Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, approximately 489.50 feet 
abutting Lots 5 through 13 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3, be 
approved. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



Paula P Bratto 

From: IRLlene@aol.com

Sent: Friday, February 09, 2007 9:20 PM

To: Paula P Bratto

Subject: Binson's request to vacate a 20 ft. wide alley

Page 1 of 1

2/27/2007

Dear Planning Commission members: 
I am writing regarding the hearing scheduled for Tuesday, February 13th on the request of Binson's to vacate a 
20 ft wide alley abutting lots 5-12 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision.  I own the home at 990 De Etta which is 
located just at the northwest corner of the Binson's property.  I want to request that the 20 ft alley be equally 
divided between the property owners, why would the City grant all of the alley to Binson's?  What about the rest of 
the individuals bordering the alley?  Which would be all the property owners on Rochester Road between De Etta 
and Marengo and myself and the property owner of 943 Marengo.  I have always thought that the City would take 
in consideration their citizens, but time and again I see that is not the case.  I have the "lovely" view directly in 
front of my dining room of a building (Rochester Parc) which is 90% vacant and a dumpster in the parking lot!!!  
The City signed a Consent Judgment regarding that particular property and the owner built an office building, as if 
Tory needed more offices!!!!  They can't even rent the ones they have..... 
Now I have to deal with Binson's wanting to take over the 20ft alley way I'm assuming because they won't have 
enough room on the property without the alleyway.  If that is the case then why are they allowed to even build on 
the property, is that not an indication that the area is just too small to accommodate the parking etc.?  Also, I'm 
sure they will place their dumpster right in the Northwest corner of their property, which is directly in my backyard.  
I will not only have a lovely view out my front window but I will be able to look out the french doors of my great 
room and see another dumpster in my yard.  I'm sure you don't care about my situation as that has been evident 
in the many appearances I have made before you and the City Council.  Even though I have made many 
appearances and objections to this plan and the office on Rochester Road its still proceeding.  That's why I stated 
that the average citizen doesn't have a chance...its very unfortunate!!!  People purchase homes in residential 
communities only to find that these companies request variances and if they don't get their way they threaten 
lawsuits and the City grants their wishes and leaves their citizens with a mess.  
I will be in attendance at the meeting and am requesting that the 20 ft alley way not be granted to Binson's I object 
strongly and as a citizen of Troy I am requesting my 10 ft. share of the alleyway.  Binson's can have their fair 
share which would be 10ft.  I don't want a dumpster in my yard.  If this was being done to any of you, I'm sure you 
would be enraged.  If all this somehow does get passed, I will be petitioning the City for a drastic reduction in my 
taxes, as I will not continue to pay the high taxes on my property which value has been reduced due to the 
various "Consent Judgments" and variances allowed by the planning commission and the City. 
Please consider my request and split the alleyway between all the owners.  Also, why is Binson's moving from 
their present location, I know, I heard it at the former meetings, they need more room.  How can they possibly get 
more room at this location, apparently they can't as they are requesting to take over all the alley!!  Well, when 
there is an alley such as this is has to be split equally between the properties and I am requesting my share. 
Thank you, 
Eileen  



 1

 
 
 
 
DATE: March 12, 2007 
 
TO: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing - Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – 

Articles IV and XXXV – Planned Unit Development Provisions  
 
 
Background: 
 
• The Planning Commission held a public hearing on this item on February 13, 2007, and 

recommended approval of the proposed text amendment.   
 
• The PUD process presently provided by the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance does not 

provide design flexibility needed for sophisticated, multi-phased mixed-use projects.  A 
significant amount of detailed site plan and engineering information is required during the 
land planning stage.  This increases project risk, as significant cost is incurred prior to 
receiving preliminary PUD approval. 

 
• The proposed process requires the same information to be reviewed and approved, 

however, the approval order is modified.  The design of future phases is dictated by a 
pattern book, which will be approved during the Conceptual Development Plan Approval 
stage.  The proposed PUD review and approval process is illustrated in the attached flow 
chart.   

 
• Currently, the Planning Commission makes a recommendation to City Council following a 

public hearing during the preliminary approval phase.  Therefore, the Planning 
Commission does not have an opportunity to review the project prior to final approval.  The 
proposed language would allow the Planning Commission to make a recommendation to 
City Council prior to Conceptual Development Plan Approval.  The Planning Commission 
also grants Preliminary Development Plan Approval under the proposed process.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
C-03



 2

Financial Considerations: 
 
• There are no financial considerations associated with this item.  
 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
• City Council has the authority to amend the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• The proposed amendment is consistent with City Council Goal I (Enhance the livability and 

safety of the community), Goal II (Minimize the cost and increase the efficiency and 
effectiveness of City government), Goal III (Retain and attract investment while 
encouraging redevelopment) and Goal V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to 
meet changing public needs). 

 
 
Options: 
 
• The Planning Commission recommended approval of ZOTA 225 on February 13, 2007. 
 
• City Council can approve, deny or modify the proposed text amendment. 
 
 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality:  _____________________________________ 
  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Draft ZOTA 225 City Council Public Hearing Draft. 
2. Proposed PUD Process Flow Chart. 
3. Minutes from February 13, 2007 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
 

Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 

G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 225 Amendment to PUD Provisions\CC Public Hearing 03 19 07.doc 
 
 
 



1 

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 39 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARING DRAFT  

ZOTA 225 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 39 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment to Article IV of Chapter 39 
 
Article IV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended by adding a 
definition for Planned Unit Development, to read as follows: 
 
 
04.20.125A PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: A development consisting of a 

combination of land uses wherein the specific development 
configuration and use allocation is based upon a comprehensive 
physical plan meeting the requirements of Article XXXV. 

 
 
Section 3.  Amendment to Article XXXV of Chapter 39 
 
Article XXXV of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy is amended by 
replacing the existing Planned Unit Development provisions with new provisions, 
to read as follows: 
 
ARTICLE XXXV Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
 
35.10.00 Intent: 

  The intent of the PUD Option is to permit flexibility in the design and 
use of residential and non-residential land that, through the 
implementation of an overall development plan, will: 

 
A. Encourage innovation and variety in design, layout, and 

types of land uses and structures; 
 
B. Ensure the preservation of significant natural features and 

open space areas;  
 
C. Achieve economy and efficiency in the use of land, natural 

resources, energy, and the providing of public services and 
facilities; 

 



2 

D. Encourage a higher quality of development than can be 
achieved utilizing the requirements of the underlying zoning 
classifications; 

 
E. Encourage the assembly of properties and redevelopment of 

outdated structures and areas; 
 
F. Provide for enhanced housing, employment, recreation, and 

shopping opportunities for the citizens of Troy; 
 
G. Ensure compatibility of developments with the design and 

function of neighboring sites; 
 
H. Ensure development that is consistent with the direction of 

the Master Land Use Plan. 
 

The provisions of this Article are not intended to be used as a 
device for avoiding the applicable zoning requirements. The use of 
the provisions of this Article to permit variations from other 
requirements of this Ordinance shall only be approved when such 
approval results in improvements to the public health, safety, and 
welfare in the area affected, in accordance with this Intent 
Statement. 

 
  The PUD shall not be utilized in situations where the same land use 

objectives can be accomplished by the application of conventional zoning 
provisions or standards. 

   
  The development permitted under this Article shall be considered 

as an optional means of development, and thus shall only be permitted 
when mutually agreeable to the developer and to the City Council. 

 
(05-01-00) 

 
35.20.00 Definition: 
  A "Planned Unit Development" is a development consisting 

of a combination of land uses wherein the specific development 
configuration and use allocation is based upon a comprehensive 
physical plan meeting the requirements of this Article. The 
predominant uses permitted within a Planned Unit Development 
shall be those consistent with the direction of the Master Land Use 
Plan. Other uses may, however, be permitted as a part of a PUD. 
Physical standards relating to matters such as building height and 
bulk, density, and setbacks are determined based upon the specific 
PUD plan presented, its internal design quality, and its compatibility 
with adjacent uses, rather than being based upon the specific 
standards contained in the underlying Zoning Districts or in those 



3 

Districts within which the proposed uses otherwise occur. A 
Planned Unit Development plan, approved in accordance with the 
provisions of this Article, replaces the underlying Zoning Districts as 
the basis upon which the subject property is developed and its uses 
are controlled. 

 
35.30.00 Eligibility: 

  In order to qualify for the Planned Unit Development Option, it must 
be demonstrated that the following conditions will be met: 

 
A. The proposed development site shall be under a single 

ownership or control, and be capable of being planned and 
developed as one integral unit.  

  (Rev. 08-19-02) 
 

B. The proposed development site shall be limited in its location 
to one of the following areas: 

 
1. The City Center Area, which is generally described as 

including the area lying between Crooks and Livernois 
Roads, extending north from the property on the 
south side of Kirts Boulevard to a point one-half mile 
north of Big Beaver Road, excluding developed 
single-family residential subdivisions.  

 
2.  Parcels on which the City Council determines, after a 

recommendation from the Planning Commission, that 
the flexibility of the PUD regulations would achieve a 
substantially higher quality of development than could 
be achieved under a conventional zoning approach. 
Factors related to development quality shall include, 
but shall not be limited to: overall site and building 
design, building materials, preservation of significant 
natural features, the provision of a greater amount of 
open space and/or landscaped area, the provision of 
extensive pedestrian facilities and amenities, and the 
provision of facilities which enhance or replace those 
which would otherwise be provided by public entities 
(e.g. recreation, transportation, safety and security).  

 
3. Parcels on which the City Council determines, after a 

recommendation from the Planning Commission, that 
extreme economic obsolescence exists, and that it 
would be extremely difficult to achieve economically 
sound development under a conventional zoning 
approach. 

(05-01-00) 
 



4 

C. The applicant must show that a sufficient number of the 
following objectives, which would not be able to be 
accomplished without the use of the PUD, are met: 

 
1. Provide development quality objectives such as those 

referred to in Section 35.30.00-B-2 above; 
 
2. Provide a mixture of land uses that would otherwise 

not be permitted, provided that other objectives of this 
Article are met and the resulting development would 
promote the public health, safety, and welfare; 

 
3. Provide a public improvement, or other facility used 

by the public, which could not otherwise be required, 
that would further the public health, safety and 
welfare, or protect existing or future uses from the 
impacts of the proposed uses.  

 
4. Alleviate traffic congestion; 
 
5. Provide for the appropriate redevelopment or re-use 

of sites that are occupied by obsolete uses; 
 
6. Provide a complementary variety of housing types 

that is in harmony with the adjacent uses; 
 
7. Promote the intent of the Master Land Use Plan. 
 

35.40.00 General Development Standards: 
  Any land use authorized in this Zoning Ordinance may be included 

in a Planned Unit Development as a principal or accessory use, provided 
that: 

   
A. The predominant uses within a Planned Unit Development 

shall be consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use 
Plan. Other uses may be permitted by the City Council, after 
a recommendation from Planning Commission, when such 
are determined to be consistent with the intent of this Article. 

 
B. The applicant for approval of a Planned Unit Development 

shall demonstrate, to the Planning Commission and the City 
Council, that physical features of the proposed development, 
such as building height and bulk, setbacks, and development 
density are consistent or compatible with those of the 
adjacent properties.  

 
C. Open space and landscaped areas are intended to be a 

primary feature of Planned Unit Developments. To this end, 
such developments shall provide substantially more open 



5 

space area than that required for typical developments within 
the underlying Zoning Districts (e.g. fifteen (15) percent of 
non-residential site, vs. ten (10) percent requirement per 
Section 39.70.04). Specific interpretation of this standard 
shall be the responsibility of the City Council, after a 
recommendation from the Planning Commission. 

(05-01-00) 
 

D. Stormwater detention or retention shall be provided in open 
unfenced detention or retention basins, or in underground 
facilities. These basins shall be incorporated into the 
landscaping or open space plan for the site. Stormwater 
detention within parking lots shall not be permitted.  

 
E. Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total 

series of uses within a Planned Unit Development, based on 
the provisions of Section 40.21.01. The City Council, after 
receiving a recommendation from the Planning Commission, 
may permit the sharing of parking among the various uses 
within a Planned Unit Development, and thus a reduction in 
the total parking provided, subject to the following conditions: 

 
1. A finding by the City Council, based on technical 

information provided by qualified land use, parking, or 
traffic consultants, that the consequent reduction in 
off-street parking will not impair the functioning of the 
developments served, or have a negative effect on 
traffic flow on and/or adjacent to the sites served. 

 
2. The execution of an Agreement between the 

developer benefiting from the shared parking and the 
City, setting forth the means by which additional 
parking, up to the minimum required by Section 
40.21.01, will be provided, if and when such is 
determined to be necessary by the City. 

 
F. It is intended that Planned Unit Developments will be 

implemented as a single coordinated and cohesive 
development project. If it is determined that the scale and 
nature of the project warrant phased or multi-stage 
development, the predominant uses established on the site 
shall be consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use 
Plan. 

 
35.50.00 Submittal Requirements: 

  Submittal requirements for Planned Unit Developments shall, as a 
minimum, follow the requirements found in Section 03.30.00 for Special 
Use Approvals which occur in conjunction with Site Plan Approvals. 

 



6 

 35.50.01 Environmental Impact Statement, according to the 
provisions of Article VII of this Chapter, shall be submitted as a part 
of a Planned Unit Development application. The Preliminary 
Environmental Impact Statement shall be submitted with the 
application for Preliminary Plan Approval, and the Final 
Environmental Statement shall be submitted with the application for 
Final Plan Approval. 

 
 35.50.02 In the event that an applicant would wish to propose a 

Planned Unit Development wherein the predominant use or uses 
would not be consistent with the Master Land Use Plan, the 
applicant shall request that the Planning Commission consider an 
amendment to that Plan. This request and the supporting 
documentation may be submitted in advance of or simultaneous 
with the request for Preliminary Plan Approval. Action on an 
amendment to the Master Land Use Plan shall occur at or before 
the time of Preliminary Plan Approval. 

 
35.60.00 Approval Process: 

  The review and approval of Planned Unit Developments shall occur 
in two stages; Preliminary Plan Approval, and Final Plan Approval. 

 
(05-01-00) 

 
35.60.01 Preliminary Plan Approval: 

  Preliminary Plans for Planned Unit Developments shall be 
submitted to the Planning Commission, for review and recommendation to 
the City Council. Before making a recommendation to the City Council, the 
Planning Commission shall hold a Public Hearing on the proposal. 
Following their Public Hearing, the Planning Commission shall make a 
recommendation to the City Council on the Preliminary Plan for the 
proposed Planned Unit Development. A Public Hearing shall then be set 
for the City Council, at which time they will consider the proposal, along 
with the recommendations of the Planning Commission, the City staff, and 
other interested parties. The City Council shall then take action to 
approve, approve with conditions, or disapprove the Preliminary Planned 
Unit Development Plan. In the event of denial, the City Council shall set 
forth in their resolution the reasons for such action. The City Council’s 
approval shall be effective for a period of one (1) year, during which time 
the petitioner is authorized to prepare and submit construction plans for 
site improvements, phasing plans, Planned Unit Development 
Agreements, and other documents necessary for Final Plan Approval. 

 
35.60.02 Final Plan Approval: 

  Final plans for Planned Unit Developments shall be submitted to 
the Planning Department for presentation to and review by the City 
Council, who shall have final authority for approval of such Final Plans. In 
conjunction with the application for Final Plan Approval, the applicant shall 



7 

submit evidence of completion of the Final Site Plan Approval process in 
accordance with Section 03.40.00 of this Chapter. Following their review 
of the Final Plan, City Council shall take action to approve, approve with 
conditions, or disapprove the Final Planned Unit Development Plan. In the 
event of denial, the City Council shall set forth in their resolution the 
reasons for such action. 

 
35.70.00 Standards for Approval of Planned Unit Developments  

  In considering applications for Planned Unit Developments, the 
Planning Commission and City Council shall make their determinations 
based upon the following standards: 

 
 35.70.01 The overall design and all proposed uses shall be 

consistent with and promote the Intent of the Planned Unit 
Development approach, as stated in Section 35.10.00, and the 
Eligibility Conditions as stated in Section 35.30.00.  
 
35.70.02 The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be 
consistent with the intent of the Master Land Use Plan. 
 

35.70.03 The proposed Planned Unit Development includes information 
which clearly sets forth specifications or information with respect to 
structure height, setbacks, density, parking, circulation, landscaping, 
views, and other design and layout features which exhibit due regard for 
the relationship of the development to the surrounding properties and uses 
thereon, as well the relationships between the various elements of the 
proposed Planned Unit Development. In determining whether this 
requirement has been met, consideration shall be given to the following: 

 
A. The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the 

proposed structures and other site improvements. 
 
B. The location and screening of vehicular circulation and 

parking areas in relation to surrounding properties and the 
other elements of the development. 

 
(05-01-00) 
 
C. The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading 

areas, outdoor activity or work areas, and mechanical 
equipment. 

 
D. The hours of operation of the proposed uses. 
 
E. The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and 

other site amenities. 
 



8 

 35.70.04 The proposed development shall not exceed the 
capacities of existing public facilities and available public services, 
including but not limited to; utilities, roads, police and fire protection 
services, recreation facilities and services, and educational 
services, unless the project proposal contains an acceptable plan 
for the provision of such necessary additional facilities and 
services. 

 
 35.70.05 The Planned Unit Development shall be designed to 

minimize the impact of traffic generated by the proposed 
development on the surrounding uses and area. 

 
 35.70.06 The Planned Unit Development shall include a 

sidewalk system to accommodate safe pedestrian circulation 
throughout the development, and along the perimeter of the site, 
without undue interference from vehicular traffic. 
 

35.70.07 The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance 
with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws and ordinances. 

 
35.80.00 Planned Unit Development Agreement: 
  In conjunction with submittal to the Council of a request for 

Final Plan Approval for a Planned Unit Development, the applicant 
shall execute and submit one or more documents which shall serve 
as the Planned Unit Development Agreement. As a part of their 
Final Plan Approval action, the City Council shall authorize 
execution of this Agreement by the City. The PUD Agreement shall 
include, but shall not be limited to items such as the following: 

 
1. A summary description of the nature and character of the 

proposed development, as to permitted uses and site 
improvements. 

 
2. A statement of the conditions upon which Final Plan 

Approval by the City Council is based, with particular 
attention given to those conditions which are unique to the 
particular PUD Plan. These conditions can include matters 
such as, but not limited to, specific architectural standards, 
building elevations and materials, site lighting, pedestrian 
facilities, and landscaping.  

 
3. A summary of the public improvements (streets, utilities, 

etc.) which are to be carried out in conjunction with the 
proposed development, along with financial guarantees, in a 
form acceptable to the City Manager, in order to ensure 
completion of those improvements. 

 
4. A document ensuring the maintenance of any open space or 

common areas which will result from implementation of the 



9 

PUD Plan (e.g. property owners association, conveyance to 
the City with maintenance deposit).  

 
The Planned Unit Development Agreement shall be recorded in the 
office of the Oakland County Register of Deeds, referenced to the 
subject property. 
 
(05-01-00) 

 
35.90.00 Effect of Approval 
  Approval of a Planned Unit Development Plan shall 

constitute an amendment to the Zoning Ordinance. The area 
encompassed by a Planned Unit Development shall be depicted on 
the Zoning District Map, as a further notice of the unique nature of 
the development controls related to the property involved. Following 
Final Plan Approval for a Planned Unit Development, no use or 
development of the subject property may occur except that which is 
consistent with the approved Planned Unit Development Plan and 
Agreement. 

 
35.95.00 Amendment or Abandonment of PUD Plan 
 
35.95.01 Any proposed amendment of the Planned Unit Development Plan 

which alters the intent and conditions of Final Approval, shall be 
presented to and considered by the Planning Commission and the 
City Council at Public Hearings, following a procedure similar to 
that of Preliminary Plan Approval.  

 
35.95.02 Planned Unit Development sites on which construction does not 

occur within a two (2) year period from the date of Final Plan 
Approval shall be considered abandoned, for the purposes of this 
Article. The applicant may request a twelve (12) month extension of 
Final Plan Approval, which will be considered and acted upon by 
the City Council following a Public Hearing. A written request for 
extension must be received by the City before the end of the two 
(2) year Final Plan Approval period. 

 
  Following any action to abandon the proposed Planned Unit 

Development, whether it be through failure to proceed or through 
formal notice of abandonment by the property owners or 
successors, the City Council shall take action to rescind their 
previous Final Plan Approval actions, and to invalidate any related 
Agreements. Evidence of such actions shall be recorded in the 
office of the Oakland County Register of Deeds, referenced to the 
subject property. 

 
35.96.00 Appeals: 
  The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have no authority in 

matters covered by this Article. Modifications to plans or proposals 



10 

submitted under this Article shall be processed in accordance with 
the amendment procedures covered under Section 35.95.00. 

 
35.97.00 Violations: 
  Any violation of the approved PUD Final Plan or the PUD 

Agreement shall be considered a violation of the Zoning Ordinance, 
which shall be subject to the enforcement actions and penalties 
described in Section 02.50.00 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

 
(05-01-00) 

 
35.10.00.  Intent:  
The intent of the Planned Unit Development option is to permit flexibility in the 
design and use of residential and non-residential land which, through the 
implementation of an overall development plan, when applicable to the site, will: 

A. Encourage developments that will result in a long term contribution to 
social, environmental and economic sustainability in the City of Troy;  

B. Permit development patterns that respond to changing public and private 
needs; 

C. Encourage flexibility in design and use that will result in a higher quality of 
development and a better overall project than would be accomplished 
under conventional zoning, and which can be accommodated without 
sacrificing established community values;  

D. Provide for the long-term protection and/or preservation of natural 
resources, natural features, and/or historic and cultural resources; 

E. Promote the efficient use and conservation of energy; 
F. Encourage the use, redevelopment and improvement of existing sites 

where current ordinances do not provide adequate protection and 
safeguards for the site or its surrounding areas, or where current 
ordinances do not provide the flexibility to consider redevelopment, 
replacement, or adaptive re-use of existing structures and sites; 

G. Provide for enhanced housing, employment, recreation, and shopping 
opportunities for the citizens of Troy; 

H. Ensure the compatibility of design and use between various components 
within the PUD and with neighboring properties and uses; and 

 I.  Ensure development that is consistent with the intent of the land use plan 
meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act or the intent of 
any applicable corridor or sub-area plans. 

A Planned Unit Development project is viewed as an integrated development 
concept. To that end, the provisions of this Article are not intended to be used as 
a device for avoiding the zoning requirements that would otherwise apply, but 
rather to allow flexibility and mixture of uses, and to improve the design, 
character and quality of new development. The use of a Planned Unit 
Development to permit variations from other requirements of this Ordinance shall 



11 

only be approved when such approval results in improvements to the public 
health, safety and welfare in the area affected, and in accordance with the intent 
of this Article. 
 

35.20.00.  Uses Permitted: 
The uses permitted within a Planned Unit Development shall be consistent with 
the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of the municipal Planning Act or 
the intent of any applicable corridor or sub-area plans.  If conditions have 
changed since the plan, or any applicable corridor or sub-area plans, was 
adopted, the uses shall be consistent with recent development trends in the area.  
Other land uses may be authorized when such uses are determined to be 
consistent with the intent of this Article. Physical standards relating to matters 
such as building height, bulk, density, parking and setbacks will be determined 
based upon the specific PUD plan presented, and its design quality and 
compatibility with adjacent uses, rather than being based upon the specific 
standards contained in the underlying zoning districts or in those districts within 
which the proposed uses otherwise occur. A Planned Unit Development plan, 
approved in accordance with the provisions of this Article, replaces the 
underlying zoning districts as the basis upon which the subject property is 
developed and its uses are controlled. 
 
35.30.00.  Standards for Approval: 
A Planned Unit Development project may be applied for in any zoning district. In 
order to be considered for the Planned Unit Development option, it should be 
demonstrated that the following standards  will be met, as reasonably applicable 
to the site: 

A. The proposed development shall be applied for by a person or entity who 
has the legal right to execute a binding agreement covering all parcels in 
the PUD.   

B. The applicant shall demonstrate that through the use of the PUD option, 
the development will accomplish a sufficient number of the following 
objectives, as are reasonably applicable to the site, providing:  
1.  A mixture of land uses that would otherwise not be permitted without 

the use of the PUD, provided that other objectives of this Article are 
also met;  

2.  A public improvement or public facility (e.g. recreational, 
transportation, safety and security) which will enhance, add to or 
replace those provided by public entities, thereby furthering the public 
health, safety and welfare; 

3. A recognizable and material benefit to the ultimate users of the 
project and to the community, where such benefit would otherwise be 
infeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent these regulations; 

4. Long term protection and preservation of natural resources, natural 
features, and historic and cultural resources, of a significant quantity 



12 

and/or quality in need of protection or preservation, and which would 
otherwise be unfeasible or unlikely to be achieved absent these 
regulations;  

5. A compatible mixture of open space, landscaped areas, and/or 
pedestrian amenities; 

6. Appropriate land use transitions between the PUD and surrounding 
properties; 

7. Design features and techniques, such as green building and low 
impact design, which will promote and encourage energy 
conservation and sustainable development; 

8. Innovative and creative site and building designs, solutions and 
materials; 

9. The desirable qualities of a dynamic urban environment that is 
compact, designed to human scale, and exhibits contextual 
integration of buildings and city spaces; 

10.  The PUD will reasonably mitigate impacts to the transportation 
system and enhance non-motorized facilities and amenities; 

11.  For the appropriate assembly, use, redevelopment, replacement 
and/or improvement of existing sites that are occupied by obsolete 
uses and/or structures; 

12.  A complementary variety of housing types that are in harmony with 
adjacent uses;  

13. A reduction of the impact of a non-conformity or removal of an 
obsolete building or structure; 

14. A development consistent with and meeting the intent of this Article; 
and will promote the intent of the plan meeting the requirements of 
the Municipal Planning Act or the intent of any applicable corridor or 
sub-area plans.  If conditions have changed since the plan, or any 
applicable corridor or sub-area plans, was adopted, the uses shall be 
consistent with recent development trends in the area.   

15.  Includes all necessary information and specifications with respect to 
structures, heights, setbacks, density, parking, circulation, 
landscaping, amenities and other design and layout features, 
exhibiting a due regard for the relationship of the development to the 
surrounding properties and uses thereon, as well as to the 
relationship between the various elements within the proposed 
Planned Unit Development. In determining whether these 
relationships have been appropriately addressed, consideration shall 
be given to the following: 
A.  The bulk, placement, and materials of construction of the 

proposed structures and other site improvements. 
B.  The location and screening of vehicular circulation and 

parking areas in relation to surrounding properties and the 



13 

other elements of the development. 
C.  The location and screening of outdoor storage, loading 

areas, outdoor activity or work areas, and mechanical 
equipment. 

D.  The hours of operation of the proposed uses. 
E.  The location, amount, type and intensity of landscaping, and 

other site amenities. 
 

16.  Parking shall be provided in order to properly serve the total range of 
uses within the Planned Unit Development. The sharing of parking 
among the various uses within a Planned Unit Development may be 
permitted.  The applicant shall provide justification to the satisfaction 
of the City that the shared parking proposed is sufficient for the 
development and will not impair the functioning of the development, 
and will not have a negative effect on traffic flow within the 
development and/or on properties adjacent to the development. 

 
17.  Innovative methods of stormwater management that enhance water 

quality shall be considered in the design of the stormwater system. 
 

18.  The proposed Planned Unit Development shall be in compliance with 
all applicable Federal, State and local laws and ordinances, and shall 
coordinate with existing public facilities. 

 
35.40.00.  Consistency with Plan.  
In the event that an applicant proposes a Planned Unit Development wherein the 
predominant use or uses would not be consistent with the intent of the plan 
meeting the requirements of the Municipal Planning Act, applicable corridor or 
sub-area plans, recent development trends in the area, or this Article, the City 
may consider initiating an amendment to the plan or applicable corridor or sub-
area plans. If an applicant proposes any such uses, the applicant shall provide 
supporting documentation in advance of or simultaneous with the request for 
Concept Development Plan Approval.  
 
35.50.00.  Summary of the Approval Process: 

A. Step One: Conceptual Development Plan Approval. The procedure for 
review and approval of a PUD shall be a three-step process. The first step 
shall be application for and approval of a Concept Development Plan, 
which requires a legislative enactment amending the zoning district map 
so as to reclassify the property as a Planned Unit Development. A 
proposed Development Agreement shall be included and incorporated 
with the Concept Development Plan, to be agreed upon and approved 
coincident with said Plan. The Concept Development Plan and 
Development Agreement shall be approved by the City Council following 
the recommendation of the Planning Commission.  Such action, if and 
when approved, shall confer upon the applicant approval of the Concept 
Development Plan and shall rezone the property to PUD in accordance 



14 

with the terms and conditions of the Concept Development Plan approval.  
B. Step Two: Preliminary Development Plan Approval. The second step of the 

review and approval process shall be the application for and approval of a 
Preliminary Development Plan (preliminary site plan) for the entire project, 
or for any one or more phases of the project. The Planning Commission 
shall have the final authority to approve and grant Preliminary 
Development Plan approvals. 

C. Step Three: Final Development Plan Approval. The third step of the review 
and approval process shall be the review and approval of a Final 
Development Plan (final site plan) for the entire project, or for any one or 
more phases of the project, and the issuance of building permits. Final 
Development Plans for Planned Unit Developments shall be submitted to 
the Planning Department for administrative review, and the Planning 
Department, with the recommendation of other appropriate City 
Departments, shall have final authority for approval of such Final 
Development Plans. 

35.50.01.  Step One: Concept Development Plan Approval: 
A. Preapplication Meeting. Prior to the submission of an application for 

approval of a Planned Unit Development, the applicant shall meet 
informally with the Planning Department of the City, together with such 
staff and outside consultants as deemed appropriate by the City. The 
applicant shall present at such conference, or conferences, a sketch 
plan of the proposed Planned Unit Development, as well as the 
following information:  
1.  A legal description of the property and the total number of acres in 

the project;  
2.   A topographical map of the site; 
3.   A statement as to all proposed uses;  
4.  The known deviations sought from the ordinance regulations 

otherwise applicable;  
5.   The number of acres to be preserved as open or recreational 

space and the intended uses of such space;  
6.  All known natural resources, natural features, historic resources 

and historic features; which of these are to be preserved; and 
7.  A listing and specification of all site development constraints. 

B.  Concept Development Plan. Thereafter, a Concept Development Plan 
conforming to the application provisions set forth herein shall be 
submitted. A proposed Development Agreement shall be incorporated 
with the Concept Development Plan submittal and shall be reviewed 
and approved coincident with the Plan. Such submissions shall be 
made to the Planning Director, who shall present the same to the 
Planning Commission for consideration at a regular or special meeting. 
The Concept Development Plan shall constitute an application to 



15 

amend the zoning district map. Before making a recommendation to 
the City Council, the Planning Commission shall hold a Public Hearing 
on the proposal. Prior to the Planning Commission scheduling a Public 
Hearing, the applicant shall arrange for one or more informal meetings 
with representatives of the adjoining neighborhoods, soliciting their 
comments and providing same to the Planning Commission. The City 
shall be advised in advance as to the scheduling and location of all 
such meetings.  

 Thereafter, the Planning Commission shall make a recommendation to 
the City Council with regard to the Concept Development Plan. A 
Public Hearing shall be scheduled before the City Council, at which 
time they will consider the proposal along with the recommendations of 
the Planning Commission, the City staff, and comments of all 
interested parties. The City Council shall then take action to approve, 
approve with conditions, or disapprove the Concept Development Plan. 
The City Council shall set forth in their resolution the reasons for such 
action, including any reasons for denial. 

C. Application. The application for approval of a Concept Development 
Plan shall include the following information and materials, which shall 
be in a plan format together with a narrative explanation: 
1.   Development concept:  A summary explanation of the 

development concept of the proposed Planned Unit Development. 
The Concept Development Plan shall describe the project and 
explain how the project will meet the intent of the PUD option as 
set forth in Section 35.10.00 and the criteria for consideration as a 
PUD as set forth in Section 35.30.00 hereof, as those sections 
reasonably apply to the site. 

2.   Density: The maximum density of the overall project and the 
maximum density for each proposed use and phase. 

3.  Road system: A general description of the road system and 
circulation pattern; the location of roads, entrances, exits and 
pedestrian walkways; a statement whether roads are intended to 
be public or private. 

4.  Utilities: A general description and location of both on-site and off-
site utilities including proposed water, sanitary sewer, storm 
sewer systems and utility lines; a general indication of the size 
and location of stormwater detention and retention ponds, and a 
map and text showing off-site utilities, existing and proposed, 
which will provide services to the project. 

5.   Open space/common areas: A general description of proposed 
open space and common areas; the total area of open space; the 
total area of open space in each proposed phase; the proposed 
uses of open space and common areas. 

6.  Uses: A list of all proposed uses; the location, type and land area 
to be devoted to each use, both overall and in each phase; a 



16 

demonstration that all of the proposed uses are permitted under 
this Article. 

7.  Development guidelines: A plan of the site organization, including 
typical setback and lot dimensions; the minimum lot sizes for each 
use; typical minimum and maximum building height and size; 
massing models; conceptual building design; and the general 
character and arrangement of parking; fencing; lighting; berming; 
and building materials. 

8.  Parking and Traffic: A study of the parking requirements and 
needs; a traffic impact study and analysis. 

9.  Landscaping: A general landscaping plan; a landscape plan for 
entrances; a landscape plan for overall property perimeters; any 
theme/streetscape design; any proposed irrigation. 

10.  Natural resources and features: Floodway/floodplain locations 
and elevations; wetlands and water courses; woodlands; location 
and description of other natural resources and natural features. 

11. Phasing information: The approximate location, area and 
boundaries of each phase; the proposed sequence of 
development, including phasing areas and improvements; and the 
projected timing for commencement and completion of each 
phase. 

12.   Public services and facilities: A description of the anticipated 
demand to be generated by the development for public sewer, 
water, off-site roads, schools, solid waste disposal, off-site 
drainage, police and fire; a description of the sufficiency of each 
service and facility to accommodate such demands; the 
anticipated means by which any insufficient services and facilities 
will be addressed and provided. 

13.   Historical resources and structures: Their location, description 
and proposed preservation plan. 

14.   Site topography.   
15.   Signage: General character and location of entrance and internal 

road system signage; project identification signage; and 
temporary or permanent signage proposed for any other 
locations. 

16.   Amenities.   
17.   Zoning classification: Existing zoning classifications on and 

surrounding the site.   
18.   Specification of deviations: A specification of all deviations 

proposed from the regulations which would otherwise be 
applicable to the underlying zoning and to the proposed uses, 
which are proposed and sought for any phase or component of 
the Planned Unit Development; the safeguards, features and/or 
planning mechanisms proposed to achieve the objectives 



17 

intended to be accomplished by any regulation from which a 
deviation is being sought.   

19.  Community impact statement:  A community impact statement, 
which shall provide an assessment of the developmental, 
ecological, social, economic and physical impacts of the project 
on the natural environmental and physical improvements on and 
surrounding the development site. Information required for 
compliance with other ordinance provisions need not be 
duplicated in the community impact statement.  

20. Environmental impact statement: An environmental impact 
statement in accordance with the provisions of Article VII of this 
Chapter shall be submitted. 

 

 D.  Standards for Approval. In making a determination as to whether to 
approve a proposed Planned Unit Development proposal, the Planning 
Commission and the City Council shall be guided by the intent and 
criteria as set forth in Sections 35.10.00 through 35.40, as reasonably 
applicable to the site. 

E.  Planned Unit Development Agreement. In conjunction with a request 
for Concept Development Plan approval, the applicant shall submit one 
or more proposed documents which, when agreed upon by all parties, 
shall serve as the PUD Agreement. As a part of the Concept 
Development Plan approval process, the applicant and the City 
Council shall each authorize execution of a PUD Development 
Agreement. The PUD Development Agreement shall include, but shall 
not be limited to, items such as the following: 
1.  A summary description of the nature and character of the 

proposed development, including uses, densities and site 
improvements as approved in the Concept Development Plan. 

2.  A statement of the conditions upon which Conceptual 
Development Plan Approval by the City Council is based, with 
particular attention given to those conditions which are unique to 
this particular PUD Plan. These conditions may include matters 
such as, but not limited to, architectural standards, building 
elevations and materials, site lighting, pedestrian facilities, and 
landscaping. 

3.   A summary of the public improvements (streets, utilities, etc.) and 
any other material benefits offered by the applicant, which are to 
be carried out in conjunction with the proposed PUD 
development, along with a summary of the financial guarantees 
which will be required and provided in order to ensure completion 
of those improvements, as well as the form of such guarantees 
which will be acceptable to the City. 

 



18 

4.   A document specifying and ensuring the maintenance of any 
open space or common areas contained within the PUD 
development (e.g. through a property owners association, or 
through conveyance to the City with maintenance deposit, etc.). 
Upon the granting of Concept Development Plan approval, the 
Planned Unit Development Agreement shall be recorded in the 
office of the Oakland County Register of Deeds by the City of 
Troy, referencing the legal description of the subject property. 

5.   A statement that if there is a conflict between the Zoning 
Ordinance, the Conceptual Development Plan and the Planned Unit 
Development Agreement, the Planned Unit Development 
Agreement shall control. 

 
F. Effect of Concept Development Plan Approval. If the City Council 

approves the Concept Development Plan and the Development 
Agreement, the zoning map shall be amended to designate the 
property as a Planned Unit Development. Such action, if and when 
approved, shall confer Concept Development Plan approval for five (5) 
years (herein to be referred to as CDP Period). The five year CDP 
Period commences upon the effective date of  adoption of the 
ordinance that rezones the parcel to PUD by City Council  

During the CDP Period, the applicant shall be permitted to submit at 
least one (or more, at the option of the applicant, if the project is 
proposed in phases) Preliminary Development Plan application(s), 
seeking Preliminary Development Plan approval in the manner 
hereinafter provided.  Upon the submittal of the first Preliminary 
Development Plan for one or more phases of the PUD project, the five 
(5) year expiration period shall no longer apply to  the CDP and the 
CDP shall remain in full force and effect for the development of the 
entire PUD project, including without limitation, the development of all 
future phases of the entire PUD Property. Any submittals of 
Preliminary Development Plans shall comply with all the requirements 
of Section 3.43.00 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance for Preliminary Site 
Plan submittals and any additional requirements of the Planning 
Department reasonably needed to demonstrate consistency with the 
CDP and compliance with Section 35.50.02.  Any Preliminary 
Development Plans that do not comply with these requirements shall 
not be considered submittals for purposes of this Paragraph.  After 
submittal of the first Preliminary Development Plan, the timing for the 
issuance of permits and construction of the PUD project and/or all 
future phases, shall, be determined as set forth in Section 35.50.02.G. 
 
Upon the request of the applicant, prior to the expiration of the Concept 
Development Plan, the City Council may extend the expiration date of 
the Concept Development Plan.  In determining whether to extend the 
expiration date of the Concept Development Plan, approval of an 
extension may be granted if the ordinances and laws applicable to the 



19 

project have not changed in a manner which would substantially affect 
the project as previously approved.  
 
In the event of the expiration of the Concept Development Plan, the 
applicant may either make application for a new Concept Development 
Plan or make application for some other zoning classification.  
Following Final Development Plan Approval for one or more phases or 
for the entire PUD, no use or development of the subject property may 
occur which is inconsistent with the approved Final Development Plan 
and Development Agreement.  There shall be no use or development 
of the subject property until a new concept development plan or 
rezoning is approved. 

 
35.50.02.  Step Two: Preliminary Development Plan Approval: 

A.  Development of property classified as a PUD shall require Preliminary 
Development Plan approval, which shall be granted by the Planning 
Commission. Application(s) shall be submitted to the Planning 
Commission for review and approval consistent with the approved 
Concept Development Plan. 

B.  Preliminary Development Plan approval may be applied for and 
granted with respect to the entire PUD development or as to one or 
more phases. However, if the project is developed in phases, the 
design shall be such that upon completion, each phase or cumulative 
result of approved phases shall be capable of standing on its own in 
terms of the presence of services, facilities, and open space, and shall 
contain the necessary components to ensure protection of natural 
resources and the health, safety, and welfare of the users of the 
Planned Unit Development and properties in the surrounding area.  

 The Planning Commission shall specify the public improvements 
required to be constructed in addition to and outside of the proposed 
phase or phases for which approval is sought, which are determined to 
be necessary in order to support and service such phase or phases.  

 Further, the Planning Commission may require the recordation of 
permanent or temporary easements, open space agreements, and 
other instruments in order to ensure the use and development of the 
public improvements on the property as proposed and/or to promote 
and/or protect the public health, safety and welfare in a manner 
consistent with the intent and spirit of this Article. 

C. Following receipt of an application for Preliminary Development Plan 
approval for either the entire PUD development, or for any one or more 
phases thereof, the Planning Commission shall conduct a public 
hearing to determine that: 
1.   The Preliminary Development Plan continues to meet and 

conform to the criteria for, the intent of and the objectives 
contained in the approved Concept Development Plan. In the 
event that the Planning Commission  determines that the 



20 

Preliminary Development Plan does not continue to meet or 
conform to the criteria for, the intent of and/or the objectives 
contained in the approved Concept Development Plan, the 
applicant shall either revise the Preliminary Development Plan to 
so conform, or, shall seek an amendment to the Concept 
Development Plan in accordance with Section 35.70.00 hereof; 
and   

2. The Preliminary Development Plan meets the requirements, 
standards and procedures set forth Section 03.40.00 et seq. (Site 
Plan Review/Approval) of the Zoning Ordinance and any other 
applicable requirements as set forth in this Article. 

D.  Except as herein otherwise modified, Preliminary Development Plan 
approval shall be based upon the requirements, standards and 
procedures set forth Section 03.40.00 et seq. of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Site Plan Review/Approval). In addition to the information required in 
such Section, the applicant shall also submit the following: 
1.    A demonstration, including map and text, that the requirements of 

Section 35.50.02.B hereof have been met. 
2.   To the extent not provided by the information submitted in 

accordance with Section 03.40.00 et seq. of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the following additional information and 
documentation shall be submitted: 
a.  Sufficient information to demonstrate compliance with any 

applicable project design standards as approved during 
Concept Development Plan review. 

b.   A site plan showing the type, location and density of all 
structures and uses. 

c.   A plan showing all open spaces, including preserves, 
recreational areas, and historic resources, including but not 
limited to all similar such uses and spaces, and the purpose 
proposed for each area. 

d. Expert opinion of an independent consultant with regard to a 
market need for the use or uses proposed and the economic 
feasibility of the project. 

e.  A specification of all deviations proposed from the regulations 
which would otherwise be applicable to the underlying zoning 
and to the proposed uses. This specification shall state the 
reasons and mechanisms to be utilized for the protection of 
the public health, safety and welfare in lieu of the regulations 
which would otherwise apply to a traditional development. 

f.   Additional landscaping details as required by the Planning 
Commission and/or the City Council in order to achieve a 
specific purpose consistent with the spirit of this Article. 



21 

g.  The general improvements which will constitute a part of each 
phase or phases proposed, including, without limitation, 
lighting, signage, visual and noise screening mechanisms, 
utilities, and further including the aesthetic qualities of the 
general improvements. 

E.  The Planning Commission shall proceed with the review of a 
Preliminary Development Plan in the manner herein specified and in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 03.40.00 et seq. of the 
Zoning Ordinance.   

F.  At the conclusion of the Planning Commission’s review, the Planning 
Commission shall either grant approval of the Preliminary 
Development Plan, with or without conditions, or deny. If denied, the 
minutes of the meeting shall include the grounds for denial. If approval 
is granted with conditions, the minutes shall include a statement of the 
conditions. 

G. The Planning Commission’s approval of the Preliminary Development 
Plan shall be effective for a period of three (3) years, during which 
period of time the applicant is authorized to submit a Final 
Development Plan (final site plan, engineering and construction plans) 
for site improvements, together with all other documents necessary for 
Final Development Plan approval and the issuance of Building Permits.  
The applicant may apply to the Planning Commission for extension of 
the three (3) year period for approval of the Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

 
35.50.03.  Step Three: Final Development Plan Approval: 
Upon receipt of Preliminary Development Plan approval, the applicant shall 
be entitled to submit a Final Development Plan for the entire development (or 
one or more phases) to the Planning Department for its review and approval, 
and the Planning Department shall have final authority for the review and 
approval of Final Development Plans. In conjunction with the application for 
approval of a Final Development Plan, the applicant shall submit evidence of 
completion of the Preliminary Development Plan Approval process in 
accordance with this Article. Following their review of the Final Development 
Plan, the Planning Department shall approve, approve with conditions, or 
disapprove the Final Development Plan. In the event of denial, the Planning 
Department shall set forth in writing the reasons for such action.  Construction 
shall commence in accordance with the Final Development Plan within two 
(2) years from the date of approval.  The applicant may apply to the Planning 
Commission  for an extension of the one (1) year period within which to 
commence construction upon good cause shown. 
 
 

35.60.00.  Amendment or Abandonment: 
 
35.60.01. Any proposed amendment of the Planned Unit Development which 
seeks to alter the intent, the conditions or terms of the Concept Development 



22 

Plan as approved and/or the terms or conditions of Final Development Plan 
approval, shall be presented to and considered by the Planning Commission 
and the City Council at Public Hearings, following the procedures set forth for 
Concept Development Plan approval. 
 
35.60.02 Abandonment of Concept Development Plan: Following any action 
evidencing abandonment of the Concept Development Plan, whether through 
failure to proceed during the Concept Development Plan period as required 
under this Article, or through notice of abandonment given by the property 
owners, applicants or their successors, the City Council shall be entitled to 
take any necessary and appropriate action to rescind the Concept 
Development Plan approvals, to invalidate any related Development 
Agreements, and to rezone the subject property from PUD to an appropriate 
classification. Abandonment shall be deemed to rescind any and all rights and 
approvals granted under and as part of the Concept Development Plan PUD, 
and the same shall be deemed null and void. Evidence of such actions shall 
be recorded in the office of the Oakland County Register of Deeds, and 
referenced to the subject property. 
 
35.60.03. Abandonment of Preliminary Development Plan:  Approved 
Preliminary Development Plans for which a Final Development Plan has not 
been submitted as required under Section 35.50.02.G., shall be considered 
abandoned for the purposes of this Article.  The applicant may request a 
twelve month extension of Preliminary Development Plan approval, which will 
be considered and acted upon by the Planning Commission following a Public 
Hearing. A written request for extension must be received by the City before 
the expiration of the three year Preliminary Plan Approval period. 
 
35.60.04. Abandonment of Final Development Plan:  Approved Final 
Development Plans, upon which construction does not commence within a 
two year period from the date of a Final Development Plan approval, shall be 
considered abandoned for the purposes of this Article. The applicant may 
request a twelve month extension of Final Development Plan approval, which 
will be considered and acted upon by the City Council following a Public 
Hearing. A written request for extension must be received by the City before 
the expiration of the two year Final Plan Approval period. 

 
 
35.70.00.  Appeals: 
The Board of Zoning Appeals shall have no authority in matters covered by this 
Article. Modifications to plans or proposals submitted under this Article shall be 
processed in accordance with the amendment procedures covered under Section 
35.60.00 hereof. 
 
35.80.00.  Violations: 
Any violation of the approved PUD Final Plan or the PUD Agreement shall be 
considered a violation of the Zoning Ordinance, which shall be subject to the 
enforcement actions and penalties described in Section 02.50.00 of the Zoning 



23 

Ordinance. 
 
 
Section 4.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
 
Section 5.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
 
Section 6.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, 2007. 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
 ______________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 225 Amendment to PUD Provisions\ZOTA 225 CC Public Hearing Draft 02 27 07.DOC 
 
 
 



PREPARED BY CITY OF TROY PLANNING DEPT. 
12/07/2006 

CITY OF TROY 
PROPOSED P.U.D. APPROVAL PROCESS 

  
  
  
  
  
 IF NOT APPROVED 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 

 
 
 
 IF NOT APPROVED 

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR STEP I 
▪ CONCEPT INCLUDING PHASING 
▪ DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
▪ DESIGN CONCEPTS AND PHASING OF 
  PROPERTY 

APPROVALS RECEIVED IN STEP I 
▪ CONCEPTUAL PLAN, INCLUDING PHASING 
▪ DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
▪ DESIGN CONCEPTS AND PHASING OF 
  PROPERTY 
▪ REZONING TO P.U.D. 

BUILDING DEPT. 
ENGINEERING DEPT. 
LANDSCAPE ANALYST 
FIRE DEPT. 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYST 
PLANNING CONSULTANT 
LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR STEP II 
▪ PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN     
APPLICATION INCLUDING SITE PLAN 
▪ INFORMATION TO ENSURE SITE PLAN IS 
  COMPATIBLE WITH DEVELOPMENT  
  AGREEMENT AND DESIGN CONCEPTS 
▪ PHASING OF PROJECT IS PERMITTED 

APPROVALS RECEIVED IN STEP II 
▪ PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
APPROVAL 
▪ PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

BUILDING DEPT. 
ENGINEERING DEPT. 
LANDSCAPE ANALYST 
FIRE DEPT. 
ENVIRONMENTAL ANALYST 
PLANNING CONSULTANT 
LEGAL DEPARTMENT 
(REVIEW OF CONCEPTUAL 
DESIGN) 

 

PETITIONER SUBMITS 
STEP I APPLICATION 

PLANNING DEPT.

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STUDY MEETING(S) 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING(S) 
TO REVIEW PHASE I 

 

NEIGHBOORHOOD 
MEETING 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING

 

CITY COUNCIL 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL

CITY COUNCIL APPROVES OR 
RETURNS TO PLANNING COMMISSION 

FOR REVISIONS 

PETITIONER SUBMITS 
STEP II APPLICATION 

(PHASING PERMITTED) 

 

PLANNING DEPT. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
STUDY MEETING(S) 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING  

FOR PRELIMINARY 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
APPROVAL OR DENIAL 

PETITIONER RECEIVES 
FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL 

(ADMINISTRATIVE) 

BUILDING PERMITS

CONSTRUCTION

INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR STEP III 
▪ FINAL SITE PLAN APPLICATION  
  REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING ENGINEERING,
  BUILDING, FIRE, AND OTHER REQUIRED 
  DRAWINGS AND REQUIRED EASEMENTS 
▪ CONTRACT FOR MUNICIPAL  
   IMPROVEMENTS 

APPROVALS RECEIVED IN STEP III 
▪ FINAL SITE PLAN APPROVAL 
▪ BUILDING PERMITS 

NOTE: 
AS AN OPTION, THE PETITIONER COULD 
COMBINE STEP 1 AND STEP 2. 
THE CHART SHOWS REQUIRED MEETING, 
ADDITIONAL MEETINGS MAY BE 
NECESSARY  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
   

 
4. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – 

Article 35.00.00  Planned Unit Developments 
 
Planning Director Miller presented a summary on the Planning Department report 
on the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00 Planned 
Unit Developments. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING RE-OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-031 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXXV GENERAL PROVISIONS, 
pertaining to Planned Unit Developments (PUD), be amended as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Draft dated 
February 7, 2007.  
 
Yes:  All present (5) 
No:  None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 



 
 
 
 
TO:    Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Phil Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Impacts of Proposal to Reduce Mill Rate Resulting from Effective Management 
 
DATE:    March 15, 2007 
 
 
 
Background 
 
At the February 26, 2007, Council meeting, Councilmember David Lambert introduced a resolution to 
reduce the property tax mill rate by an amount that the City of Troy could realize as a result of savings 
by the Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA).  Staff was asked to 
develop facts and figures indicating the potential budgetary impacts of reducing the budget mill rate in 
the amount equal to projected savings. 
 
According to the numbers supplied by SOCRRA, the City of Troy could realize a first-year savings of 
approximately $786,000.  At one point, staff asked that the subsidy supplied from the Refuse and 
Recycling Fund be subtracted from the savings estimate, but it appears that the fund will not have to 
be subsidized in the 2007/08 budget. 
 
 Based on current valuation totals, the projected $786,000 in savings would reduce the City’s 

mill rate by approximately .15 of a mill.   
 This translates into a revised mill levy from the current 9.43 mills to approximately 9.28 mills.   
 Compared with the current mill rate, the reduction in mill rate would result in a monthly savings 

to the owner of a home valued at $300,000 (the current approximate median housing value in 
the City of Troy) of $1.54 cents per month, or about $18.50 per year.   

 The attached chart indicates the potential tax savings for residential properties of various 
values throughout the community.   

 Comparing both ends of the value spectrum, the owner of a home valued at $150,000 would 
see a reduction in taxes of 77 cents per month, and the owner of a home valued at $650,000 
would see a reduction of $3.34 per month.  In terms of impact on median household income, 
again using the spectrum of value of property valued from $150,000 to $650,000, percentages 
are reduced from the current 1.35% to a proposed 1.32%. 

 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
D-01



 

Impacts of Proposal to Reduce Mill Rate  
Resulting from Effective Management 
March 15, 2007 
Page Two 
 
 
 
Based on numbers supplied by SOCRRA, the proposed 2007/08 budget reflects a reduction in total 
budget expenditures of $786,000.  When reviewing the entire document, the proposed 2007/08 
budget will be an estimated $782,660 less than the 2006/07 budget.  Although we won’t have final 
valuation numbers until May, based on a 2.75 percent increase in total valuation, the tax rate needed 
to fund the refuse and recycling budget would be .68 mills, a reduction of .15 mills.  The .15 mills will 
generate approximately $791,000 in property tax revenue. 
 
Options/Alternatives 
 
After hearing significant discussion on the matter at the Council meeting, it appears that a majority of 
Council will vote to reduce the mill rate.  Staff would urge the Council to think in a longer-term, more 
comprehensive approach as to the purpose of the budget, that purpose being a primary policy 
planning and implementation document.  Even though the budget is based on annual appropriations, 
the true focus of the document is to build a policy blueprint for the future.  While priorities change, 
providing for consistent annual appropriations can serve many purposes. 
 
First among those purposes is adding value to the properties in the community through a 
reinvestment in the City’s infrastructure.  Reinvestment in the approximate ½ billion dollars of 
community owned infrastructure assets shows the business and residential property owners of Troy 
that their $12 billion dollars of personal investment is extremely important to the City.  Second, 
beyond the fiduciary responsibility to reinvest in community owned assets, investment shows those 
who might choose Troy to invest more private money that the City is committed to the future. 
 
The attached graph indicates current street conditions.  The graph indicates condition of local roads 
based budget investment.  The telling part shows that with the current $2.5 million dollar annual 
investment, the condition of local roads begins to deteriorate and will go from good condition to 
moderate condition within the next two years.  Doubling the current investment to $5.0 million dollars 
maintains local roads on the borderline between good and moderate through the year 2012.  
 
The longer-term picture of the Refuse and Recycling budget includes key unknown variables that 
could include: 
 
 Increases in the cost of fuel 
 Increases in collection fees  
 Possible increases in the amount of trash collected  

 
Key factors from a City budgeting standpoint include: 
 
 A 20-year forecast of $459 million of unfunded capital projects.  Not counting increases in 

inflation, this creates a need to have a consistent annual capital improvements appropriation of 
approximately $23 million per year over the next 20 years just to fund these capital projects. 

 Inflationary impacts on the cost of doing business. 
 Labor related cost adjustments. 
 Budget impacts to other levels of government that will adversely impact the City of Troy. 



 

Impacts of Proposal to Reduce Mill Rate  
Resulting from Effective Management 
March 15, 2007 
Page Three 
 

 
 
 Losses of revenue from further changes to the franchising laws—beyond cable television 

franchising.  We already know that we will lose a minimum of $200,000 in annual cable 
television franchise revenues.  Additionally, according to CRC, Revenue Sharing is still 
vulnerable.  Statewide, revenue sharing has decreased over 29%. 

 Continued adverse impacts during the economic recovery of the state. 
 Increases in finite resource costs.  
 The potential for damages and legal fees if the City does not prevail in the lawsuit brought 

against the City by Hooters. 
 Unknown costs of City related expenses for the redevelopment of Big Beaver, Maple, 

Rochester Road and other areas in the City.  
 Unknown expenditures for normal maintenance of City owned buildings. 

 
Another set of statistics that the Council should be aware of is a listing of road improvement costs 
compiled by the Road Commission of Oakland County.  Examples of actual costs for improvements 
to area roadways include examples such as: 
 
 Build a right turn lane     $100,000 
 Add center left turn lane     $1,000,000 per mile 
 Rehabilitate/resurface five-lane concrete road  $750,000/mile 
 Widen an intersection for turn lanes   $900,000 each 
 Widen from two lanes to five lanes   $6.5 million/mile 
 Widen fro two lanes to four-lane boulevard  $10 million/mile 
 Widen from two lanes to six-lane boulevard  $12 million/mile 

 
At the recent Michigan Local Government Management Association meeting, the Michigan Municipal 
League (MML) made a presentation of options the State is reviewing to handle their rather less than 
optimistic budget situation.  In an effort to try to bring neglected statewide infrastructure up to date as 
well as refocus spending of meeting the challenges of the future, the MML will be working with the 
State legislature and asking the legislature to consider some of the following programs: 
 
 Creation of a “Local First” Program.  Under the program, a local road agency would apply for 

grants from the state and would have a local match.  Methods to fund the program call for 
issuing $1 billion dollars in bonds with an amortization schedule to span a 40-year period. 

 Investment in public mass transit.  This program entails creating mass transit zones to assist in 
economic development around new transit systems.  Methods to fund the program call for 
issuing another $1 billion in bonds, to be amortized, presumably, over a 40-year period. 

 Creation of “Job Ready Site” Programs.  The program is designed to assist Commerce Center 
communities to compete for business expansion/relocation projects by preparing sites to meet 
the infrastructure needs of businesses.  Methods to fund the program call for issuing $200 
million in bonds with a 7-year amortization schedule. 

 Create a “Community Capital Improvement” program.  This grant program, with a local match, 
will assist communities in developing and maintaining community capital infrastructure.  
Methods to fund the program call for issuing $300 million in bonds with an undetermined 
amortization time. 



 

Impacts of Proposal to Reduce Mill Rate  
Resulting from Effective Management 
March 15, 2007 
Page Four 
 
 
 
 Other methods of raising funds include the creation of a Regional Infrastructure Authority.  

Authorities would consist of at least two communities and would provide incentives to be more 
regional through increased tax rate for additional participation.  The regional authority could 
create a regional entertainment tax to be dedicated to local transportation infrastructure. 

 Gas and diesel tax Increases.  The plan calls for an increase of 3 cents per gallon for 3 straight 
years.  This would make up for the estimated $2 billion dollar annual shortfall for local road 
systems.  In other words, due to not paying for the inevitable roadway deterioration on an 
annual basis, gas taxes will be increased on top of increased resource prices. 

 
The main theme here is that the State would have to consider the issuance of $2.5 billion dollars in 
bonds to make up for under funding the budget for many, many years.  The true fallacy in the 
program is that infrastructure will be falling apart—again—before the bonds are amortized.  Issuing 
long-term interest bearing bonds turn the $2.5 billion into approximately $7 billion, including interest, 
over the amortization period. 
 
To show what can happen when investment is reduced for the sake of lower taxes, the story of the 
State of Kansas and road construction should be related.  The Kansas Legislature reduced 
appropriations to the Kansas Department of Transportation year after year.  Kansas is the 13th largest 
state in physical size and has one of the lowest densities of population to land ratios of all of the 
states.  However, Kansas has the third highest total of roadway mileage in the country behind Texas 
and California.  When the legislature was finally convinced that the roadway system was falling apart, 
the legislature issued $10 billion dollars in bonds in two separate bond issues to repair crumbling 
highways.  This $10 billion dollar investment turned out to be a $21 billion dollar total cost when 
interest over a 25-year period was calculated.  The biggest problem is that the roadways will be 
completely deteriorated prior to the bonds being paid out, and due to the interest payments, the State 
will not have the resources to commit to keeping the infrastructure at acceptable levels.  An additional 
element is that inflation on construction costs will make the road repairs even higher in cost when 
construction can finally be initiated. 
 
A report by the Michigan Futures Group indicates that states with the lowest tax rates do not 
necessarily lend to economic development and higher personal income.  The report indicates that the 
10 lowest business tax states also have some of the lowest personal incomes per capita in the 
country as well.  The report goes on to say that those states that do not invest in their communities, 
their people, their educational systems and in the general quality of life will have longer-term 
problems than taxation rates. 
 
From the City’s standpoint, over the past few years, 15 staff positions have been eliminated, and 
early predictions for 2007/08 indicate reducing staff size by another 4 positions.  Management has 
pushed staff to do more with less and staff has responded.  Now, the City is rapidly reaching a 
“Tipping Point” with regards to continued economic vitality.  This “Tipping Point” is based on 
Michigan’s economic situation and limited reinvestment in the City’s infrastructure.   
 
 
 



 

 
Impacts of Proposal to Reduce Mill Rate  
Resulting from Effective Management 
March 15, 2007 
Page Five 
 
 
 
Perhaps the most significant adverse impact from reducing mill rates is the fact of how does 
management continue to push staff to be creative and continue to develop cost saving measures 
when the end reward is less funding to operate with the following year, especially when the cost of 
doing business continues to increase year after year. 
 
It is difficult for some to believe, but Troy does not have the same allure to many in the development 
and investment community that it once had.  People are going where the land is cheaper, the 
infrastructure is newer, and where the business climate is more welcoming.  In a recent edition of the 
Oakland Business Review an article entitled “Puzzling Process”, cities in Oakland County were rated 
in terms of good or bad places to do business.  Those in the Good category included Royal Oak, 
Ferndale, Birmingham, and Hazel Park.  The Bad included Pontiac.  There was another category 
called “Back and Forth” that included Novi, and Troy.  Quoting the text concerning Troy’s ratings the 
caption states: “Hooters.  Need we say more?  On the other hand, other developers say city officials 
are easy to work with.  The issue may be that there is little land available and most new projects are 
redevelopments—always full of complications.” 
 
The following text is from a personal standpoint.  I am asking the Council to look at this situation from 
an entirely different point of view.  Instead of looking at a one-time return of revenues, I am asking 
each of you to look at this situation from a standpoint of “What happens if the Council doesn’t provide 
sufficient revenues for reinvestment in the community?”  I’m also asking you to think of this situation 
in a larger scope than just refuse and recycling costs.  I’m asking you to think of the level of 
investment and commitment that it takes to keep approximately ½ billion dollars in infrastructure 
assets to levels that take care of the present, but more importantly, can also act as one of the 
required catalysts for continued economic vitality. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\03.19.07 - Budget Impact of Reduced Trash Mill Rate 



 

 

 



Property Value 150,000$    175,000$    200,000$    250,000$    275,000$    300,000$    350,000$    400,000$    450,000$    500,000$    650,000$    

Assessment Ratio 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12% 41.12%

Taxable Value 61,680$      71,960$      82,240$      102,800$    113,080$    123,360$    143,920$    164,480$    185,040$    205,600$    267,280$    

City Property Tax Rate 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943 0.00943
Annual Property Taxes-City Only 581.64$      678.58$      775.52$      969.40$      1,066.34$   1,163.28$   1,357.17$   1,551.05$   1,744.93$   1,938.81$   2,520.45$   
Monthly Property Tax Equivalent 48.47$        56.55$        64.63$        80.78$        88.86$        96.94$        113.10$      129.25$      145.41$      161.57$      210.04$      
Daily Property Tax Equivalent 1.59$          1.86$          2.12$          2.66$          2.92$          3.19$          3.72$          4.25$          4.78$          5.31$          6.91$          
Daily Cost/Person Tax Equiv. 0.59$          0.69$          0.79$          0.99$          1.09$          1.18$          1.38$          1.58$          1.78$          1.97$          2.57$          

Reduced Tax Rate from Refuse 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928 0.00928
Annual Revised Prop. Tax-City 572.39        667.79        763.19        953.98        1,049.38     1,144.78     1,335.58     1,526.37     1,717.17     1,907.97     2,480.36     
Monthly Revised Prop Tax Equiv 47.70          55.65          63.60          79.50          87.45          95.40          111.30        127.20        143.10        159.00        206.70        
Daily Revised Prop. Tax Equiv. 1.57            1.83            2.09            2.61            2.88            3.14            3.66            4.18            4.70            5.23            6.80            
Daily Cost/ Person Revised 0.58            0.68            0.78            0.97            1.07            1.17            1.36            1.55            1.75            1.94            2.53            

Annual Diff, in Property Tax 9.25$          10.79$        12.34$        15.42$        16.96$        18.50$        21.59$        24.67$        27.76$        30.84$        40.09$        
Diff, In Monthly Savings-Revised 0.77$          0.90$          1.03$          1.29$          1.41$          1.54$          1.80$          2.06$          2.31$          2.57$          3.34$          
Diff. In Daily Savings-Revised 0.025$        0.030$        0.034$        0.042$        0.046$        0.051$        0.059$        0.068$        0.076$        0.084$        0.110$        
Diff. In Daily Cost/Person-Revised 0.009          0.011          0.013          0.016          0.017          0.019          0.022          0.025          0.028          0.031          0.041          

Annual Household Income-Est. 43,200$      50,000$      57,600$      72,000$      80,000$      86,400$      100,000$    115,200$    129,600$    144,000$    187,200$    

Percent Property Taxes of
Annual Income 1.35% 1.36% 1.35% 1.35% 1.33% 1.35% 1.36% 1.35% 1.35% 1.35% 1.35%

Percent Property Taxes of 
Annual Income--Revised 1.32% 1.34% 1.32% 1.32% 1.31% 1.32% 1.34% 1.32% 1.32% 1.32% 1.32%

Est. Monthly House Payment 900$           1,050$        1,200$        1,500$        1,650$        1,800$        2,100$        2,400$        2,700$        3,000$        3,900$        
Est. Yearly House Payment 10,800$      12,600$      14,400$      18,000$      19,800$      21,600$      25,200$      28,800$      32,400$      36,000$      46,800$      
% of Income for House Payment 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Examples of Service Costs--Daily Basis
Daily Cost of Police Protection 0.25            0.30            0.34            0.42            0.47            0.51            0.59            0.68            0.76            0.85            1.10            
Daily Cost of Fire Protection 0.04            0.04            0.05            0.06            0.07            0.08            0.09            0.10            0.11            0.13            0.17            
Daily Cost of Library/Museum 0.06            0.07            0.07            0.09            0.10            0.11            0.13            0.15            0.17            0.19            0.24            
Daily Cost of Parks & Rec 0.10            0.11            0.13            0.16            0.18            0.19            0.22            0.25            0.29            0.32            0.41            
Daily Cost of Administration 0.02            0.03            0.03            0.04            0.04            0.04            0.05            0.06            0.07            0.07            0.10            
Daily Cost of Refuse & Recycling 0.05 0.06 0.07 0.08 0.09 0.10 0.12 0.13 0.15 0.17 0.22

Total Cost of All General Fund 0.72$          0.84$          0.96$          1.20$          1.31$          1.43$          1.67$          1.91$          2.15$          2.39$          3.11$          

 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, March 5, 2007, at City Hall, 500 
W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:31 PM. 
 
Pastor Scott LeLaCheur – Zion Christian Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge of 
Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling  
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Cristina Broomfield (Absent) 
Wade Fleming  
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine (Absent) 

Vote on Resolution to Excuse Council Members Broomfield and Stine  
 
Resolution #2007-03-070 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Council Member 
Broomfield due to being out of the state and Council Member Stine due to illness at the Regular 
City Council and Closed Session meetings of March 5, 2007.  
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  
a) A 15-minute Presentation from Ken Rogers of Automation Alley:  An Update on Activities 

and Future Needs      
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items  
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 No Public Hearings 
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 2 - 

POSTPONED ITEMS:   

D-1 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment 
 
Vote on Substitute Amendment 
 
Resolution #2007-03-071 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the preceding resolutions (a) Transfer of 
License and (b) Agreement, for Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment by 
SUBSTITUTING it with the following: 
  
(b)  Take No Action on Consent Judgment 
 

RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council resolves to TAKE NO ACTION on the 
proposed consent judgment between Hooters of Troy, Inc. and the City of Troy. 

 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution 
 
Resolution #2007-03-072 
Moved by Stine  
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council resolves to TAKE NO ACTION on the proposed 
consent judgment between Hooters of Troy, Inc. and the City of Troy. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
D-2 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to MNAD Properties 

II, LLC Located in Section 23, at the Northeast Corner of Boyd Street and 
Rochester Road – Sidwell #88-20-23-351-001 and -002 

 
Resolution #2007-03-073 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest; and  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 3 - 

WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant parcels; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council FINDS that the public interest will 
best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 2007-01-028 
Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess property and APPROVES the sale of the remnant 
parcel having Sidwell #88-20-23-351-001 and 002 on the northeast corner of Boyd Street and 
Rochester Road to MNAD Properties II, LLC in the amount of $20,000.00, the appraised value, 
as outlined in the attached Offer to Purchase, plus closing costs; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
D-3 Approval of the Sale of City-Owned Surplus Remnant Parcel to RPS Troy, LLC 

Located in Section 22, between Troy and Louis Streets Fronting on Big Beaver – 
Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 

 
Resolution #2007-03-074 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may from time to time determine that the sale of certain parcels 
will best serve the public interest;   
 
WHEREAS, The City Council may determine the public interest will best be served without 
obtaining sealed bids for the sale of remnant parcels; and 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council FINDS that the public interest will 
best be served without obtaining a sealed bid in accordance with Resolution 2007-01-028 
Policy Governing Disposal (Sales) of Excess property and APPROVES the sale of the remnant 
parcel having Sidwell #88-20-22-356-031 on the north side of Big Beaver between Troy and 
Louis Streets to RPS Troy, LLC in the amount of $15,000.00, the appraised value, as outlined 
in the attached Offer to Purchase, plus closing costs;  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the sale of the subject remnant parcel having Sidwell #88-
20-22-356-031, is CONDITIONED upon RPS Troy, LLC purchasing a privately owned parcel 
owned by Four Oaks Management for fair market value, Sidwell #88-20-22-356-014, for the 
purposes of encouraging a consolidated development; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE 
the agreement to Purchase and the Warranty Deed, on behalf of the City; and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 4 - 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED TO RECORD said 
documents, including all attachments, at the Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to and made part of the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Fleming, Lambert, Schilling  
No: Howrylak  
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
CONSENT AGENDA:  

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2007-03-075-E-1a 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) E-2 which SHALL BE CONSIDERED after Consent 
Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No:  None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation(s):  None Submitted 
 
E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions 
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Aggregates             
 
Resolution #2007-03-075-E-4a 
 
WHEREAS, On May 8, 2006, one-year contracts for Aggregates with an option to renew for one 
additional year was awarded to the low bidders, B&W Landscape of Clinton Twp, MI, Tri-City 
Aggregates of Holly, MI, and Edw. C. Levy Co of Detroit, MI (Resolution #2006-05-202-E-4e); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, All three awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew 
under the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the options to renew these contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with B&W Landscape of Clinton Twp, MI, Tri-City Aggregates of Holly, MI, and 
Edw. C. Levy Co of Detroit, MI, to provide one-year requirements of Aggregates under the 
same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring April 30, 2008. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 5 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Hauling and 
Disposal of Dirt and Debris             

 
Resolution #2007-03-075-E-4b 
 
WHEREAS, On March 27, 2006, one-year contracts for the Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and 
Debris with an option to renew for one additional year was awarded to the low bidders, Osburn 
Industries of Taylor, MI (Resolution #2006-03-153-E-4a) and subsequently to Luke’s Trucking 
and Excavating LLC of Holly, MI, as a result of a rescind/re-award on August 14, 2006 
(Resolution #2006-08-335); and 
 
WHEREAS, Both awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the options to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Osburn Industries of Taylor, MI and Luke’s Trucking and Excavating LLC of 
Holly, MI, to provide one-year requirements of Hauling and Disposal of Dirt and Debris under 
the same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring March 27, 2008. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Bid Award – Low Bidders – Asphalt Paving 

Material             
 
Resolution #2007-03-075-E-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide for one (1) year requirements of Asphalt Paving Materials 
are hereby AWARDED to the low bidders, Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. of Troy, MI and Surface 
Coatings Company of Auburn Hills, MI at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
February 13, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting 
expiring March 31, 2008; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractor submission 
of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements; and the City be AUTHORIZED to use reciprocity between Barrett Paving 
and Ajax Materials in the event of a plant closing, inability to meet delivery times or supply 
material as specified. 
 
d) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Parking Lot 

Maintenance             
 
Resolution #2007-03-075-E-4d 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to complete the City of Troy Parking Lot Maintenance Program for 
2006/07 is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, Lacaria Construction, Inc. of Detroit, MI 
for Fire Station #5 and the Community Center at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened January 31, 2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with the contract not to exceed budgetary limitations; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 6 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.  
 
e) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Museum Roof 

Replacements             
 
Resolution #2007-03-075-E-4e 
 
RESOLVED, That a contract to replace four roofs at the Troy Museum located at 60 W Wattles 
is hereby AWARDED to the low total bidder, Ingram Roofing, Inc. of Rochester Hills, MI, for an 
estimated total cost of $37,904.00, at prices contained on the bid tabulation opened February 6, 
2007, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; and 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements.   
 
E-5 Private Agreement for Restaurant Depot – Project No. 06.934.3  
 
Resolution #2007-03-075-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the Contract for the Installation of Municipal Improvements (Private 
Agreement) between the City of Troy and JETRO / RD, is hereby APPROVED for the 
installation of asphalt approach, concrete curb and gutter and concrete walkway on the site and 
in the adjacent right of way, and the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the 
documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2007-03-076 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular City Council Meeting of February 7, 
2007 be APPROVED as presented and the Regular City Council Meeting of February 26, 2007 
be APPROVED as corrected. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 7 - 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Timbercrest Farms Site Condominium, 
South of Wattles, West of Fernleigh, Section 24 – R-1C 

  
Resolution #2007-03-077 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the preliminary site condominium 
plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site Condominium 
known as Timbercrest Farms Site Condominium, located south of Wattles, west of Fernleigh, in 
Section 24, including 32 home sites, within the R-1C zoning district, being 12.1 acres in size. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
F-5 Revised Chapter 90 – Animals 
  
Resolution #2007-03-078 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by  Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Code, Chapter 90-Animals, is hereby AMENDED by 
replacement in its entirety, as presented by the City Administration, and AMENDED in Section 
90.20.31 b and f, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
F-2 Allocation of 2007 Tri-Party Program Funds and Cost Participation Agreement – 

Livernois, Maple to Big Beaver – Project No. 07.101.5 
  
Resolution #2007-03-079 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by  Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That the Cost Participation Agreement and 2007 and 2008 Tri-Party Program 
funding allocation between the City of Troy and the Board of Road Commissioners for Oakland 
County for the Livernois, Maple to Big Beaver reconstruction project, Project No. 07.101.5, is 
hereby APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed $244,566.00, and the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED TO EXECUTE the agreement, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the to the original Minutes of this meeting.    
 
Yes: All-5 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 8 - 

No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
F-3 Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 21, 2007 
 
Resolution #2007-03-080 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by  Howrylak  
 
(b) Installation of Signs – All-Way Stop Signs at the Intersection of Lancer and Jack 

including the Schroeder School Driveway  
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-01-SS be ISSUED for installation of all-way 
STOP signs at the intersection of Lancer and Jack, including the Schroeder School driveway. 
 
(c) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 3900 Northfield Parkway    
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-05-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 3900 Northfield Parkway. 
 
(d) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 30 East Big Beaver    
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-06-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 30 East Big Beaver. 
 
(e) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 3615 Livernois   
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-07-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 3615 Livernois. 
(f) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 1639 East Big Beaver    
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-08-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 1639 East Big Beaver. 
 
(g) Establishment of Fire Lanes/Tow Away Zones – 30 East Long Lake    
 
RESOLVED, That Traffic Control Order No. 07-09-MR be ISSUED for the establishment of fire 
lanes/tow away zones shown in the attached sketch at 30 East Long Lake. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
F-6 Scheduling a Workshop to Discuss Strategic Planning Initiatives 
  
Resolution #2007-03-081 
Moved by Beltramini  
Seconded by  Fleming  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 9 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CANCELS the workshop scheduled for Monday, 
March 26, 2007 at 7:00 PM and SCHEDULES a workshop to discuss strategic planning 
initiatives on the following date and time: 
 
Thursday, March 22, 2007 at 7:00 PM 
 
in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine   

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:  

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:   
a) Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-725) – Proposed Office Building, East of Livernois, 

South Side of Wattles, Section 22 – R-1C to O-1 – March 19, 2007  
b) Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 189) – A Section of Alley, West of 

Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, abutting Lots 5-13 and 54 of Troy Little 
Farms Subdivision, Section 3 – March 19, 2007  

c) Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) – Articles IV and XXXV – 
Planned Unit Development Provisions – March 19, 2007    

Noted and Filed 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  None Submitted 
 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 

H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1 SEMCOG – Announcement of Upcoming Meetings – Councilmember Beltramini  
As the  SEMCOG Delegate, Councilmember Beltramini advised that the Oakland County 
Outreach meeting is scheduled for Thursday, February 8th at the Groves Conference Center 
from 4:30 PM – 6:00 PM. 
 
Councilmember Beltramini reported that the SEMCOG General Assembly meeting is being held 
on Thursday, March 29th at Cobo Hall; registration is scheduled for 4:00 PM and the meeting 
begins at 4:30 PM to discuss the forecast for the region. 
 

I-2 K-Study Items – Councilmember Howrylak  
 
Councilmember Howrylak reminded Council that they have the ability to schedule agenda 
items, such as strategic planning initiative, under K-Study Items. Councilmember Howrylak 

ould like to see this agenda tool used for future agendas. w  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 10 - 

REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:  
a) Downtown Development Authority/Final – December 20, 2006 
b) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – February 6, 2007  
c) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 20, 2007 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  
a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction and Mid-Thumb 

Auctioneering, LLC – January, 2007 
Noted and Filed 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Monsignor Zouhair Toma (Kejbou), St. Joseph 

Catholic Chaldean Church, Thanking Lieutenant McWilliams, Sgt. Daniel, Sgt. 
Szuminski, Officer Haddad, Officer Stansbury, Officer Schultz, Officer Lenczewski, 
Officer Weingart, Officer Taylor, PSA Stark and PSA Snedden for Their Assistance with 
Traffic During Christmas Services  

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Craft from Ann Comiskey, Troy Community Coalition 
Regarding the Efforts of Officer Kaptur and Officer Breidenich   

Noted and Filed 
 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted   
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 

J-6  Communication from the National Arbor Day Foundation Regarding Troy Being 
Named as a 2006 Tree City USA 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-7  Communication from Bruce Bublitz of University of Michigan – Dearborn 

Regarding the City of Troy Being Named as a Top-Performing Community in the 
2007 Entrepreneurial Cities Index 

Noted and Filed 
 

STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1 No Study Items Submitted  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft  March 5, 2007 
 

- 11 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session:    
 
Resolution #2007-03-082 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That the City of Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as 
permitted by MCL 15.268 (e), Pending Litigation – Hooters v. Troy. 
 
Yes: All-5 
No: None 
Absent: Broomfield, Stine  
 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:59 PM. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:04 PM. 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:45 PM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION  
PARENTING AWARENESS MONTH 

MARCH 2007 
 
WHEREAS, March is Parenting Awareness Month in the State of Michigan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month celebrates people who are raising children and 
promotes parenting as the foundation for guiding children to be healthy and drug free; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month seeks to draw public attention to the critical 
importance of parenting in helping children to become healthy, caring, and contributing 
citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month seeks to promote education and resources for 
developing parenting skills throughout the year and also encourages the development of 
local parent networks; and 
 
WHEREAS, Parenting Awareness Month encourages everyone to participate in the lives 
of all of our children; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy supports all efforts and resources, like the Troy Community 
Coalition for the Prevention of Alcohol and Drug Abuse, that promote, encourage, support 
and educate the community on parenting issues; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy upholds the vision that every person, everywhere, every day 
understands their responsibility in raising our children. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy does 
hereby proclaim March 2007 to be Parenting Awareness Month in the City of Troy and 
encourages all citizens to celebrate people raising children and promote resources to help 
with this important task.  
 
Signed this 19th day of March 2007.  

campbellld
Text Box
E-03a



 

 
 
March 12, 2007 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:    Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
    Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT:   Proclamation: National Community Development Week April 9-15, 2007 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 The week of April 9-15, 2007 has been designated as National Community Development Week by the 

National Community Development Association to celebrate the Community Development Block Grant 
program. The City receives a direct allocation from the CDBG program annually to provide resources for a 
wide variety of community development activities that principally benefit our low and moderate income 
residents including the elderly and disabled. This valued program has made a tremendous contribution to 
the viability of the infrastructure, public services and economic vitality of our community.  

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations associated with this item. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations associated with this item. 

 
Options: 
 
 It is recommended that Council designates the week of April 9 through April 15, 2007 as Community 

Development Block Grant Week. 
 
 
 
 
 
vr/S:\Murphy’s Review/Agenda 03.19.07 – Proclamation – CDBG Week April 9-15,2007 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-03b



PROCLAMATION 
Community Development Block Grant Week 

April 9-15, 2007 
 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, the week of April 9-15, 2007 has been designated as National 
Community Development Week by the National Community Development 
Association to celebrate the Community Development Block Grant program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Development Block Grant program has as its 
primary objective the development of viable urban communities by providing 
decent housing, a suitable living environment and expanding economic 
opportunities, principally for person of low- and moderate-income; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Troy receives a direct allocation from the Community 
Development Block Grant program annually to provide resources for a wide 
variety of community development activities that principally benefit low and 
moderate income persons, including the elderly and disabled; and 
 
WHEREAS, in our community and in communities throughout the nation, 33 
years of Community Development Block Grant program funding has developed a 
strong network of relationships among local governments, residents, businesses 
and non-profit organizations. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this community urges Congress and the 
Administration to recognize the outstanding work being done locally and 
nationally by the Community Development Block Grant program by supporting 
increased funding for the program in FY 2008. 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
March 5, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mary Redden, Administrative Assistant to the City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Approval to Expend Funds for 

Membership Dues and Renewals Over $10,000 - Michigan Municipal League  
  

 
Background: 
 
 The Michigan Municipal League (MML), a state association of cities and villages, is a nonpartisan, 

nonprofit association working cooperatively to strengthen the quality of municipal government and 
administration.   

 Benefits of membership include advocacy of municipal issues and low-cost education about 
effective and efficient governance. 

 The MML has been in existence for nearly 108 years. 
 515 of Michigan’s 533 cities and villages are members of the MML. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds are available in City Council’s membership and dues account, 102.7958. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with membership in the League. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Annual membership with the MML provides support for all City goals. 

 
Options: 
 
 Payment of the attached invoice is recommend for annual dues in the amount of $11,814.  These 

dues cover the time period of May 1, 2007 through April 30, 2008. 
 
 
 
mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\03.19.07 - Standard Purchasing Resolution 9 - MML Dues 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04a





 
 
  March 9, 2007 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidders – Auction Services 
  

Background 
• On January 30, 2007, three (3) bids were received and opened to provide for two (2) year requirements 

of auction services with an option to renew for two (2) additional years for the Cities of Troy, Farmington 
Hills, Rochester Hills, Warren and Waterford Township. 

• 22 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with three bidders responding. 
• Both the on-line e-procurement auction site and this contract provide various alternatives to 

successfully dispose of well used out of service equipment.  
• Since 2003, gross auction sales under this contract totaled $498,705.51 for the City of Troy and 

approximately $686,471.50 for the other MITN cooperative members. 
 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds collected from the auctioneer will be deposited in the general fund revenue accounts depending 

upon the item(s) auctioned.   
 

Legal Considerations  
• ITB-COT 06-60, Two Year Requirements of Auction Services with an Option to Renew for Two 

Additional Years was competitively bid, as required by Chapter 7 – Purchases, Contracts and Sales, 
and opened with three (3) bidders responding. 

• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in providing auction 
services for the City of Troy.  

• The awards are contingent upon the recommended bidders submission of proper contracts and bid 
documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  

 

Policy Considerations 
• Services were competitively bid thus ensuring best price practices. (Goal II) 
• MITN cooperative members are encouraged to participate, as volume for the region drives down 

commission rates.  (Goal VI) 
 

Options 
City management and the Purchasing department recommend awarding two-year requirements of 
auction services with an option to renew for two additional years to the two lowest bidders by line item, 
Mid-Thumb Auctioneering LLC of Goodells, MI for line item #3 and Chuck Cryderman & Associates, 
LLC of Armada, MI for line items #1, #2, #4, #5, and the additional equipment and real estate sales at 
the commission rates contained in the bid tabulation opened January 30, 2007. 

 
 

jmh  S:\John’s Review/Agenda 03.07 – SR1 – Auction Services Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04b



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-60
Opening Date -- 1/30/07 BID PROPOSAL 1 of 2
Date Prepared -- 3/1/07 AUCTION SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: Chuck Cryderman & Mid-Thumb Auctioneering R.J. Montogmery & 
Associates, LLC Services LLC Associates, Inc.

CHECK NO. 4975080711 186068 825683322
CHECK AMOUNT $500.00 $500.00 $500.00

PROPOSAL: ON - SITE OFF-SITE ON - SITE OFF-SITE ON - SITE OFF-SITE
ITEM DESCRIPTION COMMISSION COMMISSION COMMISSION COMMISSION COMMISSION COMMISSION

1. City Owned Property from City
Facilities 10% 15% 16% 18% 15% N/A

2. City Owned Vehicles & Heavy Equipmt. 5% 10% 7% 10% 10% N/A

3. Vehicles - Cleaned, Detailed, and Prep 5% 10% 5% 6% 20% N/A

4. Real Estate & Development Furnishings 10% 15% 16% 18% 0 to 7% N/A

5. OPTIONAL:  Police Forfeiture & 
                          Confiscated Items 10% 15% 16% 20% 15% N/A

ADDITIONAL PROPOSAL:
EQUIPMENT COST (I.E. FIRE TRUCKS, etc) COMMISSION     

On Site
COMMISSION Off-

Site
COMMISSION     
On Site

COMMISSION Off-
Site

COMMISSION    
On Site

COMMISSION  Off-
Site

5% 5% 5% 6% 10% N/A
5% 5% 5% 6% 8% N/A
4% 4% 4% 5% 6% N/A
3% 3% 3% 4% 5% N/A

0% 0% 6% 6% 0 to 7% N/A
0% 0% 5% 5% 0 to 7% N/A
0% 0% 4.5% 4.5% 0 to 7% N/A
0% 0% 3.5% 3.5% 0 to 7% N/A
0% 0% 3% 3% 0 to 7% N/A

PER HOUR PER HOUR PER HOUR
OPTIONAL SERVICES 1st 8 hrs - N/C 20.00$            27.50$             

After 8 hrs - $25.00/person/hour
OTHER SERVICES YOUR COMPANY OFFERS:

ITEM COST ITEM COST ITEM COST
Estimate Value N/C Blank Blank Appraisal $100/Hr

Blank Blank

BUYER'S PREMIUM; (INFORMATIONAL ONLY)
Our company charges a buyer's premium of:        Yes  -  5% Yes  - 4 / 6% Yes  - 10%
Our company does not charge a buyer's premium

QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Operation 8 am to 5 pm 9 am to 8 pm M-F 8:30 to 5:00
Contact Phone # 586-784-8890 810-325-9595 734-459-2323

INSURANCE: CAN MEET XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET
SIGNED Yes Yes Yes

EXTENSION OF AWARD TO THE TRI-COUNTY PUBLIC PURCHASING COOPERATIVE: - OPTIONAL
AGREED: XX XX XX
NOT AGREED:

TERMS: w/i 14 business days of the auction or 60 days for real estate settlement

PICKUP NOTICE FOR OFF-SITE AUCTIONS: 5 Business Days 2 Business Days N/A

$150,000 to $199,999.99
$200,000 and over

REAL ESTATE SALES

$0 to $49,999.99
$50,000 to $99,999.99
$100,000 to $149,999.99

$50,000 to $99,999.99
$100,000 to $149,999.99
$150,000 to $199,999.99
$200,000 and over



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 06-60
Opening Date -- 1/30/07 BID PROPOSAL 2 of 2
Date Prepared -- 3/1/07 AUCTION SERVICES

VENDOR NAME: Chuck Cryderman & Mid-Thumb Auctioneering R.J. Montogmery & 
Associates, LLC Services LLC Associates, Inc.

EXCEPTIONS: Blank I believe that the Cooperative We do not wish to do 
members should have a say in the auction house site auctions.
bid award as my Company has

worked for 3 of them.  It should be
noted that in the past I have given
the on-site rate when moving off-site

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL: Furnish All Labor, Equipment, and Materials to provide two-year requirements of 
Auction Services with an Option to Renew for two (2) additional years for the Cities of Troy,
Rochester Hills, Farmington Hills, Warren and Waterford Township

ATTEST:
Cheryl Stewart BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDER BY LINE ITEM
Sam Lamerato
Linda Bockstanz

____________________________________
Susan Leirstein
Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 06-60 Auction Services







 
 
  March 5, 2007 
 
 
TO:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 

 
SUBJECT:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Upgraded Landscape 

Maintenance 
  

Background 
• On January 3, 2007, Requests for Proposals (RFP) were received and opened to provide 2007, 2008, 

and 2009 landscape maintenance requirements for the DDA street medians and the Civic Center 
Complex. 

• One Hundred Eighty-Three (183) vendors were notified via the MITN system with eight (8) bidders 
responding of which three (3) companies did not meet minimum pass/fail requirements. 

 

Financial Considerations 
• Funds are available in the Civic Center Maintenance account # 756.7802.070 and Street Island 

Maintenance - DDA account # 783.7802.070. 
  

Legal Considerations 
• RFP-COT 06-52 for Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services was competitively bid and opened 

with eight bidders responding. 
• All bidders were given the opportunity to respond with their level of interest in landscape maintenance 

services for the City of Troy.  
• The award is contingent upon the recommended bidder’s submission of proper contract and bid 

documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements.  
 

Policy Considerations 
• Well maintained landscaping will attract business and help retain those currently located in the City. 

(Goal III) 
• Judicious and timely landscape maintenance increases landscape value. (Goal III) 
• Maintained landscapes reduce visual barrier, and safety hazards caused by the presence of trees and 

shrubs along vehicular and pedestrian traffic lanes. (Goal I) 
 

Options 
• City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding a three-year 

contract with two one (1) year renewal options for landscape maintenance services to the highest 
scoring respondent as a result of a best value process, WH Canon, Inc. of Romulus, MI for an 
estimated three year total cost of $577,750.00 at unit prices contained in the RFP tabulation.  

  
Rwh  S:\John’s Review/Agenda 03.19.07 SR8 – Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Letter 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04c



 
 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services 
 

STATISTICS: 
 
 One-Hundred Eighty-Three (183) Firms notified via the MITN e-procurement website 

 
 Eight (8) proposals were received 

 
 Five (5) proposals were short listed 

 
 Three (3) proposals were eliminated since they did not meet minimum specifications.  

 
 W.H. Cannon Company was the most qualified company by receiving the highest weighted 

score 
 

The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
 
Company SCORE 
W.H. Canon Company 65 
United Lawnscape Inc. 62 
Torre & Bruglio 52 
Commercial Mowing Services 36 
Great Oaks Maintenance 20 

 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS – FIRMS ELIMINATED FROM FURTHER CONSIDERATION  
(BASED ON PASS/FAIL MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS) 
 

 Great Lakes Landscaping 
 Parks Landscaping and Snow Service 
 G. Housey Company LLC  

 
Attachments: 
 

 Weighted Final Scoring of 70% Includes Qualification Statement Evaluation 
Process 



 
WEIGHTED FINAL SCORING  

Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services 
 
Final Score Calculation: 

 
                    50% x Price Score   
                    20% x Vendor Questionnaire Score   
                    20% x Equipment Inspection and Optional Interview Score  - Deleted Phase 
                    10% x Other  - Deleted Phase 

70%              = Final Weighted Score 
 

In order to equate the price to the weighted evaluation process scoring, the prices had to be converted 
into a score with the base of 100.  NOTE:  Vendors are listed in order proposals were opened.  

 
Weighted Average Score for Price: 50% 
RATERS Weighted Criteria – Difference in Costs 

  (1-(Proposal price - lowest price)/low price) x available points 
Vendors:  
United Lawnscape Inc. (1-(563,924–563,924)/563,924) x 100    =                    100 
W.H. Canon Company (1-(577,750–563,924)/563,924) x 100    =                      98 
Torre & Bruglio (1-(729,000-563,924)/563,924) x 100    =                      71 
Great Oaks Maintenance (1-(1,047,100-563,924)/563,924) x 100    =                    14 
Commerical Mowing Services (1-(880,866-563,924)/563,924) x 100    =                      44 
 
Weighted Average Score for Vendor Questionnaire: 20% 

Raters: 1 2 3 AVERAGE 
Vendors:     
United Lawnscape, Inc. 67 64 53 61 
W.H. Canon Company 84 96 54 78 
Torre & Bruglio  91 99 54 81 
Great Oaks Maintenance 69 75 53 66 
Commercial Mowing Services 78 86 47 70 
 
FINAL WEIGHTED SCORE:        
VENDORS: United 

Lawnscape 
Inc 

W.H. Cannon 
Company 

Torre & 
Bruglio 

Great Oaks 
Maintenance 

Commercial 
Mowing 
Services 

Score      
Price Score:  (x 50) = 100 x .50 = 

50 
98 x .50 = 
49 

71 x .50 = 
36 

14 x .50  =  
7 

44 x .50  = 
22 

      
Vendor Questionnaire 
Score:          (x .20) = 

61 x .20 = 
12 

78 x .20 = 
16 

81 x .20 = 
16 

66 x .20 = 
13 

70 x .20 = 
14 

      

Final Score:  62 65 52 20 36 

** HIGHEST RATED VENDOR – RECOMMENDED AWARD 
G:/ Award 06 New Format / Best Value SR8 – RFP –Upgraded Landscape Maint – WeightedRatingSummary 01.07.doc 



 
  

SELECTION PROCESS 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
Evaluation Process – Upgraded Landscape Management Services 
 
Phase 1:   Evaluation of Proposals – Must meet minimum requirements.   
 
Bidders will be required to meet minimum specified requirements.  The initial pass/ fail evaluation will be made by 
a designated Committee representative. 
 
Phase 2:  Evaluation Process.   
 
The evaluating committee will review the Vendor Questionnaire and the proposal (minus the Pricing Section).  A 
score will be calculated from the review using the Evaluation Sheet – Upgraded Landscape Maintenance 
Services.  Short-list may be developed from this phase if deemed appropriate at the evaluation time.   
  
Phase 3:  Equipment Inspection and Interviews  - (Interviews are Optional) 
 
An equipment inspection will be conducted of those companies short-listed.   
 
Optional:  The Committee using the Interview tool prepared by the Purchasing Department and approved by the 
Parks and Recreation Department may conduct interviews of the Short-listed firms.  A score will result from the 
process. The score will be averaged if both an equipment inspection and interview are conducted. 
 
Phase 4:  Price   
 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
        FORMULA     - { 1 – (Proposal Price – Lowest Price) / Lowest price} x available points 
 
Phase 5:  Other    

A company may be assessed “Other” points for items not specified, but for which the Evaluation Committee 
deems as outstanding. 
    
Phase 6: Phase Final Scoring Including Consultant Selection 
 
The final score for each qualified Short-listed bidder from Phase 2 will be determined as follows: 
 
 50% x Price Score  = 
 20% x Vendor Questionnaire Score  = 
 20% x Equipment Inspection and Optional Interview Score  = 
 10% x Other  = 
 

100%  Final Weighted Score 
 

Note:   
The City of Troy reserves the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if deemed in the 
City’s best interest to do so. 
 



CITY OF TROY                     RFP-COT 06-52
Opening Date -- 1/03/07 RFP TABULATION Page 1 of 6
Date Prepared -- 1/24/2007 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK # 278514 083461996-8
AMOUNT $14,325.00 $14,325.00

PROPOSAL: Three (3) Year Requirements of Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services with two (2) one-year options to 
                    renew for the highest profile areas in the City of Troy.
QUALIFICATIONS QUESTIONNAIRE FILLED OUT

Yes Y or N Yes
INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX

Cannot Meet

INSURANCE VERIFICATION: Yes Y or N Yes

ALTERNATE INSURANCE
Can Meet Blank XX
Cannot Meet

SITE VIST: Visited Site 12/15; 12/23; 12/24/06 12/27/2006
Did Not Visited Site

PROPOSAL A:  All Acreage - Irrigated & Non-irrigated 
Complete for the Sum Cost per Acre Complete for the Sum Cost per Acre

YEAR YEAR
2007 175,000.00$      86.00$         2007 184,910.00$       3,014.01$      
2008 182,000.00$      100.00$       2008 182,157.00$       2,969.14$      
2009 190,000.00$      125.00$       2009 182,157.00$       2,969.14$     

547,000.00$       311.00$        549,224.00$       8,952.29$      

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:
COST PER ACRE Mowing Edging Trimming Mowing Edging Trimming

2007
 $3,450.00 

($59.48) 
$1,950.00 

($33.62) 
$8,125.00 

($70.65) 48.00$         15.00$                15.00$           

2008
 $3,450.00 

($59.48) 
$1,950.00 

($33.62) 
$8,125.00 

($70.65) 48.00$         15.00$                15.00$           

2009
 $3,450.00 

($59.48) 
$1,950.00 

($33.62) 
$8,125.00 

($70.65) 48.00$         15.00$                15.00$           
10,350$      5,850.00$           24,375.00$    144.00$       45.00$                45.00$           

PROPOSAL B:  Divide & Transplant Perennial Services
PER MAN HOUR Divide & Transplant Bed - Labor Only Divide & Transplant Bed - Labor Only

2007 45.00$                45.00$          22.00$                22.00$           
2008 45.00$                45.00$          22.00$                22.00$           
2009 45.00$               45.00$         22.00$               22.00$          

135.00$              135.00$        66.00$                66.00$           

PROPOSAL C: Four (4) Gardens Landscape Maintenance
YEAR Complete for the Sum YEAR Complete for the Sum
2007 10,000.00$        2007 4,900.00$           
2008 10,250.00$        2008 4,900.00$           
2009 10,500.00$        2009 4,900.00$           

30,750.00$         14,700.00$         
ADDITIONAL SERVICES:

CALL OUT / MAN HOUR Reglr.  Time Overtime Holiday Time Reglr.  Time Overtime Holiday Time
2007 45.00$        67.50$                90.00$          22.00$         27.00$                27.00$           
2008 45.00$        67.50$                90.00$          22.00$         27.00$                27.00$           
2009 45.00$        67.50$               90.00$         22.00$        27.00$               27.00$          

135.00$      202.50$              270.00$        66.00$         81.00$                81.00$           

**                    W.H. Canon United Lawnscape Inc



CITY OF TROY                     RFP-COT 06-52
Opening Date -- 1/03/07 RFP TABULATION Page 2 of 6
Date Prepared -- 1/24/2007 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 
2007 185,000.00$      189,810.00$       
2008 192,250.00$      187,057.00$       
2009 200,500.00$      187,057.00$       

** 577,750.00$      563,924.00$       

TERMS: Blank Net 30

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes Yes

NO BIDS:
Tiede Landscaping, Inc. ** DENOTES HIGHEST RATED BIDDER AS A RESULT OF A BEST VALUE PROCESS
Trybuski Landscaping

DMS:
Great Lakes Landscaping (Estimated Grand Total $745,743)    
  Reason:  No Certified Landscape Technician; Insufficient amount of equipment
Parks Landscaping & Snow Service(Estimated Grand Total $616,686)
  Reason:  No Certified Landscape Technician
G. Housey Company LLC (Estimated Grand Total $631,895.74)
  Reason:  Insufficient amount of equipment, no certified landscape technician

ATTEST:
Cheryl Stewart
Ron Hynd Susan Leirstein
Julie Hamilton Purchasing Director
Linda Bockstanz

G:/RFP- COT 06-06-52 Upgrade LandscapeMaintenace -Services

**                   W.H. Canon United Lawnscape Inc



CITY OF TROY                     RFP-COT 06-52
Opening Date -- 1/03/07 RFP TABULATION Page 3 of 6
Date Prepared -- 1/24/2007 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK # On File 985365428
AMOUNT $14,325.00 $14,325.00

PROPOSAL: Three (3) Year Requirements of Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services with two (2) one-year options to 
                    renew for the highest profile areas in the City of Troy.
QUALIFICATIONS QUESTIONNAIRE FILLED OUT

Yes Y or N Yes
INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX

Cannot Meet

INSURANCE VERIFICATION: Yes Y or N Yes

ALTERNATE INSURANCE
Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet XX

SITE VIST: Visited Site 9 Yrs 12/19; 12/20; 12/21/06
Did Not Visited Site

PROPOSAL A:  All Acreage - Irrigated & Non-irrigated 
Complete for the Sum Cost per Acre Complete for the Sum Cost per Acre

YEAR YEAR
2007 228,000.00$       3,665.00$      2007 314,100.00$       5,400.0$        
2008 225,000.00$       3,617.00$      2008 304,100.00$       5,400.0$        
2009 225,000.00$       3,617.00$     2009 304,100.00$       5,400.0$       

678,000.00$       10,899.00$    922,300.00$       16,200.00$    

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:
COST PER ACRE Mowing Edging Trimming Mowing Edging Trimming

2007 72.00$        30.00$                30.00$           75.00$        10.00$                10.00$           
2008 72.00$        30.00$                30.00$           75.00$        10.00$                10.00$           
2009 72.00$        30.00$               30.00$          75.00$       10.00$                10.00$          

216$           90.00$                90.00$           225.00$      30.00$                30.00$           

PROPOSAL B:  Divide & Transplant Perennial Services
PER MAN HOUR Divide & Transplant Bed - Labor Only Divide & Transplant Bed - Labor Only

2007 35.00$                35.00$           30.00$                32.00$           
2008 35.00$                35.00$           31.00$                33.00$           
2009 35.00$               35.00$          32.00$                34.00$          

105.00$              105.00$         93.00$                99.00$           

PROPOSAL C: Four (4) Gardens Landscape Maintenance
YEAR Complete for the Sum YEAR Complete for the Sum
2007 17,000.00$         2007 41,600.00$         
2008 17,000.00$         2008 41,600.00$         
2009 17,000.00$        2009 41,600.00$         

51,000.00$         124,800.00$       
ADDITIONAL SERVICES:

CALL OUT / MAN HOUR Reglr.  Time Overtime Holiday Time Reglr.  Time Overtime Holiday Time
2007 35.00$        35.00$                35.00$           30.00$        45.00$                60.00$           
2008 35.00$        35.00$                35.00$           30.00$        45.00$                60.00$           
2009 35.00$        35.00$               35.00$          30.00$       45.00$                60.00$          

105.00$      105.00$              105.00$         90.00$        135.00$              180.00$         

Great Oaks MaintenanceTorre & Bruglio



CITY OF TROY                     RFP-COT 06-52
Opening Date -- 1/03/07 RFP TABULATION Page 4 of 6
Date Prepared -- 1/24/2007 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 
2007 245,000.00$       355,700.00$       
2008 242,000.00$       345,700.00$       
2009 242,000.00$       345,700.00$       

729,000.00$       1,047,100.00$    

TERMS: Net 30 Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes Yes

G:/RFP- COT 06-06-52 Upgrade LandscapeMaintenace -Services

Great Oaks MaintenanceTorre & Bruglin



CITY OF TROY                     RFP-COT 06-52
Opening Date -- 1/03/07 RFP TABULATION Page 5 of 6
Date Prepared -- 1/24/2007 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

CHECK # 303808732
AMOUNT $14,325.00

PROPOSAL: Three (3) Year Requirements of Upgraded Landscape Maintenance Services with two (2) one-year options to 
                    renew for the highest profile areas in the City of Troy.
QUALIFICATIONS QUESTIONNAIRE FILLED OUT

Y or N Yes
INSURANCE: Can Meet XX

Cannot Meet

INSURANCE VERIFICATION Y or N Yes

ALTERNATE INSURANCE
Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

SITE VIST: Visited Site 12/18; 12/29/06; 1/2/07
Did Not Visited Site

PROPOSAL A:  All Acreage - Irrigated & Non-irrigated 
Complete for the Sum Cost per Acre

YEAR
2007 287,342.00$        4,789.00$     
2008 287,342.00$        4,789.00$     
2009 287,342.00$       4,789.00$    

862,026.00$        14,367.00$   

ADDITIONAL SERVICES:
COST PER ACRE Mowing Edging Trimming

2007 57.00$         36.00$                 27.00$          
2008 57.00$         36.00$                 27.00$          
2009 57.00$         36.00$                27.00$         

171$            108.00$               81.00$          

PROPOSAL B:  Divide & Transplant Perennial Services
PER MAN HOUR Divide & Transplant Bed - Labor Only

2007 50.00$                 80.00$          
2008 50.00$                 80.00$          
2009 50.00$                80.00$         

150.00$               240.00$        

PROPOSAL C: Four (4) Gardens Landscape Maintenance
YEAR Complete for the Sum
2007 6,280.00$            
2008 6,280.00$            
2009 6,280.00$           

18,840.00$          
ADDITIONAL SERVICES:

CALL OUT / MAN HOUR Reglr.  Time Overtime Holiday Time
2007 60.00$         80.00$                 100.00$        
2008 60.00$         80.00$                 100.00$        
2009 60.00$         80.00$                100.00$       

180.00$       240.00$               300.00$        

Commercial Mowing 



CITY OF TROY                     RFP-COT 06-52
Opening Date -- 1/03/07 RFP TABULATION Page 6 of 6
Date Prepared -- 1/24/2007 UPGRADED LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE-MOWING SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 
2007 293,622.00$       
2008 293,622.00$       
2009 293,622.00$       

880,866.00$        

TERMS: Blank

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes

G:/RFP- COT 06-06-52 Upgrade LandscapeMaintenace -Services

Commercial Mowing 



 

 

Date March 13, 200
 

TO: Phillip L. Nels
Susan A. Leir
 

FROM: Tonni L. Barth
 

SUBJECT: Standard Pu
– Contract #0

  
Background: 
 
 City Council approved the

with modem, ballot box a
(Model M650) from the 
Systems and Software, In
(Resolution #2006-06-236-

 Subsequent to delivery, the
properly for the August 8,
Elections causing a substa

 The M-650 Tabulator was 
 Payment was not made to 
 This purchase will replace 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 Funds for this equipment a

010. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal conside

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Purchase of this election e

absent voter counting boar
 Reduce lines by processin

 
Options: 
 
 City Management recomm

(M100) and one hundred e
Systems and Software, 
estimated total cost of $56
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT 
7 

on, City Manager 
stein, Purchasing Director 

olomew, City Clerk 

rchasing Resolution 4: State of Michigan – MiDEAL Program 
71B4200234 – Voting Systems 

 purchase of the Absent Ballot System (ABS), M-650 Tabulator 
nd memory device Central Count Optical Scan Voting System 
State of Michigan Contract #071B4200234 through Election 
c. (ES&S) at a budgeted cost of $65,000.00 on June 5, 2006 
E-4g). 
 Absent Ballot System (ABS), M-650 Tabulator failed to function 

 2006 State Primary and the November 7, 2006 State General 
ntial delay in the counting of absent voter ballots. 
returned to the vendor in December 2006. 
the vendor due to the malfunction of the equipment. 
the faulty equipment. 

re available in Elections, Capital Outlay Account #401192-7978-

rations associated with this item. 

quipment will increase service levels at the precinct and the 
d. (Goal II) 
g voters more quickly at the precincts. (Goal II) 

ends the purchase of six (6) additional Optical Scan Tabulators 
ighty two (182) Model VI Voting Booths with Lamp from Elections 
Inc. through the State of Michigan MiDEAL Contract at an 
,072.00. 

campbellld
Text Box
E-04d



TERMS AND CONDITIONS ..................................... CONTRACT #071B4200234  
 

G:\common\contract\2004\4200 165

APPENDIX F 
COST PROPOSAL FORM 

Page 1 of 3 
 

C.  Performance Guarantee Price Breakdown 
– Mandatory 
Items 

Model/ 
Version 

A.  Unit 
Price (ea.) 

B.  Unit 
Price (ea.) 
Including 
G and A 

Performanc
e Bond Cost 

per Unit 

Insurance 
Cost per 

Unit 

Other 
Solution 
Cost per 

Unit 
Precinct Count 
Optical Scan 
voting system 
tabulator with 
modem, ballot box 
and two(2) 
PCMCIA cards 

 
 

 
Model 
M100 

 
$5,528.00 

(see Appendix 
G, Page 1 of 

2) 

 
$5,528.00 

(see Appendix 
G, Page 1 of 

2) 

 
$233 

 
None 

 
None 

County based 
Election 
Management 
System (EMS) 

UNITY $0 $0 $0 -- -- 

Jurisdiction based 
Election 
Management 
System (EMS) 

UNITY $0 $0 $0 -- -- 

 
Price Breakdown – Optional Items Model/Version Unit Price (ea.) 
Central Count Optical Scan voting 
system 
Absentee Ballot System (ABS) 
tabulator with modem, ballot box and 
memory device 

Model M650 $30,000 - up to 20,000 Registered 
Voters 
 
$40,000 – over 20,000 Registered 
Voters  
 
$65,000 – over 100,000 Registered 
Voters 

Voting Booth Model VI $160 

Approved Ballot Storage Container Secrecy Sleeve 
$2.50 (Other containers are available 
as set forth in our January 27, 2004 
Price Clarifications Response) 

Memory Device PCMCIA Card $98 

Memory Device Transport Container  
 

$10 to $12 each, subject to approval 
by the Department of Elections 

Extra Optical Scan Tabulators Model M100 
 

$4,492 (includes base price of $3,925, 3 
year warranty and shipping.  Purchase of 
additional units will not result in an 
increase in post warranty EMS 
maintenance fees) 

Jurisdiction based Election 
Management System (EMS)   

Note: pricing for the Optional items (other than the Model M100) does not include shipping. 
 
Optional Post Warranty 
Maintenance Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

Annual maintenance price per 
Precinct Count Optical Scan unit $133 $137 $142 $147 $153 

Annual maintenance price per 
EMS  $88 $88 $91 $94 $97 

Annual maintenance price per 
High Speed ABS $2,000 $2,072 $2,144 $2,216 $2,300 



   Memorandum 
 
To: John M. Lamerato, Acting City Manager 
From: Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 
Date: May 31, 2006 
Subject: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Contract 

#071B4200234 State of Michigan and Election Systems and Software, 
Inc. – Central Count Optical Scan Voting System (Model M650) – Sole 
Source Vendor 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION
The City Clerk’s Office requests approval and authorization to purchase one (1) 
Central Count Optical Scan voting system from sole source vendor, Election 
Systems and Software, Inc. (ES&S) - 11208 John Galt Blvd. Omaha, Nebraska 
68137 at a budgeted cost of $65,000.00 to assist in the tabulation of absent voter 
ballots for all federal, state and local elections conducted in the City of Troy. This 
purchase would be effective in the 2006-07 Fiscal Year, with the City of Troy to 
take delivery on or after July 1, 2006. 
 
The Absentee Ballot System (ABS) consists of a tabulator with modem, ballot 
box and memory device, and is compatible with the Unity Software previously 
acquired by the City Clerk’s office from ES&S and uses the same ballots printed 
for the M-100 Voting Devices. The funding for the Unity Software and associated 
election equipment was provided by participation in the State of Michigan and 
Oakland County election equipment grant application (Resolution #2004-12-628-
E-15) in compliance with the Help America Vote Act (HAVA). 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The M-650 Central Count Optical Scan voting system is a State of Michigan 
approved voting system. The M-650 is the only compatible high speed ballot 
counter with the City of Troy existing equipment and would be secured as a sole 
source purchase. 
 
The City Clerk’s office noticed a significant delay in results directly related to the 
usage of the M-100 voting devices in the Absent Counting Board. The M-100 
processes ballots at approximately 4 per minute compared to the 300 ballots per 
minute processed by the M-650. The City Clerk’s office anticipates approximately 
11,000 Absent Voter ballots being cast this November with the possibility of a 

G:\   City Council\Memos\ELECTION\ELECTION Std Purchasing Agreement 4-Sole Source-Central Count 
Optical Scan Voting System.doc 



significant absent voter increase during large Presidential Elections. The M-100 
would not be adequate for processing ballot during large State-wide elections. 
 
The availability of the M-650 is extremely limited and therefore the City Clerk’s 
office believes it imperative to expeditiously move this item forward to get in the 
delivery queue. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this voting system are available, Budget Line #192-7978. 
 

G:\   City Council\Memos\ELECTION\ELECTION Std Purchasing Agreement 4-Sole Source-Central Count 
Optical Scan Voting System.doc 



campbellld
Text Box
E-05











 

 
 
March 9, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item:  Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Attached please find a request from Don Pierce, President, Troy Racquet Club, requesting 

approval of the rates for the 2007-2008 season.   
 The lease between the City of Troy and the Troy Racquet Club, LLC requires City Manager or City 

Council approval of requests for rate changes.  Council has historically approved rate change 
requests.   

 A $1/hour increase is proposed for some hours.  Many hours are proposed with no increase.   
 No increase is proposed for membership rates.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 There are no financial considerations to the City.   

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 There are no legal considerations associated with this item.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 There are no policy considerations. 

 
Options: 
 
 City management recommends approval of the proposed 2007-2008 rates for the Troy Racquet 

Club.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
E-06



March 8, 2007 
 
To: Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re: Troy Racquet Club Rates 
 
 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 







 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
March 15, 2007 
 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
   Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services  
 
SUBJECT:  Scheduling Special Meetings 

 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Each year Administration schedules special meetings for City Council to review the annual budget 

document; two meetings are usually in order. 
 The proposed budget will be distributed to Council members at the April 16, 2007 regularly 

scheduled Council meeting. 
 A public hearing for adoption of the budget will occur at the May 14, 2007 regularly scheduled 

Council meeting. 
 There are no regular Council meetings scheduled for April 23, 2007 or April 30, 2007, therefore 

these dates should work for special meetings to review the annual budget document. 
 Administration also requests place one action item on the agenda for the April 23, 2007 special 

meeting; a public hearing for preliminary approval of the Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 
Development (PUD 7) located at the southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R in Section 26, in 
the M-1 (light industrial) district.  The public hearing will be formally announced on the agenda for 
the April 2, 2007 regular City Council meeting.   

 
The reason Administration requests this is because the Planning Commission postponed the item 
at their March 6 meeting.  The petitioner’s consultants are preparing an updated submittal that will 
be submitted to the Planning Department on March 20. The submittal needs to be reviewed by 
City Management and our planning consultant.  The first possible date to have the Planning 
Commission render a recommendation is April 3, thus there is not enough time between the April 
3 Planning Commission meeting and the April 13 regular City Council meeting to announce the 
pubic hearing and meeting the notification requirements.  If City Council did not act on this item at 
the special meeting on April 23, the next possible date would be at the May 14 regular City 
Council meeting. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-02



 
 
 
 
 
 
Below is the proposed resolution that Council would consider at the April 23 special meeting: 

 
Proposed Resolution #2007-04-  
 
Moved by:  
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, SAAAM-Troy, LLC requests Preliminary Approval for a Planned Unit 
Development, pursuant to article 35.60.01, for The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit 
Development (PUD – 7), located on the south side of Big Beaver and west side of John R 
Road, located in section 26, within the M-1 zoning district, being approximately 15 acres in 
size. 
 
AND WHEREAS, the proposed PUD meets the Eligibility Requirements set forth in Article 

 35.30.00 and the General Development Standards set forth in Section 35.40.00.   
 

AND WHEREAS, City Management and the City’s Planning Consultant Richard Carlisle of 
Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. recommend approval of The Village at Big Beaver Planned 
Unit Development. 

 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Preliminary Planned Unit Development Approval for PUD-7 
The Village at Big Beaver Planned Unit Development be GRANTED.   

 
Yes:  
No:  
Absent:  

 
Options:
 
 It is recommended that City Council set special meetings for budget review on Monday, April 23, 

2007 and Monday, April 30, 2007 at 7:30 PM in the Council Board Room. 
 It is recommended that a public hearing be held at the special meeting on Monday, April 23, 2007 

for preliminary approval of the PUD at the Village at Big Beaver. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\03.19.07 - Scheduling Special Meetings 



TO: Mayor and City Council Members 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney  
DATE: March 6, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Proposed Amendment to Chapter 13- Historic Preservation  
 

 
 

Michigan law authorizes the designation of local historic districts in MCL 399.201 et. seq.  
The City of Troy has utilized this tool of historic preservation, and has several designated historic 
districts, which are set forth in Chapter 13 of the City of Troy ordinances (Section 3).  Under the 
provisions of the ordinance, the City of Troy is able to limit construction, alteration, repair, moving, or 
demolition of structures on historically significant properties that are identified as local historic 
districts.  

 
Under the historic district laws, there is a process for owners of designated local historic 

districts to request the elimination of their property from the regulations.  Such requests are 
submitted to the Historic District Study Committee for review and recommendation.  Upon receipt of 
the request, the Historic District Study Committee is required to prepare a preliminary report, and to 
hold a public hearing concerning the request to modify the historic district designation.  The report is 
then forwarded to the Planning Commission for its review (no recommendation is required of the 
Planning Commission).  Since any addition, change or modification to a designated historic district 
requires an amendment to Chapter 13 of the City of Troy Code, the Troy City Council has the final 
authority in making any changes to designated local historic districts.   
 

Charlene Harris-Freeman and Carl Freeman have made a request to eliminate the historic 
district designation of their property at 2955 Quail Run Drive.  The Troy Historic District Study 
Committee recommends removal of the property from the historic district designation (see the 
attached final report of the Troy Historic District Study Committee).  Apparently, when the property 
was initially designated as a historic district, it was based on the ownership of Stephen V.R. 
Trowbridge, an early pioneer in Troy, and instrumental in its early development.  However, 
subsequent research, documentation, and expert testimony has revealed that Stephen Trowbridge 
could not have built nor resided in this house.  Accordingly, the Study Committee agreed the 
homeowners demonstrated the historic district was not significant in the way previously defined, 
which is one of the criteria that authorize elimination of a historic district under Chapter 13. 

 
The Historic District Study Committee held a public hearing on this matter, and approved the 

final report by its Resolution #HDSC-2007-01-004 on January 10, 2007. Minutes of the meeting are 
attached. The Planning Commission has also reviewed the matter, and has no objection to the 
proposed elimination, as indicated in the minutes (draft) of its February 27, 2007 meeting.  
Additionally, as revealed by the minutes of its February 20, 2007 meeting, the Historic District 
Commission also approves the elimination of the subject property as a local historic district.   

 
We have attached a proposed amendment to Chapter 13 for your review and approval.  If 

approved by Council, the amendment will revise section 3 to eliminate 2955 Quail Run Drive as a 
historic district.  If adopted, a certified copy of section 3 as amended must be recorded with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds, as required by state law and Chapter 13. 

 
Please let us know if you have any questions about the proposed amendment. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-03



CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 13 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 13 of the 
Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Section 3 of Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation, is amended to eliminate the historic district 
located at 2955 Quail Run, as follows: 
 
(Strikeout denotes changes as a result of this amendment). 
 
3. REGULATION OF RESOURCES AND ESTABLISHED HISTORIC DISTRICTS 
 

A. There shall be no construction, alteration, repair, moving or demolition of the 
exterior features of a Historic Resource unless a certificate of appropriateness or 
a notice to proceed is issued in accordance with this chapter. The following 
Historic Districts are hereby established. 

 
Troy Union Cemetery, 1199 E. Square Lake (Tax ID: 88-20-02-301- 
009) T2N, R11E, SEC 2, PART OF SW ¼ OF SW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST 
S 89-44-00 E 750 FT FROM SW COR SEC 2, TH S 89-44-00 E 573.57 
FT, TH N 00-24-30 W 446.10 FT, TH N 88-46-00 W 365.25 FT, TH S 
40-53-00 W 133.60 FT, TH S 89-27-30 W 29.8 FT, TH S 14-06-00 W 
360.89 FT TO BEG 4.66 A 

 
6890 Norton (Tax ID: 88-20-03-226-033) T2N, R11E, SEC 3 PART OF 
NE ¼ BEG AT PT DIST S 01-15-30 E 809.30 FT & S 88-59-30 W 
276.15 FT FROM N 1/8 COR, TH S 88-59-30 W 250 FT, TH N 01-35-15 
W 136.63 FT, TH N 88-59-30 E 250 FT, TH S 01-35-15 E 136.63 FT TO 
BEG 0.78 A 
 
770 W. Square Lake (Tax ID: 88-20-04-354-011) T2N, R11E, SEC 4 
PART OF SW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST N 00-17-56 E 259.88 FT & S 89-45- 
00 E 160 FT & S 79-23-48 E 273.17 FT & S 69-02-36 E 300 FT & S 79- 
29-59 E 232.30 FT & S 89-57-22 E 136.66 FT FROM SW SEC COR, T 
N 00-12-04 E 226.40 FT, TH N 73-29-54 E 14.90 FT TH ALG CURVE 
TO RIGHT, RAD 60 FT, CHORD BEARS N 86-20-14 E 26.67 FT, DIST 
OF 26.89 FT, TH ALG CURVE TO LEFT, RAD 60 FT, CHORD BEARS 
N 74-27-32 E 50.18 FT, DIST OF 51.77 FT, TH S 40-15-30 E 40.45 FT, 
TH S 89-57-22 E 9.96 FT, TH S 00-06-01 W 215 FT, TH N 89-59-22 W 
125.75 FT, TO BEG 0.67 A5-3-90 FR 008 



 

  

2

 
330 W. Square Lake (Tax ID: 88-20-04-451-029) T2N, R11E, SEC 4 E 
169.92 FT of W 856.08 FT OF S 300 FT OF SE ¼, EXC S 60 FT 
TAKEN FOR RD 0.941A 2-6-93 FR 025 
 
6091 Livernois (Tax ID: 88-20-04-478-013) T2N, R11E, SEC 4 TROY 
ACRES S 70 FT OF LOT 1 
 
6071 Livernois (Tax ID: 88-20-04-478-017) T2N, R11E, SEC 3, 4, 9, & 
10 SUPERVISORS PLAT NO. 7 LOT 1 EXC E 27 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
6-11-96 CORR 
 
6059 Livernois (Tax ID: 88-20-04-478-018) T2N, R11E, SEC 3, 4, 9 & 
10, SUPERVISOR’S PLAT NO. 7 LOT 2 
 
90 West Square Lake (Tax ID: 88-20-04-478-022) T2N, R11E, SEC 4, 
TROY ACRES NO. 1 SLY 150 FT OF LOT 20 EXC BEG AT SW LOT 
COR, TH N 89-30-00 E 93 FT, TH N 41 FT, TH S 88-15-21 W 93.04 FT, 
TH S 38.98 FT TO BEG 6-13-96 CORR 
 
Former Stone School, 3995 South Boulevard (Tax ID: 88-20-06-101- 
001) T2N, R11E, SEC 6 W 165 FT OF N 264 FT OF NW FRC ¼ EXC 
PART TAKEN FOR HWY DESC AS BEG AT NW SEC COR, TH ELY 
91 FT ALG SEC LINE, TH SWLY TO PT IN W SEC LINE DIST OF 91 
FT SLY FROM BEG, TH NLY 91 FT ALG SEC LINE TO BEG 0.90 A 

 
Beach Road Cemetery (Tax ID: 88-20-07-451-001) T2N, R11E, SEC 7 
N 147 FT OF 167 FT OF SW ¼ OF SE ¼ 0.57A 
5875 Livernois (Tax ID: 88-20-09-232-005) T2N, R11E, SEC 3, 4, 9, & 
10 SUPERVISORS PLAT NO. 7 LOT 13 

 
46 East Square Lake Road (Tax ID: 88-20-10-101-002) T2N, R11E, 
SEC 3, 4, 9 & 10 SUPERVISORS PLAAT NO. 7, PART OF LOT 26 
BEG AT NW COR, T S 89-43-00 E 1.32 FT ALG N LOT LINE, TH S TO 
PT ON S LOT LINE 6 FT E OF SW LOT COR, TH S 89-15-00 W 6 FT 
ALG S LOT LINE, TH NLY 116.30 FT TO BEG, ALSO ALL OF LOT 27 

 
54 East Square Lake Road (Tax ID: 88-20-10-101-003) T2N, R11E, 
SEC 3, 4, 9 & 10 SUPERVISORS PLAT NO. 7 LOT 26 EXC BEG AT 
NW LOT COR, TH S 89-43-00 E 1.32 FT ALG N LOT LINE, TH S TO 
PT ON S LOT LINE 6 FT E OF SW LOT COR, TH S 89-15-00 W 6 FT 
ALG S LOT LINE, TH NLY 116.30 FT ALG W LOT LINE TO BEG 
 
90 East Square Lake Road and 110 East Square Lake Road (Tax ID 
88-20-10-101-004) T2N, R11E, SEC 3, 4, 9, & 10 SUPERVISORS 
PLAT NO. 7 LOT 25 
 
126 East Square Lake Road (Tax ID: 88-20-10-101-005) T2N, R11E, 
SEC 3, 4, 9, & 10 SUPERVISOR’S PLAT NO. 7 LOT 24 

 



 

  

3

138 East Square Lake Road (Tax ID: 88-20-10-101-006) T2N, R11E, 
SEC 3, 4, 9, & 10 SUPERVISORS PLAT NO. 7 LOT 23 

 
160 East Square Lake Road (Tax ID: 88-20-10-101-043) T2N, R11E, 
SEC 10 PART OF NW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST N 00-14-00 W 33 FT FROM 
NE COR OF LOT 23 OF ‘SUPERVISOR’S PLAT NO 7’, TH S 89-43-00 
E 145 FT, TH S 00-14-00 E 300 FT, TH N 89-43-00 W 145 FT, TH N 
00-14-00 W 300 FT TO BEG 1 A 

 
101 East Square Lake Road (Tax ID: 88-20-03-301-077) T2N, R11E, 
SEC 3, SUPERVISOR’S PLAT NO. 7 E 30 FT OF LOT 20 EXC S 41 FT 
TAKEN FOR RD, ALSO LOT 21 EXC S 41 FT TAKEN FOR RD, ALSO 
N 73.43 FT OF LOT 22 
 
Sylvan Glen Clubhouse, 5725 Rochester Road (Tax ID: 88-20-10- 
200-001) T2N, R11E, SEC 10 NE /4 160 A 

 
5871 Hilmore (Tax ID: 88-20-11-103-014) T2N, R11E, SEC 11 PART 
OF NW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST S 01-33-00 E 833 FT FROM NE COR OF 
W ½ OF NW ¼, TH S 88-55-00 W 330 FT, TH S 01-33-00 E 200 FT, 
TH N 88-55-00 E 330 FT, TH N 01-33-00 W 200 FT TO BEG 1.55 A 

 
Hill House, 4320 John R (Tax ID: 88-20-13-303-014) T2N, R11E, SEC 
13 PART OF SW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST N 00-49-43 E 1544.71 FT FROM 
SW SEC COR, TH S 89-10-17 E 220 FT, TH N 00-49-43 E 200 FT, TH 
N 89-10-17 W 220 FT, TH S 00-49-43 W 200 FT TO BEG EXC W 50 
FT TAKEN FOR RD 0.77 A 

 
4820 Livernois (Tax ID: 88-20-15-102-010) T2N, R11E, SEC 15 
BELZAIR SUB NO 1 OUTLOT C EXC THAT PART DESC AS BEG AT 
NE COR OF OUTLOT C, TH S 00-06-40 W 164.45 FT ALG E LINE OF 
OUTLOT C, TH S 89-46-10 W 24.14 FT, TH N 00-00-16 W 97.30 FT, 
TH N 89-59-44 E 3.00 FT, TH N 00-00-16 W 36.52 FT, TH S 80-03-40 
W 3.04 FT, TH N 00-00-16 W 27.00 FT TO N LINE OF OUTLOT C, TH 
N 80-03-40 E 24.54 FT TO BEG 
 
Emerson Church – Unitarian Universalist, 4320 Livernois (Tax ID: 
88-20-15-351-002) T2N, R11E, SEC 15 & 16 MC CORMICK & 
LAWRENCE LITTLE FARMS SUB LOTS 46 & 47 EXC W 27 FT 
TAKEN FOR RD, ALSO ALL OF LOT 48, ALSO W 85.58 FT OF LOT 
49 
 
Museum Properties - Caswell House, Poppleton School, Old City 
Hall, Old Troy Church and Parsonage, 60 W. Wattles (Tax ID: 88-20- 
16-478-033) T2N, R11E, SEC 16 LAKEWOOD SUB LOT 89 TO 92 
INCL, ALSO LOTS 131 TO 134 INCL EXC S 27 FT TAKEN FOR RD, 
ALSO N 30.75 FT OF LOT 138, ALSO LOTS 139 TO 142 INCL, EXC E 
27 FT TAKEN FOR LIVERNOIS RD 

 
2955 Quail Run (Tax ID: 88-20-18-101-035) T2N, R11E, SEC 18 



 

  

4

STRAWBERRY HILL LOT 37 EXC BEG AT NE LOT COR, TH S 00-16- 
39 W 191.86 FT, TH N 89-43-00 W 44.61 FT, TH N 13-22-02 E 196.97 
FT TO BEG 
 
4800 Beach (Tax ID: 88-20-18-203-011) T2N, R11E, SEC 18 PART OF 
NW ¼ OF NE ¼ BEG AT PT DIST S 02-48-55 E 945.50 FT & N 89-05- 
05 E 43 FT FROM N ¼ COR, TH N 89-05-05 E 152.73 FT, TH ALG 
CURVE CONCAVE SLY, RAD 250 FT, CHORD BEARS S 85-09-38 E 
50.14 FT, DIST OF 50.22 FT, TH S 79-24-20 E 13.04 FT, TH S 02-48- 
55 E 203.88, TH S 87-11-05 W 215 FT, TH N 02-48-55 W 218.65 FT 
TO BEG 1.06 A 
 
Crooks Road Cemetery (Tax ID: 88-20-20-226-022) T2N, R11E, SEC 
20 PART OF NE ¼ BEG AT PT DIST N 00-43-30 E 1101.84 FT FROM 
E ¼ COR, TH N 88-08-30 W 310.03 FT, TH ALG CURVE TO RIGHT, 
RAD 100 FT, CHORD BEARS N 43-08-30 W 141.42 FT, DIST OF 
157.08 FT, TH N 01-51-30 E 180 FT, TH ALONG CURVE TO LEFT, 
RAD 180 FT, CHORD BEARS N 43-08-30 W 254.56 FT, DIST OF 
282.74 FT, TH N 01-51-30 E 179.31 FT, TH S 87-06-30 E 577.09 FT, 
TH S 00-43-30 E 629.54 FT TO BEG 6.71 A 

 
3645 Crooks (Tax ID: 88-20-20-226-038) T2N, R11E, SEC 20 TROY 
HIGHLANDS NO. 1 LOT 70 

 
839 W. Wattles (Tax ID: 88-20-21-101-024) T2N, R11E, SEC 21 PART 
OF NW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST S 89-58-00 E 535.00 FT FROM NW SEC 
COR, TH S 89-58-00 E 287.00 FT, TH S 00-13-00 W 607.22 FT, TH N 
89-58-00 W 287.00 FT, TH N 00-13-00 E 607.22 FT TO BEG EXC N 
245 FT OF W 150 FT THEREOF, ALSO EXC N 60 FT TAKEN FOR RD 
2.97 A 
 
3864 Livernois (Part of Tax ID: 88-20-22-101-005) Part of the NW ¼ of Sec 22, T.2N 
R11E, City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan beginning at the point which is N 
00°20’25” E 1771.60 ft. along the West line of Sec.  
22 from the West ¼ corner of Sec 22, T2N R11E; thence, continuing along the West 
line of Sec. 22 N 00°20’25” E 330.00 ft.; thence S 89°25’55” E 225.00 ft.; thence S 00° 
20’25” W 330.00 ft.; thence N 89°25’55” W 225 ft. to the point of beginning.  Containing 
74,247 square feet – 1.705 acres, and subject to an easement over the North 30 ft. for 
ingress and egress and public utilities. 
 
 
36551 Dequindre (Tax ID: 88-20-25-230-032) T2N, R11E, SEC 25 
PART OF NW ¼ BEG AT PT DIST S 00-00-08 E 1028.22 FT & S 89- 
23-59 W 60 FT FROM NE SEC COR, TH S 00-00-08 E 300 FT, TH S 
89-23-59 W 245 FT, TH N 00-00-08 W 300 FT, TH N 89-23-59 E 245 
FT TO BEG 1.69 A 

 
1934 Livernois (Tax ID: 88-20-27-351-016) T2N, R11E, SEC 27 
ADDISON HEIGHTS SUB N 81 FT OF W 108 FT OF LOT 53 

 



 

  

5

Perrin Cemetery (Coolidge) (Tax ID: 88-20-32-152-002) T2N, R11E, 
SEC 32 PART OF W ½ BEG AT W ¼ COR, TH N 00-03-00 E 165 FT, 
TH E 140 FT, TH S 00-03-00 W 165 FT, TH S 88-44-30 E 25 FT, TH S 
01-06-30 W 67.5 FT, TH N 88-31-00 W 165 FT, TH N 00-03-00 E 66 FT 
TO BEG 0.78 

 
B. Except as provided in subsection C, all of the Historic Districts established as of 

July 21, 2003 shall be exempt from the requirements and provisions of Section 
14 of this Chapter entitled “Establishment, Modification or Elimination of a 
Historic District”. Such exempt Historic Districts shall not be within the purview of 
any Historic District Study Committee and shall remain under the sole jurisdiction 
of the Historic District Commission, except to the extent otherwise provided in 
Section 5 of this Chapter for the Historic Districts included in the Troy Museum 
and Historic Village. 

 
C. A person or entity that owns a resource within an Historic District established as 

of July 21, 2003, may submit a request to the Commission to modify or eliminate 
such Historic District. In such cases, the Historic District may only be eliminated 
or modified in accordance with Section 14. 

 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, at the 
time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may be 
consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such proceedings 
were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, affect, or abate any 
pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted under any ordinance 
specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this ordinance adopting this regulation, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may 
be instituted and all prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be 
continued, for offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the commission of 
such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held invalid 
or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan, at 
a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 
______ day of _____________, 2007. 



 

  

6

 
 
      ______________________________ 
      Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 
                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – DRAFT JANUARY 10, 2007 
 
This rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held 
Wednesday, January 10, 2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was 
called to order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Linda Rivetto 
   Bob Miller 
 
  ABSENT Paul Lin 
    
      STAFF:    Loraine Campbell 
 
      GUESTS:    Carl Freeman, 2955 Quail Run 
         Dale R. Zygnowicz 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2007-01-001 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Lin be excused  
Yes: 5⎯ Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Rivetto, and Miller  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2007-01-002 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Rivetto 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of October 3, 2006 be approved  
Yes: 5⎯ Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Rivetto, and Miller 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 4820 Livernois 
Loraine Campbell reported that Wil Bedford has a potential buyer for his 
property. The buyer is investigating the benefits of purchasing a home with local 
historic designation. Until both Mr. Bedford and his buyer have reached an 

1 



agreement, the committee has been asked to not proceed with preparing a 
preliminary report to de-list the resource. However, the committee may wish to 
continue gathering information to rectify inaccuracies in records regarding the 
resource. 

 
B. New Above Ground Survey Assignments 

No additional Above Ground Surveys were submitted. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING 2955 QUAIL RUN 

The Public Hearing to finalize the Preliminary Report to de-list the historic 
resource at 2955 Quail Run was called to 7:40 PM. The owner of the resource, 
Charlene Harris-Freeman and her husband, Carl Freeman were both present. 
 
The committee noted that the only comment received regarding the Preliminary 
Report was Resolution #HDC-2006-11-003 from the Historic District Commission 
that stated: 

 
RESOLVED, That the historic resource at 2955 Quail Run is conservatively 107 
years old and is therefore a relatively rare resource in the City of Troy.  The 
Historic District Study Committee should include in the final report the ratio of 
number of structures of that age to the number on non-historic residences in Troy 
to demonstrate the historic value of the resource by virtue of its rarity. 
 
The Committee discussed this suggestion. Based on the incomplete records 
available today, a centennial house in Troy represents less than one percent of 
the homes in the city.  Mr. and Mrs. Freeman argued that age alone should not 
be considered a factor for listing.  
 

Resolution #HDSC-2007-01-003 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded No Second 
 
RESOLVED, That the final sentence in the Statement of Significance be amended 
to read, “While the resource is conservatively one hundred years old and 
represents a rare resource in Troy, the homeowners have proven to the 
satisfaction of the committee that the resource is not significant in the way 
previously defined. 
  
 
MOTION FAILED 

 
Resolution #HDSC-2007-01-004 
Moved by Hupman  
Seconded by Miller 
 

2 



RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Report to de-list the historic resource at 2955 
Quail Run be approved as the Final Report and recommended to the Historic 
District Commission and Planning Commission for their recommendations to City 
Council. 
   
Yes: 3⎯ Lindsey, Hupman, and Miller 
No: 1⎯ Rivetto 
Abstain 1⎯ Harris-Freeman 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
The Public Hearing was adjourned at 8:10 PM. 
 
 
The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:25 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, February 6, 2006 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

3 



















TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – DRAFT FEBRUARY 20, 2007 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, February 
20, 2007 at City Hall. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at 7:37 P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Sabah Jihad 
   Paul Lin 
   Ann Partlan 
   Gary Castile  
                        Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager            
 
    ABSENT Muriel Rounds  
    

      GUEST    Charlene Harris Freeman, 2955 Quail Run, Troy 
        Carl Freeman, 2955 Quail Run, Troy 
        Audre Zembrzuski, 2842 Shadywood, Troy 
 
Resolution #HDC-200-02-001 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Rounds and Hudson be excused. 
Yes: 5⎯ Chambers, Jihad, Lin, Partlan, and Castile. 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2007-02-002 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Castile 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the November 21, 2006 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 5⎯ Chambers, Jihad, Lin, Partlan, and Castile.. 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Final Report from the Historic District Study Committee re: 2955 Quail Run 
The Commission was provided the Final Report recommending that the historic 
resource at 2955 Quail Run be eliminated as a historic district and the draft 
minutes from the Historic District Study Committee of January 10, 2007. Mr. and 
Mrs. Freeman emphasized their concerns and desire to have the property de-
listed. Paul Lin read a short memo to the Commission stating his long-term 

1 



concerns if the Historic District was eliminated. See attached memo. Sabah Jihad 
stated that he hoped that the Commission would act to assist the homeowners. 
 

Resolution #HDC-2006-11-003 
Moved by Jihad  
Seconded by Castile 
 
RESOLVED, That the Historic District Commission approve the final report of the 
Historic District Study Committee to de-list the historic resource at 2955 Quail 
Run as submitted and recommend Troy City Council to amend Chapter 13, The 
Historic Preservation Ordinance to delete the Historic District identified as (Tax 
ID: 88-20-18-101-035) T2N, R11E, SEC 18 STRAWBERRY HILL LOT 37 EXC BEG 
AT NE LOT COR, TH S 00-16-39 W 191.86 FT, TH N 89-43-00 W 44.61 FT, TH N 13-
22-02 E 196.97 FT TO BEG. 
 
Yes: 4⎯ Chambers, Jihad, Partlan, and Castile. 
No: 0 
Abstain: 1⎯ Lin 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. Update re. 4820 Livernois 
Loraine Campbell reported that Mr. Wil Bedford (correct spelling) has sold his 
property. The new owner wishes to maintain the historic designation. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Review of Troy and Birmingham’s Historic Preservation Ordinance 
Discussion was deferred until the next meeting. Loraine Campbell will ask Allan 
Motzny to participate in this discussion. 
 
 

The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:20 PM. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, March 20, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall in Conference 
Room C. 

 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

2 





 

 
 
March 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:    Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item:  Third Addendum To Tennis Lease 
 
 
Background: 
 
 A ground lease exists between the City and Don Pierce, President, Troy Racquet Club.   
 The lease, if options are extended, expires in 2014. 
 The lease allows operation of the Troy Racquet Club for 33 weeks each year.   
 Mr. Pierce requests a third amendment to the lease which includes: 

o Extending the operation one week each year (34 weeks).  Other indoor tennis facilities 
typically operate on a 34-week season and Troy Racquet Club would like to be 
consistent with other indoor facilities.   

o Adding two (2) options of two (2) years each.  The additional options are being 
requested so that the $100,000 in improvements planned can be amortized over a 
longer period provided options are exercised.   

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 This amendment results in an additional minimum rent of $781.25 per year to the City.   

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Legal considerations have been addressed through the amendment.   

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Approval of the amendment will result in one less week of outdoor play at the Civic Center.  As 

other facilities are available and outdoor weather is unpredictable in early spring, this should not 
cause hardship to Parks and Recreation activities.   

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-04



March 12, 2007 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
Re:  Troy Racquet Club 
 
 
Options: 
 
 City Management recommends approval of the amendment.   

 
Where legal review is necessary: 
 
Approved as to Form and Legality:       
      Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 









































































TO: Mayor and Members of City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: March 12, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment 
 

 
 On Monday, March 12, 2007, our office received a settlement offer from Ed Lennon, who 
represents Hooters of Troy.  According to the e-mail, the Troy City Council has a one time only 
opportunity to settle the case before the arguments at the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Settlement of 
the case will occur ONLY if Council approves the attached consent judgment that Mr. Lennon 
drafted on behalf of his client at the March 19, 2007 City Council meeting.   
  

The terms of this proposed consent judgment are as follows:   
 

• Troy must approve the requested transfer of the Sign of the Beefcarver Class C 
Liquor license (Wagon Wheel) to Hooters of Troy.  

• Upon approval of the requested transfer, Hooters will dismiss its appeal of the state 
court case, as well as dismiss its federal case against the City.   Hooters would also 
forego any claims for damages, costs, or attorney fees from the City.   

• Within 30 days of MLCC’s approval of the requested transfer of the liquor license, 
Hooters would place the liquor license for the John R. Road location into escrow.  
Hooters further agrees to operate only one Hooters restaurant in the City of Troy.     

• Hooters would remove the pole sign that currently extends over the roof of the 
building, as well as the pole sign that is located in the parking lot to the east of the 
building, which is visible from Big Beaver Road.   

• Hooters would be allowed to replace the pole signs with the following:  
o A 36 inch “Hooters” wall sign to be constructed at the northwest corner of the 

building. 
o Two sets of orange lettered “Exist/Entrance” signs that will be placed near the 

curb cuts for Rochester and Big Beaver Roads.   
 
If Council elects to settle this case, then Hooters would be allowed to replace the larger of the 

two pole signs  (the sign over the roof) with a sign that has “Hooters” in 36 inch high letters.  This 
lettering is consistent with the size of the lettering for “Hooters” that is currently on the larger pole 
sign.  This new wall sign would be located at the northwest corner of the building.  This proposed 
replacement sign would exceed the allowable wall signage that is permitted under the City of Troy 
ordinances- 113 square feet of wall signage.  The proposed consent judgment also does not provide 
any specifics as to the size and character of the directional signs.   In the previous consent judgment 
proposal, commercial messages were prohibited on the directional signs.  That language has been 
omitted from this settlement proposal.  In addition, the previous draft of the consent judgment also 
prohibited Hooters from seeking additional signage in the future.  That language has also been 
removed from the current proposal.  Additionally, the authority of the City to remove any non-
conforming pole signs has also been removed from the current proposal.   

 
If you have any questions concerning the proposed consent judgment please let us know. 

campbellld
Text Box
F-05



UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
EASTERN DISTRICT OF MICHIGAN 

SOUTHERN DIVISION 
 

HOOTERS OF TROY INC.,  
       CASE NUMBER 06-CV- 14945 
  Plaintiff,     HON. JULIAN A. COOK 
v.       MAGIST. R. STEVEN WHALEN 
 
CITY OF TROY,  
 
  Defendant. 
________________________________/ 
EDWARD G. LENNON PLLC 
Edward G. Lennon (P42278) 
Attorney for Plaintiff 
HYMAN LIPPITT, P.C. 
Stephen McKenney  (P65673) 
Co-Counsel for Plaintiff 
322 N. Old Woodward 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
248.723.1276 
 
City of Troy – City Attorney’s Office 
Lori Grigg Bluhm (P46908) 
Christopher J. Forsyth  (P63025) 
Attorney for Defendant 
500 W. Big Beaver Road 
Troy, MI 48084 
(248) 524-3320 
_________________________________/ 
 

JUDGMENT BY CONSENT 
 

   At a session of said Court, held in the City of Detroit, 
   Eastern District of Michigan on ______________. 
 
   PRESENT:  Hon.       
      DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 
 

HOOTERS OF TROY INC. and the CITY OF TROY consent to the entry 

of this Consent Judgment.   

 
 



RECITALS 

1. Plaintiff, Hooters of Troy Inc. (“Hooters”), is a Georgia corporation 

and a wholly owned subsidiary of Hooters of America Inc., a Georgia corporation.  

2. Plaintiff currently operates a Hooters restaurant located at 1686 

John R Road in the City of Troy, Oakland County, Michigan. Plaintiff also 

currently holds a Class C Liquor License for this restaurant.   

3. Plaintiff also operates a Hooters restaurant located at 2946-2950 

Rochester Road (formerly the Wagon Wheel Saloon) in Troy.  This new Hooters 

location currently operates its restaurant business without the sale of liquor. 

4. On January 6, 2006, Plaintiff entered into an agreement with Sign 

of the Beefcarver, Inc. (“Beefcarver”) to purchase Beefcarver’s Class C and SDM 

Liquor Licenses and all permits (collectively the “Liquor License”) which  

Beefcarver was using at a restaurant named the Wagon Wheel Saloon and 

which it operated at 2946-2950 Rochester Road in Troy.  The Wagon Wheel 

Saloon closed on or about May 31, 2006. 

5. In addition to the agreement to purchase the Liquor License, 

Plaintiff also agreed to lease the property at 2946-2950 Rochester Road in which 

the Wagon Wheel Restaurant was located.  

6. As required by the Michigan Liquor Control Code, MCL 436.1101 

et. seq., Plaintiff submitted an application to the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission, seeking a transfer of said Liquor License from Beefcarver to 

Hooters.   

 2



7. Pursuant to MCL 436.1501(2), such an application requires 

approval from the Troy City Council, the legislative body of the City of Troy.  At 

the June 19, 2006 regular City Council meeting, the Troy City Council denied 

Hooter’s request to transfer the Liquor License from Beefcarver.      

8. On June 27, 2006, Plaintiff filed a lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit 

Court.  Plaintiff sought an order of superintending control approving the transfer 

of the Liquor License to Hooters.  This case was dismissed by Oakland County 

Circuit Court Judge John McDonald.  Plaintiff has appealed Judge McDonald’s 

dismissal, and the case is pending oral argument in the Michigan Court of 

Appeals (Docket no. 272155). 

9. On November 2, 2006, Plaintiff initiated this 42 U.S.C. § 1983 

lawsuit against Defendant.   

10. After extensive negotiation, the parties have reached a settlement 

of this §1983 lawsuit and the state court action.  The parties agree that Troy City 

Council shall approve Plaintiff’s application to transfer the Liquor License 

provided that Plaintiff complies with certain conditions that are further defined in 

this Consent Judgment.  The parties also agree that this Consent Judgment shall 

be binding upon the parties, their successors and assigns.   

11. The Court has reviewed the proposed Consent Judgment, and has 

verified that it currently possesses jurisdiction over this action, and has approved 

the form and substance of this Consent Judgment. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED as follows: 

 3



1. This Consent Judgment shall constitute the final judgment of the 

Federal District Court, Eastern District of Michigan, and resolves all 

claims between the parties. 

2. With the entry of this Consent Judgment by the Court, the Troy City 

Council approves Plaintiff’s application to transfer the Liquor License 

from the Beefcarver to Hooters.  After such time, the Troy City Clerk 

shall immediately forward a resolution of approval of the transfer to the 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission.   

3. The City of Troy will reasonably cooperate and file such other 

additional or revised documents that reflect the above referenced 

approval, and as required by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission 

to complete or expedite the Liquor License transfer. 

4. In consideration of the approval of the transfer of the Liquor License by 

the City of Troy, Plaintiff agrees to the following: 

a. Plaintiff relinquishes any claim of damages against Defendant and 

shall dismiss with prejudice its claims against the City of Troy filed 

with this Court. 

b. Plaintiff will dismiss with prejudice its claim of appeal filed with the 

Michigan Court of Appeals in the state court action, which is entitled 

In Re Hooters of Troy Inc., Oakland County Circuit Court No. 06-

75618 AS, Michigan Court of Appeals No. 272155. 

c. Plaintiff will cease its operation of a Hooters Restaurant at 1868 

John R Road, and place its Class C liquor license for that location 

 4



into escrow with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission within 30 

days after approval by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission of 

the transfer of the Liquor License.  This Consent Judgment does 

not address any future transfer or sale of the John R. escrowed 

license, and any sale or transfer of said liquor license shall comply 

with the Michigan Liquor Control Code.      

d. After the John R restaurant is closed, Plaintiff shall be permitted to 

operate only one Hooters restaurant in Troy, which currently is 

located at 2946-2950 Rochester Road. 

e. Upon approval of the transfer of the Liquor License by the City of 

Troy, Plaintiff shall remove the two pole signs (collectively Pylon 

Signs F & G”), which were erected at this location.  More 

specifically, the first pole sign Plaintiff shall remove is located a 

short distance from the restaurant, is in close proximity to the 

intersection of Rochester and Big Beaver Roads, and is the larger 

of the two pole signs.  The second pole sign Plaintiff shall remove is 

located in close proximity to the northeast parking entrance to the 

restaurant, which also curb cuts on Big Beaver Road, and is the 

smaller of the two pole signs.  These two pole signs are further 

described as F, SF Pylon, and G, DF Pylon, in the attached plan 

(Ex. A, incorporated by reference). 

f. Instead of Pylon Signs F & G, Plaintiff shall add 36 inch channel 

letters which spell the word “Hooters” on the northwest corner of 

 5



the building facing north which currently has no signage.  In 

addition, Hooters will add “Entrance/Exit” signs to the parking lot in 

orange letters at the curb cuts on both Big Beaver and Rochester 

Roads. 

5. The parties agree to waive all costs and attorney fees incurred as a 

result of the case. 

6. By entry of this Consent Judgment, the parties, their agents, 

successors, assignees waive and discharge any and all claims that 

they may have against the other party, including its officials and 

employees, relating to the subject of this lawsuit. 

7. In order to effectuate the intent of this Consent Judgment and to 

reconcile any differences of the parties that may arise in connection 

with the performance of this Consent Judgment, this Court shall retain 

jurisdiction of this action.   

 

 

__________________________ 
DISTRICT COURT JUDGE 

Approved for entry: 
 
HOOTERS OF TROY INC.  
 
By:        

Coby G. Brooks, President  
 
 

CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:   _______________________________________ 

 6



 Louise Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk  
 

 7









TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: March 12, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Food Service Agreement with Kosch 
Special Events, LLC    

 
 
 
 
 

On February 26, 2007, City Council approved a Resolution for a two (2) year contract 
with Kosch Catering & Corporate Dining for food service at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, with 
an option to renew for a two (2) year period thereafter.  City Council also authorized the 
Mayor and City Clerk to execute the contract when in acceptable form. 

Our office has been working with the attorney representing Kosch, John Carlin, to 
negotiate a contract.  As a result of this negotiation, the following contract is proposed for 
your consideration.  There are some modifications from the original bid documents, so it is 
being brought to City Council for consideration and/or ratification.   

First, the Contractor’s name in the Agreement has been changed from Kosch 
Catering & Corporate Dining to Kosch Special Events, LLC.  The MLCC liquor license 
application has been filed in the name of Kosch Special Events, LLC, and consistency with 
the City of Troy’s resolution and the liquor license application will eliminate any unnecessary 
confusion.  

Previously, the bid award provided Kosch with a two year contract, with a two year 
option to renew.  However, this contract period has been extended in the proposed contract 
to 32 months- from May 1, 2007 to December 31, 2009.  This modification to the contract 
period is recommended, in light of the MLCC’s expiration date for liquor licenses.  If a new 
contractor is subsequently recommended, an expiration date of December 31 would provide 
sufficient time to complete the liquor license application process before the spring opening of 
the golf course.   

A proposed Reconsideration of Resolution and a proposed Resolution to Amend 
Reconsideration Resolution are attached for your review. If you have any questions, please 
let us know.  

campbellld
Text Box
F-06



 
AGREEMENT 

FOOD SERVICE AT SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE  
 
 

THIS AGREEMENT  entered into on________________, 2007, between the 

CITY OF TROY, 500 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, Michigan  48084, hereinafter 

referred to as the “City”, and Kosch Special Events, L.L.C., a Michigan Limited 

Liability Company, whose address is 1450 E. South Street, Troy, Michigan  

48085, as the Food Service Provider for Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, hereinafter 

referred to as the “Operator”; 

WITNESSETH: 

                In consideration of the City granting to the Operator the exclusive 

privilege and right of conducting the sale of food, beverages including alcoholic 

beverages, vending machines, and catering rights for golf outings, the parties 

agree as follows: 

1. REVENUE PLAN, COMMENCEMENT DATE AND RETURN SCHEDULE:   

The Operator agrees to pay the City five (5%) percent of gross revenue over 

$125,000.00 and seven and one-half (7 ½ %) percent of gross revenue over 

$150,000.00 annually.  

The Agreement shall commence on May 1, 2007, or as soon as 

reasonably possible after that date.  The return schedule shall be firm for the 

entire Agreement period. 

 The golf course is in operation for eight (8) months from April 1st to 

November 30th each year. In 2007 and thereafter, the Operator shall pay the City 

 1



any profit share due the City by the 31st day of December in the calendar year 

the profit share was based upon.  

2.  USE OF KITCHEN AND LIMITATIONS:  The Operator shall provide a  

food/beverage service to all users of the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  The 

Operator shall be the exclusive caterer of commercially prepared food/beverages 

served at the golf course. The Operator’s services shall include preparation, 

delivery, and clean up of food and/ or beverages. 

Operator shall purchase and install protective weather screening for the 

patio area of the outside grill at Operator’s expense.  The protective weather 

screening material and design must first be approved by the Parks and 

Recreation Director or her designee.  The protective weather screening shall 

become the property of the City as a fixture after installation. Methods of 

attachment shall be pre-approved by the Parks and Recreation Director or her 

designee. 

3. GROUP GOLF PACKAGES: User groups that wish to have 

food/beverages catered for their golf outings shall make arrangements, including 

payment, directly with the Operator. The City and Operator will coordinate 

outings and provide package pricing, including golf and food service to 

customers. The Parks and Recreation Director, or her designee, shall approve 

the pricing on golf packages and the dates available for the scheduling of golf 

package outings.  Customers may pay either party for these events.  The party 

receiving payment will pay the amount designated on the group package pricing 

for the other party’s portion of the food/beverage service or golf fees.  Payment of 

 2



the amounts for the other party’s services shall be made within one (1) month of 

receipt of payment by the other party. 

4.  HOURS OF OPERATION:  The operating schedule for the Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course Food Service shall be as follows, unless the Parks & Recreation 

Director, or her designee, unilaterally amends the schedule based on changed 

conditions and provides written notice to the Operator:               

MINIMUM OPENING DATES AND TIMES 
 
April 1st – April 21st:    Monday thru Sunday 7:30 am  
 
April 22nd – May 16th:    Monday thru Sunday 7:00 am 
 
May 17th – June 6th:    Monday thru Sunday 6:30 am 
 
June 7th – September 5th:    Monday thru Friday 6:30 am 
  Saturday and Sunday 6:00 am 
 
August 23rd – September 5th:    Monday thru Sunday 6:30 am 
 
September 6th – September 26th:    Monday thru Sunday 7:00 am 
 
September 27th – November 15th:   Monday thru Sunday 7:30 am 
 
Closing time shall be no earlier than one (1) hour after sunset. 
 
Note:  Opening dates and times are subject to change to meet user demand.      

The City shall unilaterally determine opening dates and times.  The Parks and 

Recreation Director, or her designee, will notify Operator within 72 hours of 

opening dates and times.     

4. OPERATING TIMES FOR OUTSIDE GRILL AND BEVERAGE CART 
 

Beverage carts are expected to be open and running daily.   The outside 

grill is to be open for special events and at other times when warranted. The 

Parks and Recreation Director, or her designee, shall have the discretion to 

 3



determine hours of operation.  The Parks and Recreation Director, or her 

designee, shall provide Operator with a schedule of hours of operation prior to 

the effective date of the Agreement. Upon agreement with the Director of Golf, 

the schedule may be changed due to weather and/or special circumstances.    

Operator shall have the option to assume the responsibility of vending  

machines on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course property during the normal golf 

season, including, but not limited to, contracting with vendors, maintaining the 

vending machines and collecting any fees for the operation of the vending 

machines, except that the Parks and Recreation Director, or her designee, shall 

have the sole discretion as to where the vending machines may be placed on the 

property. If the Operator notifies the Parks and Recreation Director that it does 

not desire to handle vending machines on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, the 

City shall have sole authority to bid out, contract for or in any other way manage 

vending machine on the property.  

5.  MAINTENANCE OF PREMISES:  The Operator shall maintain the interior of 

the kitchen/bar/dining area, vending area(s), outside food service area, inside 

rest rooms, and all adjacent areas in a clean and neat manner and in compliance 

with all City ordinances, State law and applicable health codes, standards and 

regulations.  The Operator shall maintain the trash receptacles in all 

kitchen/bar/restroom/dining areas and be responsible for trash removal to the 

dumpsters.  The Operator is responsible for cleaning all equipment and reporting 

any type of mechanical problem with the equipment or the facilities to the Parks 

and Recreation Department.   

 4



6.  OPERATOR’S EMPLOYEES:  The Operator shall provide appropriate 

uniforms and name badges for its employees and shall require that all employees 

maintain themselves and their uniforms in a clean and neat manner.  The 

Operator is responsible for all wages, benefits or any other condition of 

employment for Operator’s employees, and acknowledges that its employees 

have no employment relationship with the City. The City shall have the right to 

mandate that the Operator terminate an employee for inappropriate behavior.  All 

employees serving alcoholic beverages shall do so within the guidelines of the 

State of Michigan Liquor Laws and may be terminated due to violations of state 

and  local law. 

7. INSPECTION AND REPAIRS:  The City shall have the right to enter and/or 

inspect the kitchen area at any reasonable time and make repairs to the facility 

and City owned equipment  and/or improvements for non-normal wear and tear 

items, as it deems necessary.  The Operator will pay the expense of periodic 

maintenance caused by normal wear and tear of the kitchen equipment. Other 

repairs to equipment or facilities will be done at the City’s expense unless it is 

determined that the repair was necessary due to the misuse or negligence of the 

Operator, its employees and/or agents in which event the Operator shall be 

responsible for the costs of said repairs.  The City will make every effort to notify 

the Operator in advance if non-City employees will be entering onto the premises 

at the City’s request for inspection or to complete repairs.  Any additions, repairs 

and/or improvements made on the premises are fixtures and remain the property 

of the City. 

 5



8.  SERVING OF ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES: 

(A) The City shall require the Operator to obtain a municipal golf course liquor 

license (MCL 436.1515) for the premises known as Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

and keep the license in good standing under Operator’s name during the term of 

the Agreement.  Any violations of the State of Michigan Liquor laws by Operator 

or its employees will be considered  a violation of the Agreement and may result 

in termination of the Agreement at the City’s discretion.  Employees serving 

alcoholic beverages shall do so in compliance with the State of Michigan Liquor 

laws, administrative rules and procedures and guidelines as set forth by the 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission.  Serving violations by an employee will be 

just cause for termination of the Agreement at the City’s discretion, and the 

Operator shall be deemed responsible if such conduct occurs.  The Operator 

shall in no way jeopardize the liquor license obtained for the Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course facility. 

 

(B) The City grants to the Operator the possession and control of the Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Course, which includes the Outside Grill, for the limited purpose of 

controlling and monitoring the consumption of alcohol on the premises, including 

the collection of money for alcoholic beverages.  The City reserves to itself the 

exclusive right to operate the golf business at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, 

including, but not limited to, the collection of all fees related to playing of golf and 

the operation of a pro shop.  

 

 6



(C) The Operator agrees to assume the responsibilities of a liquor licensee at 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, and agrees to be responsible for all sanctions 

and/or penalties assessed for alleged violations of the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission’s Administrative Rules and Regulations and/or federal, state, or 

local laws concerning the sale of alcohol at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  This 

includes the assumption of a licensee’s responsibility for the actions of the 

Operator’s employees, agents and/or representatives who sell alcohol. 

 

(D) The Operator agrees that there shall be no sales of alcohol on the Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Course proper, but that the Operator, if licensed to do so by the 

Michigan Liquor Control Commission, may sell up to two beers per golfer at the 

Club House or the Outside Grill, which the golfer can then take onto the golf 

course for consumption. 

 

(E) The City agrees to provide the Operator with a motorized golf cart, at no 

charge, for operation by the Operator’s employees on the Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course, in order to facilitate monitoring of alcohol consumption.  The Operator 

agrees to coordinate its operation of the golf cart with the City’s Director of Golf 

Operations, and understands and agrees that the City may provide back up 

security to monitor alcohol consumption on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 

 

 7



(F) The Operator agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless from any and 

all claims arising out of the sale of alcoholic beverages by the Operator, its 

employees, its agents and/or its representatives which occurred on City property. 

 

(G) Operator understands that the City is not in the restaurant industry but 

desires to enhance the services available to the public at the City’s Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Course, a municipal golf course, by having food and beverage service 

on the premises.  The Operator acknowledges that it is the City’s responsibility to 

insure a smooth transition of any food or beverage service at the Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course if the Operator’s Agreement is not renewed or if it is terminated.  

Therefore, the Operator agrees that at the Agreement termination or if the 

Agreement is not renewed, it will fully and professionally cooperate with the City 

and the Liquor Control Commission to facilitate the liquor license process for the 

new food service provider or the City, at the City discretion. The Operator also 

acknowledges that if this Agreement is terminated or not renewed at any time, 

that the Operator shall be considered to be “out of business” at the Sanctuary 

Lake Golf Course, as that term is used in MCL 436.1515 of the Michigan Liquor 

Control Code of 1998, and that the municipal golf course liquor license for 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course shall be surrendered to the Liquor Control 

Commission or transferred to the new food service provider or the City, at the 

City’s discretion and as approved by the Liquor Control Commission.   

 

 8



The Operator acknowledges that failure to cooperate in the transfer or surrender 

of the liquor license as set out herein will result in severe money damages to the 

City, possible loss of the liquor license and loss of the market value of the liquor 

license by the City.  In lieu of a denial by a court of specific performance under 

this Agreement for the transfer or surrender of the liquor license to the City or to 

a new food service provider approved by the City, or surrender of the liquor 

license to the Liquor Control Commission, the City shall be entitled to payment of 

liquidated damages of $100,000.00, representing a minimum market value of the 

liquor license, and actual costs and attorney fees incurred by the City for the 

commencement and continuation of any litigation or Liquor Control Commission 

filings or hearing precipitated by the Operator’s failure to transfer or surrender the 

municipal golf course liquor license. 

9. KITCHEN SUPPLIES / EQUIPMENT AND MODIFICATION:  The Operator 

shall provide all necessary supplies and personnel to staff the operation of the 

kitchen/bar/restroom/dining area(s), catering service for golf outings, and vending 

machines that are required and not on the Kitchen Equipment List attached to 

the Request for Proposal. Pursuant to the Request for Proposal and Response to 

Request for Proposal, the Operator shall purchase silverware, chinaware, and 

other food service equipment listed on Exhibit A that is currently owned by 

Emerald Food Service L.L.C. and is currently being used at the Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course site. The purchase price of the kitchen equipment shall be 

$23,659.36 less depreciation based upon a five (5) year IRS straight-line 

depreciation schedule. The purchase of those items shall occur within thirty (30) 

 9



days of the effective date of this Agreement.  The kitchen equipment purchased 

by Operator pursuant to this Paragraph shall become property of the Operator 

that may be disposed of at the Operator’s discretion at the end of this 

Agreement. 

Any necessary building and/or equipment modifications shall be approved 

in advance by the Parks and Recreation Director, or her designee, and shall 

become the property of the City at the conclusion of this Agreement or upon 

termination of the Agreement by either party to this Agreement.  Additionally, the 

Parks and Recreation Director, or her designee, shall approve equipment 

brought into the facility by the Operator or at the request of the Operator in 

advance of delivery and use to the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course. 

10.  PRICES / PRICE AND HOUR CHANGES:  The menu, including the 

products sold or marketed, in addition to the prices charged, are subject to 

regulation by the City and, once established, no changes shall be made without 

prior approval of the Director of Parks and Recreation or his/her designee. Prices 

will be re-evaluated at the conclusion of each year of the Agreement.  Increases 

in prices shall be no greater than the percentage increase of the Consumer Price 

Index of Food Eaten Away from Home. Prices shall be posted for patrons and a 

detailed printed description of prices shall be available for review by the City. 

 11.  RECORDS:  The Operator shall keep accurate records of all sales and 

receipts through the use of computerized/electronic cash registers which provide 

daily tapes and reports. The City, prior to commencement of the Agreement, 

shall approve the cash registers that will be used for the operation of the food 

 10



services described in this agreement.  The Operator shall submit a copy of its 

monthly Michigan Department of Treasury Sales Tax Return by the 20th date of 

the month following the month for which the Return was filed.  An annual report, 

summarizing the monthly reports, shall be submitted to the City within sixty (60) 

days after the first anniversary date of the Agreement and each year thereafter 

that the Agreement is in effect. The City shall have the right to inspect the books, 

records, and inventories of the Operator at any reasonable time. 

12. ASSIGNMENT OF AGREEMENT / INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:  The 

Operator shall have no authority or power to assign, sublet and/or transfer any 

rights, privileges or interests under this Agreement without prior written consent 

from the City.  The Operator acknowledges that it is an independent contractor 

with no authority to bind the City to any contracts or agreements, written or oral. 

13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS:  The Operator shall at all times be in  

compliance with all federal and state statutes and City ordinances and with all 

Oakland County Health Department licensing requirements, rules and 

regulations.  The serving of alcoholic beverages will be in full compliance with 

State of Michigan Liquor Laws.  The Operator will be responsible for keeping the 

State of Michigan Liquor License in force during the term of the Agreement.

14.  INSURANCE:   The Operator shall maintain liability insurance in the amount 

of one million ($1,000,000.000) dollars for any actions, claims, liability or 

damages caused to persons and/or property arising out of the operation and/or 

maintenance of the food service, kitchen/bar/restroom/dining area(s), vending 

areas and its catering operation for golf outings where food has been prepared in 

 11



the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course food preparation area(s), in addition to product 

liability insurance and worker’s compensation.  All insurance coverage shall be 

approved by the City.  Certificates of Insurance shall comply with the sample 

form attached hereto and attached to the Request for Proposal.  The City shall 

be named as an additional insured under all policies except worker’s 

compensation.  All insurance companies must be licensed and admitted to do 

business in the State of Michigan.  All insurance set out herein shall be 

maintained for the duration of the Agreement.  Failure to maintain coverage or to 

continue to maintain coverage shall be considered a breach of contract with 

immediate termination of the Agreement at the will of the City.  The Operator is 

responsible for any deductibles under its policies of insurance.  The Operator 

agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless for any claims, actions, liabilities 

or damages arising out of the operation, maintenance or management of the food 

service, kitchen/bar/restroom/dining area(s), vending area(s), on-premises 

catering for golf outings where food has been prepared in the Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course food preparation area(s). 

15. REPORTS OF CLAIMS:  Copies of all claims, damage, or accident reports 

received by the Operator, its employees and/or agents (whether submitted to an 

insurance company or not) relating to any damage or accident that occurred or is 

alleged to have occurred shall be sent to the City. 

16.  PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES:  The Operator shall be liable for any 

personal property taxes assessed against its equipment or inventory. 

17.  UTILITY COSTS:  The City will pay utility costs. 

 12



18. TERM OF AGREEMENT:  This Agreement shall terminate on December 31, 

2009 unless terminated by either party upon ninety (90) days written notice sent 

by certified mail as set out in Paragraph 19.  At the end of the initial term of this 

Agreement, the City may at its option renew this Agreement for a two year period 

under the same terms and conditions as set out in this Agreement if approved by 

City Council and also if agreed to in writing by the Operator.    

19.    EARLY TERMINATION.  In the event that this Agreement, or the option to 

renew this Agreement as set out in Paragraph 18 above, is terminated before 

December 31, 2011, then the City shall pay to Operator (i) an amount equal to 

the actual documented amount paid by the Operator to Emerald Food Service, 

L.L.C. for only the items listed on Exhibit A less depreciation based upon a  five-

year IRS straight-line depreciation schedule commencing as of the date the 

equipment is purchased from Emerald Food Service, L.L.C. and, (ii) an amount 

equal to the cost for the patio enhancements/protective weather screening 

installed on the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course restaurant patio which have been 

approved by the Parks and Recreation Director pursuant to Paragraph 2 of this 

Agreement less depreciation. Depreciation shall be based on the rules and 

regulations published by the Internal Revenue Service Act of 1986, as amended. 

20.  NOTICE:  All written notices to be given under this Agreement shall be 

mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, to the other party at its address 

set forth herein or at such address as the party may provide in writing from time 

to time.  Any such notice shall be deemed to have been received five days 

subsequent to mailing.  

 13



21.  SECTION HEADINGS.  All section headings contained herein are for the 

convenience of reference only and are not intended to define or limit the scope of 

any provision of this Agreement. 

22. ENTIRE AGREEMENT:  This Agreement incorporates by reference the 

Request for Proposal #06-61, General Specifications and attachments to the 

Request for Proposal, and Operator’s Response to Request for Proposal as 

though fully set out herein.  These documents constitute the entire Agreement 

and any changes thereto shall be in writing signed by both the parties unless 

otherwise set out in the Agreement.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City and the Operator have executed this 

Agreement. 

  

WITNESS: 
 
_________________________   KOSCH SPECIAL EVENTS, L.L.C., a  

Michigan Limited Liability Company, 
 

 
________________________       _______________________________ 
      BY:____________________________ 
      TITLE:_________________________ 
 
 
     CITY OF TROY, a Michigan Municipal 
      Corporation, 
  
 
     BY: ____________________________ 
            Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
     BY: _____________________________ 
                                                            Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED:       

 14



 
 
___________________________  
City Manager or Designee           
 
 
 
RESOLUTION NUMER: ___________________________ 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:   
 
BY: _________________________ 
 
_____________________________       ATTEST: ________________________ 
City Attorney        (City Clerk) 
 

 

 15



EXHIBIT A 
 

KITCHEN EQUIPMENT SUBJECT  TO BUY BACK LESS DEPRECIATION 
 
 
 
 
 

    Cost   Purchase Date 
  

 
Sysco Food Services Equipment*     $ 14, 567.77    2005/06  
Wild Bill Signs (The Grill Signs)                 577.00     5/25/05 
Signs by Tomorrow (The Grill Signs)         254.00     6/15/06 
Bluestone Restaurant Systems (POS)    4,618.00            5/5/05 
American Hotel Supply  
           (Plasma TV System)                     2,105.00     5/27/05 
Moorehead Communication 
           (Dish Network)       150.96      5/18/05 
American Hotel Supply (Safes)      849.63      4/18/05; 6/25/05 
Leonard Syrups (Keg Cooler)                      389.00      6/1/05 
Gold Star (Keg Dolly)                                   148.00      5/27/05 
 
 
Total:                                                    $ 23,659.36   
 
 
* Attached Sysco List incorporated herein as part of Exhibit A. 



TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: March 13, 2007 

  
  

SUBJECT: Request for Annual Personnel Review 
 

 

  

Traditionally, my annual review has been completed in time for any necessary 
adjustments to my departmental budget.  Since the budget deadlines are fast approaching, I 
am requesting that Council set the date and time for my annual personnel evaluation. My last 
review was completed in February 2006, and my salary increase was retroactive to January 
1, 2006.   

Please let me know when it is convenient to schedule my requested closed session 
evaluation.     

campbellld
Text Box
F-07



 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
March 12, 2007 
 
 
 
TO:     Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Library Issues 
 
 
 
At the February 26, 2007 Council meeting, the Mayor referred an item to construct a new 100,000 
square foot library.  After discussion, staff was asked to look at the following topics and present a 
report to the Council.  Topics to be addressed in this report include: 
 
 Funding options 
 Site location 
 Investigate options other than constructing a new building 
 Create a logical timetable for project development 
 Investigate constructing a satellite library facility 
 Investigate the possibilities of working with other cities 
 Investigate the possibilities of privatizing library functions 
 Grant possibilities 

 
Background: 
 
The current library was opened in 1971, and is one of the most visited and most used City facilities .  
The Library provides books, study areas, periodicals, computer access, and has mini-retail areas 
including a retail shop, a small coffee shop, and the Friends of the Troy Public Library have a book 
sale location in the basement of the facility. 
 
The Library has received the accolade of being the second highest rated library in the State of 
Michigan.  The library is becoming dated and due to the high level of usage the time has come to 
consider major improvements to the library or consider the construction of a new facility. 
 
The City Council heard a report from the Friends of the Troy Public Library that indicated future needs 
of the facility, and suggested a time frame for construction of a new facility. 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
F-08



Library Issues 
March 12, 2007 
Page Two 
 
 
 
Funding Options: 
 
The Troy Library currently operates with a budget of $4,522,630, which would be the equivalent of .86 
mills in property taxes.  The Troy Historical Museum also falls under the purview of the Library and 
operates with a 2006/07 budget of $479,370.  Total Library and Museum budget would translate into 
a property tax mill rate equivalent of 1.05 mills. 
 
Impact of the Library/Museum on residential properties valued at $300,000 would be approximately 
$129.53, or about $10.80 per month.  
 
Construction Finance Options: 
 
 Issuance of General Obligation Bonds 
 Issuance of Certificates of Participation (COPs) 

 
General Obligation Bonds: 
 
Using the suggested total of 100,000 square feet, estimates for construction range from $250 to $300 
per square foot.  This translates to a cost of between $25 and $30 million dollars to construct a new 
library. 
 
The City’s Financial Advisor, Bendzinski and Company has provided tables indicating total debt 
service for a $25 million dollar and $30 million dollar general obligation bond issue.  The Troy Charter 
limits the amortization period for bond issues to 25 years, so debt service schedules are based on 25-
year period. 
 
The tables indicate a total debt service repayment of approximately $48.5 million for the $25 million 
over 25 years, and $56.7 million for $30 million over 25 years.  The impact of each of the total costs is 
indicated in Exhibit A-1 in the Appendix.  As an example of impact, the $25 million dollar bond issue 
would cost the owners of a home valued at $310,000 (median value for residential property in Troy) 
approximately $1,080.80 in total property taxes over 25 years.  This would translate into an average 
of $3.60 per month or an average cost of 12 cents per day over the 25-year amortization period.  
Annual taxes levied would cost the residential owner of the $310,000 property .05% of annual median 
household income. 
 
A $30 million dollar bond issue amortized over 25 years would cost the owners of a home valued at 
$310,000 approximately $1,262.94 over the 30 year period, or an average of $4.21 per month, or 
about 14 cents per day over the course of 30 years.  Annual taxes levied would cost the residential 
owner of the $310,000 property .058% of annual median household income. 
 
 
 
 



Library Issues 
March 12, 2007 
Page Three 
 
 
 
Certificates of Participation: 
 
Lease to Purchase:  The option, more commonly known as issuing Certificates of Participation 
(COPs) requires an annual appropriation by the Council and the appropriation has to come from the 
General Fund.  This would require a mill increase to keep the debt service costs from reducing the 
General Funds capabilities of funding most of the day-to-day operating costs and transfers to the 
Capital Improvements Fund.  Should a future Council determine that they would not approve an 
annual appropriation for the lease payment, the City would suffer severe consequences to bond 
ratings and the abilities to issue long-term debt under any circumstance. 
 
Lease to buy options (COPs) usually carry higher interest rates of anywhere between 50 and 75 basis 
points over the interest rates of general obligation bonds. 
 
Site Location Options: 
 
Based on the two primary options of new construction or enlarging/remodeling the current facility, the 
most relevant site for new construction would be to the north of the existing library parking lot.  This 
would still allow for some parking at the new facility that could reduce some of the overall project 
costs. 
 
If the Council were to choose the option of a library district, consideration would have to be given to 
locating a new facility to a more central location.  This option would create the need to purchase 
additional land that adds to the overall project costs.  Land purchase would have to be of sufficient 
size to accommodate the building, any potential enlargements of the building and land for adequate 
parking for the facility. The exception to this could be if another governmental entity wanted to “buy 
into” the Troy system and would choose to utilize the current library location 
 
Construction Options: 
 
There are two primary ways to undertake the logistical process for construction of the facility.  The 
options include the typical process of hiring an architect to design the facility and upon completion of 
design documents, placing the project out for bids to qualified contractors. 
 
The other most used option is to use the design/build format whereby the City would select a 
contractor based on the best estimated construction costs, experience in building similar facilities and 
overall qualifications.  The contractor then selects an architect to design the facility and then 
constructs the building.  This process reduces time for construction as in some cases, the plan review 
process can be amended to allow construction on the building as plans for the various elements of 
the building are completed and approved by the Building Department. 
 
In some cases in the design build, the contractor maintains ownership and leases the building to the 
tenant over a period of time, or applies lease payments to the debt service.  Once debt service is paid 
out ownership of the building can be transferred to the tenant. 
 



Library Issues 
March 12, 2007 
Page Four 
 
 
 
The down side to the second option is that the City has very little control over the contractor and since 
the architect works for the contractor, the City would have little control over the design.  The 
contractor can also make arbitrary changes to the building due to the fact that the City agreed to the 
original price quotes.  If something in the construction process changes from the original bid, the 
contractor sometimes substitutes selected materials for less expensive materials. 
 
Operational Costs: 
 
 Day-to-Day Operations 
 Annual Facilities Maintenance 

 
Without knowing the design or the actual amount of square feet needed for the future, it is difficult to 
determine costs of day-to-day operations or annual facilities maintenance costs.  Depending on the 
design of the facility, the need for additional personnel could be minimum, and depending on the type 
of design, annual maintenance could be in the form of regularly scheduled tasks.  However, any 
facility will eventually need to be upgraded due to use.  Therefore, funds should be budgeted to plan 
for future capital needs. 
 
Options: 
 
Potential options for a library include, but are not limited to: 
 
 New construction 
 Remodel/enlarge the current facility 
 Consider developing a library district with surrounding cities 
 Combine library operations with the Troy School District 
 Privatize library operations  

 
New Construction: 
 
As indicated previously, current new construction costs could range from $250 to $300 per square 
foot.  The advantage of new construction lies with the fact that the City has land that would reduce the 
overall cost.  While the current economic condition of the state could lend doubt to spending large 
amounts of money, construction prices have remained relatively neutral due to the fact that many 
contractors are looking for work.  The Engineering News Report indicates that nationally, inflation for 
new construction is about 5.1 percent per year. 
 
There could be two schools of thought on the inflation rate.  One being, the longer the City waits to 
construct the facility, the more it will cost.  The other school might conclude that construction prices 
are too high and that the City should look at options to maximize the floor space of the current library 
facility. 
 



Library Issues 
March 12, 2007 
Page Five 
 
 
 
Remodel/Enlarge:
 
The following section is based on adding floor space to the existing library, and remodeling the 
existing structure to meet current and future needs.  Utilizing the figure of $250 to $300 per square 
foot, a 25,000 to 50,000 square foot expansion could cost between $6.25 to $15 million dollars.  
Using a figure of $175 per square foot for remodeling the existing library (an extrapolated estimate 
from a 2004 edition of the Library Journal), costs have been estimated at $8.75 million.  
 
Based on the new space costs, added to the remodeling costs, total costs for a remodeled/enlarged 
library facility could range from $15 million to $23.75 million.   
 
As with the new construction concept, there will no doubt be increases in the day-to-day operational 
costs, and funding should be set aside for annual maintenance.  Additional costs for this concept 
could include additional parking space and other related costs. 
 
Library District: 
 
The Council could consider using statutory approval to creating a library district with a neighboring 
city or cities or school districts.  The advantages would lie in economy(s) of scale in that more people 
would pay the costs of library construction and operation rather than just residents of the City of Troy.   
 
This option might be attractive to smaller cities that will find their financial future to be more and more 
difficult, especially in terms of revenue production and funded expenditures.  Some of the cities in our 
surrounding area share the same situations as Troy in that the cities are landlocked and most of the 
future revenue enhancements will have to come in the form of redevelopment.  Valuation increases 
for some of these communities will be harder to come by unless incentive packages are more and 
more lucrative to prospective developers. 
 
Limited revenue enhancement capabilities will create a need to looking at merging or consolidating 
services.  In most cases, it would cost less for a smaller community to merge with a larger community 
such as Troy. 
 
The primary disadvantage is that unless there is a significant marketing campaign to sell the benefits 
of a merger or consolidation, many people in cities contemplating such a merger will not want to give 
up their local identity to a neighboring community. 
 
According to relevant state statutes, library districts can levy up to four mills for construction and 
operational expenses.  However, any levy above two mills shall be levied for a period of not more 
than 20 years. 
 
One advantage to having a separate mill rate for library operations would be that funds set aside for 
the library in the General Fund could be used to do additional capital improvements work. 
 



Library Issues 
March 12, 2007 
Page Six 
 
 
 
Privatizing Library Operations: 
 
The practice of privatizing some library services has become quite common over the past couple of 
decades.  Services such as janitorial work, technical, some collection management, vending and 
photocopying have become quite common.   
 
There have also been instances of communities privatizing all operational functions with private 
companies.  The federal government has privatized library operations for such agencies as NASA.  
Riverside County, California has also privatized overall operations with a company, and has seen 
fairly good results. 
 
In a report entitled “The Impact of Outsourcing and Privatization of Library Services and 
Management”, the general conclusion was that “In general, there is no evidence that outsourcing per 
se has had a negative impact on library services and management.  On the contrary, in the main 
outsourcing has been an effective managerial tool, and when used carefully and judiciously it has 
resulted in enhanced library services and improved library management.  Instances where problems 
have arisen subsequent to decisions to outsource aspects of library operations and functions appear 
to be attributable to inadequate planning, poor contracting processes, or ineffective management of 
contracts.” 
 
Privatizing operations does not eliminate expenses for local government.  Contracts are written with 
private companies to utilize budgeted money to continue to operate and maintain library facilities.  
The majority of communities or governmental agencies that have privatized operations have 
experienced improved operations, but have not seen substantial savings on building construction or 
maintenance costs. 
 
The question still remains; does the City of Troy build a new library and contract with an outside 
agency to perform day-to-day functions?  If this is the case, the City still has to pay debt service as 
well as the major portion of operational and maintenance expenses. 
 
One of the reasons that the Troy Library has remained as one of the most efficient and effective 
libraries in the state is directly attributable to the volunteer core.  No matter what steps the City 
Council takes to operate the library, every step should be taken to ensure that the core group of 
volunteers continues to play a major role in library operations.  
 
Corporate Sponsorships: 
 
Several libraries across the country utilize corporate sponsorships to supplement revenue bases.  
Private booksellers such as Barnes and Noble and Borders provide lower cost options to public 
libraries in purchasing books and research materials.  Most of the corporate sponsorships come 
through “Friends of the Library” groups.   
 
 
 



Library Issues 
March 12, 2007 
Page Seven 
 
 
 
If Troy were to build a new library, it might be a wise investment of time and energy to try to obtain 
naming rights to certain areas of the library or to get corporate sponsors involved in providing funds or 
in-kind services, where applicable, to help keep the library functioning a peak efficiencies.  The City 
could work with private companies to develop tasteful ways of subtly advertising companies in 
exchange for a fee that could be used in reducing construction costs, or in operational revenues.  The 
City could also look at providing additional retail space for a lease fee structure.  
 
The City should also be investigating the possibilities of obtaining federal or state grants for 
construction.  Private entrepreneurial organizations also have grant money available for library 
collection improvements, and in some cases as grants for library construction. 
 
 First Steps: 
 
Staff would recommend the following as first steps in the process: 
 
 By far the most critical step is to determine what is actually needed.  Many factors are used to 

determine essential needs, and it is recommended that Council direct staff to hire appropriate 
consultants to determine actual floor space required for a new library.  The consultant could 
also make recommendations as to potential uses for the existing library building, or help the 
Council reach a determination if the existing library should be razed.  Staff would also suggest 
that this could be a very opportune time to develop a series of focus groups within the 
community to get a wider cross section of input from the residents.  Funds are available in the 
budget to conduct such an important study. 

 In addition to the consultants report, consideration should be given to the potential changes in 
library functions and operations.  Capabilities for information gathering are seemingly unlimited 
on the Internet.  However, the library could be a central repository for information and idea 
sharing.  Portions of either the new proposed facility, or a remodeled version of the current 
library could be set aside to accommodate the proposed “saging centers” for the new wave of 
senior population and for ethnic and cultural understanding.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\03.19.07 - Library Issues 











 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

 
March 14, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 
SUBJECT:   UM/ULI Funding Request 
 
Background: 
 
 Attached is a proposal from Michele Hodges asking the City of Troy to participate financially in the 

proposed UM/ULI Real Estate Forum.   
 The mission of the Urban Land Institute is to provide leadership in the responsible use of land and 

in creating and sustaining thriving communities worldwide.   
 The forum is designed to facilitate the open exchange of ideas, information and experience among 

local, national and international industry leaders and policy makers dedicated to creating better 
places. 

 The Troy Chamber will have representatives at the March 26th, City Council meeting to answer 
Council’s questions and to ask for Council’s consideration of the proposal. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The Chamber is requesting financial support from the City of Troy for the project.  The request is 

for a gift of up to $60,000. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Under Section 12.2 of the Troy City Charter, “(t)he authority to contract on behalf of the City is 

vested in the Council and shall be exercised in accordance with the provisions of statute and of 
this Charter…” 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment.  (Goal III) 
 Enhance the livability and safety of the community.  (Goal I) 

 
Options: 
 
 Council has the right to accept, amend or reject the proposal. 

campbellld
Text Box
G-02a



Memorandum 
 

 
To:   Honorable Mayor Schilling, and Members of the Troy City Council 
 
From:   Michele Hodges, President, Troy Chamber of Commerce 
 
Date:   13 March 2007 
 
RE:   Funding Support 
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Name 
Creation of a Walkable Urbanity Strategic Plan for the Troy Transit Center Area, as 
part of the University of Michigan/Urban Land Institute (UM/ULI) Real Estate Forum. 
 
Project Thumbnail Description 
The yearlong study process will empower Troy to embrace relevant economic 
development strategies.  It will accelerate the pursuit of economic viability, enhance 
implementation of the Big Beaver Corridor Enhancement Study, and further develop 
implementation strategies for the west end of the Maple Road Study, as 
recommmended by Lawrence Technological University.   
 
The process includes a high profile, two-day, national real estate forum, earning Troy 
access to highly credible national developers and investors, as well as market and base 
studies, a five to twenty year strategic plan, a four day charrette, and published content. 
 
Professional and student comprised teams, in tandem with local officials, will lead the 
process. 
 
Funding Request   
Financial Support of the Project, from the City of Troy, in an amount not to exceed 
$60,000.   
 
Funding Explanation 
The total project cost has a market value of $800,000, with $250,000 owed by the area 
of study (Troy and its stakeholders), thus making this initiative an important opportunity 
to leverage dollars.  A number of in-kind resources are required in addition to this 
amount, and presently being identified by the Chamber.   The Troy Chamber is also in 
the process of raising the $250,000 from foundations, other levels of government, and 
the private sector.   



 
In order for early stages of the study process to commence, and to gain momentum in 
the fundraising effort, seed money is necessary.  It is the hope of this body that the City 
of Troy can provide such dollars.  $60,000 is needed immediately and, depending on 
the success of the fundraising effort, as much as $35,000 could be reimbursed to the 
City.  With this scenario, the City of Troy’s investment would not exceed $60,000, and 
could be as little as $25,000, depending on the success of the overall fund raising effort.  
Either way, the investment is a good value, with potential for high returns strong.  
 
Expected Benefits 
Quality input for community planning in the form of a market study, strategic plan, four-
day charrette, and published content 
 
National exposure to a high quality developer and investor audience 
 
Substantial, high quality tax base growth   
 
Greater capacity to implement the Big Beaver Corridor Enhancement Study 
 
Transit readiness and infrastructure supportive of the creative class 
 
Walkable urbanity designs 
 
Sustainable development potentials identified 
 
Background  
The Troy Chamber, an eight-hundred member business organization, seeks to 
collaborate with the University of Michigan, Urban Land Institute, Brookings Institute, 
City of Troy, private sector, and others, in creating a Walkable Urbanity Strategic 
Plan.  The epicenter for the area of study is the Transit Center, now proposed for the 
southwest corner of Maple and Coolidge Roads, and neighboring environs.   
 
Neighboring environs will likely include the Big Beaver/Coolidge intersection, with the 
Somerset Collection, former Kmart site, and The Kresge Foundation headquarters 
impacted by it; as well as assets heading east on the Maple Road Corridor. By 
developing this area appropriately, an important opportunity to create walkable urbanity 
exists.  The Troy Chamber hopes to leverage it for the benefit of the City, and for the 
Region. 
 
In review, the land proposed for the multi-modal Transit Center is owned by Grand 
Sakwa, which has agreed to donate it if developed within a ten-year period, of which 
three remain.  The site abuts the City of Birmingham, and SMART, Amtrak, and feeder 
transport providers are already engaged in preliminary planning processes with the City 
of Troy.  The Troy Airport is also nearby, and presents yet another mode of 
transportation.  An added benefit is the City of Troy’s consideration of a significant 
series of pathways, with bicycles made readily available at key points throughout the 
community, including the Center area. 
 



Additionally, the potential for artist colonies exists within the study area, which furthers 
the need to build the creative class, contributes to walkable urbanity, and is consistent 
with regional strategies under consideration.  This is a recognized economic 
development strategy for the future economy, and will ensure Troy remains relevant 
going forward. 
 
Best practice case studies from around the country make a compelling case for “transit 
ready” communities, with Washington DC, Reston, VA and Denver, CO important 
examples.  Transit readiness drives development in a new and significant way, with the 
potential to make a substantive tax base contribution likely (early estimates suggest 
Troy could experience a $3-4M increase in annual tax revenue). 
 
Transit readiness will create walkable urbanity in a quintessentially suburban locale, 
resulting in a level of prosperity that would contribute to regional health.  The capacity 
for regional transit would be enhanced, favorably impacting the Troy economy, and the 
Region. 
 
The U-M/ULI partnership is capable of high quality study, at a less than market rate; and 
it can engage a pedigreed audience of national real estate professionals and investors.  
Although difficult to measure, the market value of this strategic planning process is 
estimated at $800,000.  To secure such service for $250,000 is a unique opportunity to 
leverage dollars, while making significant local and regional impact. 
 
Creation of a strategic plan is a year long process, with the November 2007 U-M/ULI 
Real Estate Forum an important milestone.  Troy could become a national prototype, 
and potential for robust economic development is highly likely.  The study will look 
closely at the public right of way, and make recommendations for key areas, both public 
and private.  The private sector can choose whether or not to develop accordingly. 
 
In addition to the Forum, the process includes market and base studies, a five to twenty 
year strategic plan, four-day charrette, and published content.  These process 
components are to be led by professional and student comprised teams, with local 
stakeholders active participants.  The Troy Chamber, in concert with the appropriate 
agencies, will facilitate the process, thus reducing the impact on City of Troy staff 
resources. 
 
The Forum also presents an important collaborative opportunity, with government, 
academia, and the private sector working in tandem.  It addresses a market need, and 
the need to further sustainable development. 
 
Before the strategy development process can begin, however, the Troy Chamber must 
identify willing partners and investors.  We hope you choose to invest for, when 
complete, the outcome stands to include a vibrant, economically and socially viable, 
Troy.  Walkable urbanity will exist, an infrastructure supportive of collaboration engaged, 
sustainable development given greater value, relevant economic development 
strategies engaged, implementation of the Big Beaver Corridor Enhancement and 
Maple Road Studies more likely, and yet another step towards quality planning taken.    
 



Thank you for your time, and I’d be happy to aid your decision making process in any 
way possible, by providing additional information, as you see fit. 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate      Sally M. Elmiger, Associate     Jeremy G. Lopatin, Associate 

 
 
March 13, 2007 
 
Honorable Mayor Schilling and City Council Members 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Re: 2007 UM/ULI Real Estate Forum Walkable Urbanity Strategic Plan  
 
Dear Mayor and Council: 
 
Troy has been fortunate to be selected as the area of study for the UM/ULI Real Estate Forum.  
From past experience, I know this endeavor presents a significant opportunity to be a catalyst for 
new planning and economic development opportunities. 
 
The recent completion of the Big Beaver Corridor Study and Futures Initiative, along with the 
initial concepts that have been discussed in the Master Plan update, reveal that the City is in an 
excellent position to pursue long term economic vitality and sustainability. 
 
The Walkable Urbanity and Strategic Plan will contribute significantly to the City’s efforts.  By 
bringing national resources to the table with local officials and experts, the opportunities to 
accelerate economic developments along Big Beaver, Maple Road, and other areas of the City 
will be increased.  Furthermore, the specific strategies that will be developed for walkable, 
transit oriented development will cement the City’s reputation as offering a high quality of life to 
its residents. 
 
The Troy Chamber is to be applauded for spearheading this effort.  I urge your support and stand 
read to provide whatever cooperation and assistance may be helpful. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
 
RKC: lh 
 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final March 8, 2006 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Wednesday, March 8, 2006, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:34 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   
     Commissioner David Cannon (Absent) 
     Commissioner Patrick Daugherty 
 

ALSO PRESENT: Lori Bluhm - City Attorney, Peggy Clifton - Human 
Resources Director, Police Chief Charles Craft, Barbara A. 
Holmes – Deputy City Clerk 

 
Approval of Minutes of Monday, February 13, 2006 
 
Resolution #CSC-2006-03-004 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the meeting of Monday, February 13, 2006 be APPROVED 
as presented. 
 
Yes:  All-2 
Absent: Cannon 
 
Petitions and Communications:  
 
Approval of Revised Eligibility List – Police Officer 
 
Resolution #CSC-2006-03-005 
Moved by Daugherty 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Eligible List for Classification: Police Officer established on Friday, 
February 3, 2006 and APPROVED (Resolution #CSC-2006-02-003) as presented on Monday, 
February 13, 2006 be hereby AMENDED with the REVISED Eligible List for Classification: 
Police Officer established on Tuesday, February 21, 2006. 
 
Yes:  All-2 
Absent: Cannon 
 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse Member Cannon 
 
Resolution #CSC-2006-03-006 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Daugherty 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-01a



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Final March 8, 2006 
 

-2- 

RESOLVED, That Member Cannon’s absence at the March 8, 2006 meeting of the Civil 
Service Commission (Act 78) be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  All-2 
Absent: Cannon 
 
New Business: None presented 
 
Old Business:  None presented 
 
Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 7:36 AM. 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Holmes, Deputy City Clerk 
 



TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE – FINAL OCTOBER 3, 2006 
 
This rescheduled meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was held 
Tuesday, October 3, 2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. The meeting was 
called to order at 7:30 P.M.   
 
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:    Kevin Lindsey 
   Charlene Harris-Freeman 
   Kinda Hupman 
   Linda Rivetto 
   Bob Miller 
 
  ABSENT Paul Lin 
    
      STAFF:    Loraine Campbell 
 
      GUESTS:    Wil Bedford 
        Gene Moore, Caldwell Banker, Realtor 
 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-10-001 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Lin be excused  
Yes: 5⎯ Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Rivetto, and Miller  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDSC-2006-10-002 
Moved by Miller  
Seconded by Harris-Freeman 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 6, 2006 be approved  
Yes: 5⎯ Lindsey, Harris-Freeman, Hupman, Rivetto, and Miller 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

A. Request to de-list 4820 Livernois. 
Mr. Bedford told the committee that he has had his historic home for sale for two 
years and has been unable to sell it. He feels potential buyers are not inclined to 

1 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01b



purchase the property because of the designation.  The committee discussed 
options with him including  

1. Conducting an investigation to de-list the property per his request 
2. Renting the house until the real estate market improves 
3. Discussing options available through the Historic District Commission. 

 
 
OLD BUSINESS 

B. Request to de-list 2955 Quail Run Dr. 
Loraine Campbell reported that the preliminary report was mailed to the Michigan 
Department of History, Arts and Libraries, the Michigan Historical Commission 
and the State Historic Preservation Review Board. Copies were also forwarded 
to the Planning Commission and the Historic District Commission for review (not 
action) and City Council as an information item.  A public hearing will be 
scheduled following the 60-day review period. 

 
C. New Above Ground Survey Assignments 

No additional Above Ground Surveys were submitted. 
  

 
 

The Troy Historic Study Committee Meeting was adjourned at 8:45 PM.  The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, November 7, 2006 at 7:30 PM at the Troy Museum & 
Historic Village.  

 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

2 



TROY HISTORIC COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL OCTOBER 24, 2006 
 
The regular meeting of the Troy Historic Commission was held Tuesday, October 24, 
2006 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village. Rosemary Kornacki called the meeting to 
order at 7:30 P.M.  
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT:     Rosemary Kornacki 
                        Roger Kaniarz 
   Kevin Lindsey 
                        Vera Milz  
  Remedios Solarte 
                          Terry Navratil  
         Brian Wattles 
         Janice Chen, Student Rep. 
  Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
         Brian Stoutenburg, Library Director 
     
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-10-001 
Moved by Lindsey  
Seconded by Solarte 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of September 26, 2006 be approved as amended 
Yes: 7 ⎯Kornacki, Kaniarz, Lindsey, Milz, Solarte, Wattles and Navratil  
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

    
OLD BUSINESS 

A. Capital Projects 
Fencing 
Windows 
Turner Restorations will deliver the mutins for the cabin and window screens for 
the Print Shop by November 30. 
 
Roofs 
Mark Stimac has promised roof specifications to be completed by November 3.  
 
Town Hall DUR Model 
Volunteers Lynn McLean and Dale Schairer installed the motion detectors and 
additional stops along the trolley route.  
 
Village Gardens 
Parks and Recreation removed the hard pack and installed topsoil in the area 
between Poppleton and the Caswell house. 

1 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01c



 
New Electrical Problem 
When Bill Boardman noted water leaking into the church basement through the 
“L B,” Building Operations was notified. Their inspection revealed that water was 
also getting under the waterproof coating of the neutral wire and traveling to the 
circuit breaker box where the neutral bar was corroded. Loraine is gathering 
prices from three electrical firms to pull the damaged wire and make repairs. 

 
B. Programs 

See Attendance Reports. 275 People attended Harvest Home Festival in the 
rain. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
A. Grants 

Our MAP surveyor is Dr. Chuck Watkins, professor of history and director of the 
Appalachian Cultural Center in Boone, North Carolina will complete his site visit 
December 7 and 8, 2006. 

 
B. Interns 

Emily Daniels, a Library Science student at Wayne State University is interested 
in scanning old council and commission minutes. Bill Boardman is working with 
her, Information Technology and the Clerks Office to develop a workflow for this 
project. 
 

C. Village Landscaping 
Michele Dunham and a team of volunteers have planted gardens in from of Town 
Hall, the Church and the Pass-a-long Garden in front of the Parsonage. Michele 
is developing plans for the garden between Caswell and Poppleton School. 

 
D. New Acquisitions 

See attached reports. 
 

E. Eagle Scouts: 
Josh Hepner is constructing the wash yard behind the Caswell house.  
 
Rigel Ristau is constructing benches for the story tree between Poppleton and 
Caswell. 
 
Sander Sanchez will construct new “square foot” garden plots for the Pioneer 
Garden.  
 
All three scouts will complete their prep and fundraising through the winter and 
install their finished projects in the spring. 

 
F. Troy Historical Society Liaison Report 

2 



The THC has contracted with Oakland Solutions to produce campaign materials 
and is moving ahead with the Tell Us Your Story Campaign to collect the 
histories of area businesses and corporations. 

 
G. Reports and Communications 

a. Staff  
No report 
 

b. Visitors 
No report 

 
 
The Troy Historic Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:00 p.m.  The next regular 
meeting will be held Tuesday, January 23, 2007 at the Troy Museum & Historic Village 
at 7:30 PM. 
 

 
                  
Rosemary Kornacki 
Chairperson 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

3 



TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL NOVEMBER 7, 2006 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
November 7, 2006 at the Troy Museum due to lack of quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, December 5, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at the 
Troy Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

1 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01d



TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL NOVEMBER 21, 2006 
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was held Tuesday, 
November 21, 2006 at City Hall. Barbara Chambers called the meeting to order at 7:37 
P.M.   
 
ROLL CALL PRESENT Barbara Chambers 
   Muriel Rounds 
   Sabah Jihad 
   Paul Lin 
   Ann Partlan 
   Gary Castile  
                        Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager            
 
    ABSENT Robert Hudson 
   Muriel Rounds  
 
The commission welcomed new commissioner Gary Castile. 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-11-001 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Partlan 
 
RESOLVED, That the absences of Rounds and Hudson be excused. 
Yes: 6⎯ Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, Partlan, and Castile. 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Resolution #HDC-2006-11-002 
Moved by Partlan  
Seconded by Lin 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the October 17, 2006 meeting be approved. 
Yes: 6⎯ Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, Partlan, and Castile. 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Notification of potential buyers of Historic Resources 
The Commission discussed problems that arise when historic resources are sold. 
Commission members will draft a letter to local congressmen asking them to 
consider legislation requiring that full disclosure of any historic designation and 

1 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01e



an explanation of that designation are required on all properties listed for sale by 
realtors in Michigan.  
 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
B. Request by Wil Bedford, 4820 Livernois 

Loraine Campbell reported that Mr. Bedford met with Mark Miller, City Planner 
and is investigating selling his historically designated property as commercial real 
estate.  

 
C. Historic District Study Committee Preliminary Report: 2955 Quail Run 

The committee reviewed the preliminary report provided by the Historic District 
Study Committee.   

 
Resolution #HDC-2006-11-003 
Moved by Lin  
Seconded by Castile 
 
RESOLVED, That the historic resource at 2955 Quail Run is conservatively 107 
years old and is therefore a relatively rare resource in the City of Troy.  The 
Historic District Study Committee should include in the final report the ratio of 
number of structures of that age to the number on non-historic residences in 
Troy to demonstrate the historic value of the resource by virtue of its rarity.  
 
Yes: 6⎯ Chambers, Rounds, Jihad, Lin, Partlan, and Castile. 
No: 0 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

D. Review of Troy and Birmingham’s Historic Preservation Ordinance 
Discussion was deferred until the next meeting. 
.  
 

The Troy Historic District Commission Meeting was adjourned at 9:02 PM. The next 
meeting will be held Tuesday, December 19, 2006 at 7:30 p.m. at City Hall in 
Conference Room C. 

 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairperson 

 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

2 



TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT STUDY COMMITTEE MINUTES – FINAL DECEMBER 5, 2006 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Study Committee was not held Tuesday, 
December 5, 2006 at the Troy Museum due to lack of quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, January 2, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at the Troy 
Museum. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Kevin Lindsey 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

1 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01f



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                         JANUARY 16, 2007 

The Vice-Chairman, Mark Maxwell, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals 
to order on Tuesday, January 16, 2007 at 7:30 P.M. in Council Chambers of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ABSENT:  Glenn Clark 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to excuse Mr. Clark from tonight’s meeting as he has not been sworn in as a 
member of the Board of Zoning Appeals. 
 
Yeas:  6 –Fejes, Gies, Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney 
 
MOTION TO EXCUSE MR CLARK CARRIED 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 19, 2006 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 19, 2006 as written. 
 
Yeas:  5 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes 
Abstain: 1 - Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – APPROVAL OF ITEM #3 AND ITEM #4 
 
Motion by Wright 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve Item #3 and #4 in accordance with the suggested resolutions 
printed in the Agenda Explanation. 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01g



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                         JANUARY 16, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE ITEM #3 AND #4 CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  CATS BUILDING, 2100 W. BIG BEAVER, for 
relief of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the north end of the west 
property line. 
 
The petitioner is requesting relief of the requirement to erect a 6’ high masonry-
screening wall along the west property line at the north end of this site.  The northern 
73’ of this property abuts residential zoning to the west and a 6’ high masonry-screening 
wall is required along that portion of the property by Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  This Board originally granted relief for this wall in 1983, based on the fact 
that the adjacent land was undeveloped and used as a retention pond.  In January 
2004, this Board granted a three (3) year renewal of this variance.  Conditions remain 
the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant CATS Building, 2100 W. Big Beaver, a three (3) year renewal of a 
variance for relief of the required 6’ high masonry-screening wall required along the 
north end of the west property line. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not cause an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
ITEM #4 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  FAITH APOSTOLIC CHURCH, 6710 CROOKS, 
for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north, east and 
south sides of off-street parking area, which abut residentially zoned property. 
 
The petitioner is requesting renewal of a variance granted by this Board since July 
1981, for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry wall required by Section 39.10.01 of the Zoning 
Ordinance on the north, east and south sides of their off-street parking areas, which 
abut residential zoned property.  This item last appeared before this Board at the 
meeting of January 2001 and was granted a three (3) year renewal at that time. 
Conditions remain the same and we have no objections or complaints on file. 
 
MOVED, to grant Faith Apostolic Church, 6710 Crooks, a three (3) year renewal of a 
variance for relief of the 4’-6” high masonry screening wall required along the north, east 
and south sides of off-street parking areas, which abut residentially zoned property. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                         JANUARY 16, 2007 

ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  VARIANCE REQUEST.  FRANCO MANCINI, 
6693 ROCHESTER ROAD (PROPOSED ADDRESS), for relief of the Ordinance to 
construct a new one-story office building adjacent to Residential Zoned property without 
a screen wall as required by Section 39.10.01. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a new one-story office building.  The property to the north of this site is in zoned R-1T 
(One-Family Attached Residential).  The property to the west of this site is in zoned R-
1C (One-Family Residential).  Section 39.10.01 requires a 6’ high masonry screen wall 
between an O-1 (Office Building) zoned development and residential zoned property.  
The site plan submitted does not show a screening wall. 
 
Mr. Franco Mancini was present and stated that this parcel was surrounded by heavy 
vegetation and a lot of natural resources.  There is a detention pond to the west of the 
site and the property to the north has a natural wetland buffer between this site and the 
condo complex. There is also a lot of natural wild life that is on the site. Mr. Mancini 
would like to utilize the natural features rather than put up a screen wall as he feels it 
would have a negative effect on the wetlands. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked when construction would begin.  Mr. Mancini said that he would like 
to begin by late summer. 
 
Mr. Maxwell opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the petitioner had thought of putting a berm in on the north side of 
the property.  Mr. Mancini stated that the parking lot would be approximately 20’ from 
the property line to keep the natural vegetation and put in a 5’ sidewalk.  A berm would 
require that the natural features be destroyed.  The natural vegetation is very thick and 
Mr. Mancini feels it would be sufficient to work as a buffer.  Mr. Courtney asked if there 
was room for a berm and Mr. Mancini said that he did not believe there was. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he did not believe you could grant a temporary variance on this 
and although traffic on Lovell may want to look at the pond, they may not want to look at 
a Medical Office building.  Mr. Mancini said that they have designed the building to look 
as close to a residential home as possible.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he would still like to give people enough time to decide if they 
would like to have a screening wall. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained the difference between granting a temporary or permanent 
variance and said that basically Mr. Mancini’s request was for a variance to eliminate 
the required screening wall.  Mr. Stimac also explained that the building is 
approximately 20’ from the north property line, and because of the location of doors on  

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – FINAL                                         JANUARY 16, 2007 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
the north side of the building a sidewalk would be required.  A 4’-6” high berm would be 
almost impossible to install in the remaining space.   
 
Along the east property line the parking lot is right up to the edge and if there were a 
recurring waiver of a berm, the petitioner would lose required parking if he were ever 
required to install the berm.  The petitioner is asking the Board to waive the requirement 
of a screen wall.  If it was decided at a later time that a screen wall would be required, 
the Board could have him put one up without adversely effecting the development. 
 
Motion by Kovacs 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to grant Franco Mancini, 6693 Rochester Road (proposed address), relief of 
the Ordinance to construct a new one-story office building adjacent to Residential 
Zoned property without a screen wall as required by Section 39.10.01 for a period of 
one-year. 
 

• One-year time frame will give the Board the opportunity to determine if a screen 
wall would be more effective. 

• One-year time frame will give the Board the opportunity to see the final 
construction of the building. 

• One-year time frame will give residents in the area the chance to determine if 
the natural vegetation will provide enough screening. 

 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Fejes, Gies 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE FOR ONE-YEAR CARRIED 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 7:42 P.M. 
 
 
              
      Mark Maxwell, Vice-Chairman 
 
              

     Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 

 4



TROY HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION MINUTES – FINAL JANUARY 16, 2007 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy Historic District Commission was not held Tuesday, 
January 16, 2007 at City Hall due to lack of quorum. 
 
 
The next regular meeting will be held Tuesday, February 20, 2007 at 7:30 p.m. at City 
Hall. 
 

 
 
 
 
                  
Barbara Chambers 
Chairman 
 
 
 
Loraine Campbell 
Recording Secretary 

1 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01h



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   January 24, 2007  
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on January 24, 2007 at 7:00 PM at 
the Troy Historical Museum, 60 W. Wattles.  Maxine D’Amico called the meeting to order at 
7:06 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey 
Maxine D’Amico  
Rishi Joshi  
Jessica Kraft  
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall  
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes (Secretary) 
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert (Co-chair) 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Alex Gabriel 
VISITORS: Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-1-1 
  Moved by   Bozimowski 
  Seconded by  Thoenes 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of December 20, 2006 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 12 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  1 - Gabriel   
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through December 2006.  Reviewed by council members, no 
comments.   

 
4.   Visitor:   Loraine Campbell, Museum Manager 
   Presented information on the following: 

-Recent move of Church and parsonage.  33 companies were 
involved in the move. 
-Township Hall (1927) 
-Morris Wattles 
-Published books 
-Yearly events 
-Parking arrangements with Walsh College and Zion Church. 
-Volunteer opportunities for high school students 
 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01i



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   January 24, 2007  
 
 

 2

5. Troy Daze Festival Update:      
Andrew Corey attended the Troy Daze Committee meeting on Tuesday, 
January 23.  Reported the following to Youth Council: 
-City will maintain control of event and accepted resignations of committee 
members.   

  -Privatizing options will be researched for years beyond 2007.   
-Corey expressed concern regarding ride fees to committee.   Fees are under 
contract for 2007. 
-Troy Daze Committee members invited Youth Council to join them in pre 
festival inspection walk if desired. 

 
 

6.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provid ed Advance Notification  
  No motion – no excused members 
  Resolution # TY- 

  Moved by   
  Seconded by    

  
 RESOLVED that  

  Yes:   
            No:         
  Absent:    
 
7.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
8. Public Comments  –  

-None. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:37 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Maxine D’Amico, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: February 28 at 7:00 P.M.  



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Feb. 1, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Feb. 1, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: Frank Shier, Member    
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-2-001 
Moved by JoAnn Thompson  
Seconded by Jo Rhoads  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Jan 4, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  7       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed awards, accomplishments, and upcoming events within the Troy 
School District including the art show at Somerset Mall.  
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that “learn to play” sessions will be offered in 
April and May and sign-ups for leagues will begin in April.  Merrill asked how the equipment 
would be stored, and Carla reported that it the details have not been finalized. 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that the contract with Emerald 
Food Service to provide exclusive catering ends February 12.   A Request For Proposals has 
been sent to vendors and is in the process of evaluation.  Changes in the food policy regarding 
non-profit groups that meet the residency requirement will also be finalized in the near future.  
Vending machines will replace the café effective the week of February 12 that will include soft 
drinks, snacks, coffee, and sandwiches/soups, etc. 
 
Lunch Visits:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she had lunch at the Clawson center and it was 
very good.  She also got information on the programs they offer there. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01j



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Feb. 1, 2007 

2 

Medicare Part D:  JoAnn Thompson commented that there will not be much to discuss until 
the end of the year and this item could be taken off the agenda until then. 
 
Kaleidoscope:  Bud Black reported that it was a nice event and lots of up-to-date information 
was given out.  He spoke to the SHARP representative there about attending an advisory 
committee meeting. 
 
New Business 
 
AED:  JoAnn Thompson reported that she had received a call with a complaint that the front 
desk staff at the Community Center did not know where the automatic external defibrillator was 
stored and that the device should be accessible to the public.  Carla will follow up with the 
building supervisor and report back next month. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they discussed park plans. 
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they are very busy.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that the new senior home repair program, SHARP, held it’s 
kick-off on January 25.  Six requests for service were received in the first week.  These 
included fixing a leaky faucet, replacing a broken window, securing a loose railing and 
removing some broken tree limbs.  More volunteers are needed, so please spread the word.  
Volunteer applications are available at the Community Center or on the City’s website.  Troy’s 
spelling duel was held on January 18, and the county duel will be in Troy on February 28.  
Seven cities will compete.  
 
OLHSA:  No report. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report.  
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one suggestion about supporting senior’s 
effort to remain healthy through nutrition education.  Carla reported that occasional nutrition 
programs are offered and a 12-week program was offered last year as part of the national “Eat 
Better, Move More” campaign.   These programs are not especially well attended, and seniors 
may well be getting some of their nutrition information elsewhere – magazines, Internet, their 
doctor, etc.  Staff will make an effort to offer additional nutrition program in the near future.  
 
Comments 
 
James Berar suggested that the Committee participate in the open comments section of the 
City Council meetings by letting them know what is going on with the senior program. 
 
David Ogg reported that he is on a committee at Beaumont Hospital that is seeking input on 
how to improve hospital services. 
 
James Berar reported that he is participating in an ethnic festival in Sterling Height s on Feb. 2. 
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                        Feb. 1, 2007 

3 

JoAnn Thompson reported that the Supper Club has their first dinner planned and it will have a 
Polish theme. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:10 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 6, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson  Mark J. Vleck 
Mary Kerwin 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative (exited at 8:50 p.m.) 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-026 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Vleck is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-027 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published.  
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01k



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

3. MINUTES – January 23, 2007 Special/Study Meeting 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-028 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the January 23, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented.   
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

5. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00  
Planned Unit Developments 
 
Mr. Miller updated the Planning Commission on changes made to the draft ZOTA 
since the January 23, 2007 Special/Study meeting, as described in the memo. 
 
Planning Commission discussion followed. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested that the terms “conceptual building design” and “building 
massing model” replace “preliminary building elevations” in Section 35.50.01.C.7. 
 
Mr. Strat suggested a number of minor changes to the draft ZOTA. 
 
Chair Schultz expressed his concern with the term “submittal” in Section 35.50.01.F, 
and prefers the term “approval”. 
 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

6. POTENTIAL FUTURE P.U.D. – Proposed Big Beaver / Kilmer P.U.D., Northeast 
corner of Big Beaver and Kilmer, Section 22, Currently Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
and R-1E (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the project and project team. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

The project team consists of: 
• Ross Fisher, Fisher Commercial Properties, 2604 Derby, Birmingham, MI 
• Kimberly Lapinski, Tiseo Architects, Inc., 19815 Farmington Road, Livonia, MI 
• Cary Gitre, Landus, 150 N. Cranbrook, Bloomfield, MI 
• Ryan Marsh, T.H. Marsh Construction Co., 4382 Queens Way, Bloomfield Hills, 

MI 
 
The project team described the potential mixed use PUD that includes two retail 
buildings fronting on Big Beaver Road and a four-story residential loft building to the 
north.  The petitioners propose sustainable LEED design features such as green 
roofs and pervious paving. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
Chair Schultz summarized the Planning Commission’s feedback: 
• General support for the mixed-use project. 
• Support the LEED concepts. 
• Concern in providing sufficient parking for the residential component. 
• Concern about the height of the residential building with respect to single-family 

residences to the north. 
• Maximum open space and landscaping on the site. 
• Meet with the neighbors to listen to their concerns. 
 
 

The Chair announced a break at 8:45 p.m. and reconvened the meeting at 8:50 p.m. 
 
 

7. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #8) – Proposed Big Beaver Place, North 
side of Big Beaver, East of John R, Section 24, Currently Zoned R-1E (One Family 
Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the project and project team. 
 
The project team consists of: 
• Lise Newman, Landry + Newman Architecture, 211 N. Old Woodward, 

Birmingham, MI 
• Carol Thurber, Fazal Khan and Associates, 43279 Schoenherr, Sterling Heights, 

MI 
 
The petitioners described the mixed-use project that consists of a one-story retail 
building and a one-story bank with drive-thru on Big Beaver Road, with townhouses to 
the north and behind the retail building.  The proposal also includes a stormwater 
retention pond water feature and other sustainable design features such as bioswales 
and possibly green roofs. 
 
Mr. Littman stated the project was out of place at that location. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

The following is a summary of Planning Commission comments. 
• General support for the project. 
• Move bank closer to Big Beaver. 
• Residential units are modern in appearance; some did not like the design, others 

said it was creative and exciting. 
• General support for sustainable design. 
 
 

8. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #6) – Proposed Oasis at Centennial 
Park, South side of Long Lake, West side of John R, Section 14, Currently Zoned 
R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller introduced the project and project team. 
 
The project team consists of the following: 
• Lise Newman, Landry + Newman Architecture, 211 N. Old Woodward, 

Birmingham, MI 
• Carol Thurber, Fazal Khan and Associates, 43279 Schoenherr, Sterling Heights, 

MI 
 
The petitioners described the mixed-use project that consists of retail, office, 
restaurant, daycare and Greenhouse elderly housing.  Other elements include a water 
feature and other sustainable design features such as bioswales. 
 
The following is a summary of Planning Commission comments: 
• General support of the project. 
• Excessive distance between parking and the residential and the gym. 
• Connect the two Greenhouse buildings. 
• Location of dumpsters needs to be studied. 
• Reduce impact of parking on Long Lake. 
• Potential cross access to the west. 
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Article 40.66.00, Commercial Vehicle Definitions and Outdoor Parking of 
Commercial Vehicles in Residential Districts 
 
Mr. Miller updated the Planning Commission on the status of the item. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
There was general consensus that the Planning Department would use the 
commercial vehicle provisions from the Lyon Township Zoning Ordinance as a 
model to create draft provisions. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Miller stated the Planning Department would distribute the commercial vehicle 
visual preference survey so the new commissioners could complete it. 

 
 
10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 228) – Article 21.00.00 

Outdoor Seasonal Displays in the B-2 (Community Business) District 
 

Mr. Miller summarized the item. 
 

General discussion followed. 
 

The following is a summary of Planning Commission comments: 
• Permit in all B districts. 
• Ensure it is permitted on a seasonal basis, not permanent. 
• Have enforcement officials review the draft. 
• Planning Department to advertise for Public Hearing in March. 

 
 

11. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 229) – Article 28.00.00  Rental 
Car Agencies in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District 

 
Mr. Miller summarized the item. 

 
The Planning Commission reached consensus that it should be permitted by right 
and not by Special Use Approval. 

 
 

12. PLANNING COMMISSION PRIORITIES 
 

There was consensus to begin discussion of this item at a future meeting, due to 
the late hour. 

 
 

13. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

14. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 

There was general discussion by the Planning Commission. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 6, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:17 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\02-06-07 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:32 A.M. on Wednesday, February 7, 2007 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Ted Dziurman 
   Rick Kessler 
   Bill Nelson 
   Tim Richnak  
   Frank Zuazo 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Mitch Grusnick, Residential Plan Analyst 
   Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 3, 2007 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Kessler 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of January 3, 2007 as written. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  TONY GEE, 533 E. WATTLES, for relief of Chapter 
83 to install a fence. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” 
high non-obscuring fence and two (2) masonry columns 4’-11” in height located in the 
front yard parallel to and setback 4’ from the sidewalk along E. Wattles Road.  Chapter 
83 limits the height of fences located in front yard setbacks to not more than 30” in 
height. 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Gee were present.  Mr. Gee stated that he is asking for this variance 
because he would like to put the columns up, as it would give the property the look they 
are trying to achieve and they would also like to add additional landscaping. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if the fence would tie into anything and Mr. Gee said that it would 
not.  Mr. Gee said that they want to add berms and different levels of shrubbery.  The 
columns would be made of the same stone that is on the house and the fence would be 
a black ornamental fence.   
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the location of the posts was and Mr. Stimac said that they 
are proposed to be 4’ from the sidewalk along Wattles Road. 
 

 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-01l



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #2 –con’t. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he did not see a landscaping plan and asked what type of 
landscaping Mr. Gee wished to add. 
 
Mr. Gee said that they plan to add a row of landscaping in front of the fence and a row 
behind the fence.  He said that they want to use burning bushes and arborvitae.  Mr. 
Gee said that this will soften the fence line.  Mr. Gee also said that he wants to add this 
fence to help screen lights from traffic on the street across Wattles Road.  Mr. Gee said 
that his bedroom is on the first level and at night there is a lot of traffic on this street and 
the lights shine into his bedroom. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are two (2) written objections on file.  There is one (1) written approval on file. 
 
Mr. Gee stated that they have been moving dead trees off the property since they 
owned it and have tried to work with the neighbor behind them but have not had any 
success. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that this Board is only reviewing the request for the fence even though 
a letter objecting to the fence was presented.  Mr. Kessler said that it is not up to this 
Board to act on the matter of the dead trees. 
 
Mr. Kessler asked if the property line was about 1’ from the sidewalk.  Mr. Gee said he 
thought that was correct. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that would give them about 3’ to add additional landscaping.  Mr. Gee 
said that he thought it was about 4’ to 5’ and he is trying to leave enough room for the 
pine trees to develop.  Mr. Kessler said he would like to see the fence line moved back 
farther so the new landscaping was not damaged by the proximity to the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Gee said that he thought the fence could be moved back an additional 2’ or 3’ to 
give the pine trees room to grow. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if the pillars were part of the fence and Mr. Stimac said that they 
were. 
 
Mr. Zuazo asked what the hardship was.  Mr. Gee said that basically it is the amount of 
traffic coming off of the street across Wattles Road and the lights shining into his 
bedroom. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked if he was correct that Mr. Gee wanted to add extra landscaping 
because of the lights of oncoming traffic, but wanted to put up a fence so that it would 
look better. 

 2



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Gee said that was correct and he would be willing to shorten the length of the fence 
but they were really hoping to be able to add the columns as it would be aesthetically 
pleasing. 
 
Mr. Zuazo said that basically they plan to put up a fence and then cover it.  Mr. Gee said 
that it would not be covered but the landscaping would soften the look of the fence. 
 
Mr. Richnak explained that one of the things that allows the Board to grant a variance is 
a hardship with the land and he did not see a hardship that would justify the fence.  Mr. 
Richnak felt that the berm and extra landscaping could adequately screen the lights. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said he thought this was an unusual house and asked if the fence could 
be moved back. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that if the petitioner took the fence out of the front setback, he could put 
up a 6’ high privacy fence if it was 50’ from the front property line. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that he could understand the need to screen the lights and believes 
that a decorative entrance does enhance the property.  Mr. Kessler also said that the 
additional landscaping would enhance the look of the property along Wattles Road.  Mr. 
Kessler stated that he would be opposed to any type of gate. 
 
Mr. Gee said that he wants to increase the value of the property as well as add privacy.  
He has no intention of adding gates and said that he would be willing to move the fence 
back 4’ or 5’. 
 
Mr. Kessler said that currently they are proposing a setback of 4 ½’ from the sidewalk.  
Mr. Gee said that he could move it back between 5’ and 10’ and still give the existing 
pine trees room to grow. 
 
Mr. Richnak asked what type of trees these were and Mrs. Gee said that they are White 
Pines. 
 
Mr. Dziurman said that in his opinion this was a very unique request even though they 
do not have a hardship.  He said that he did not have a problem with the fence and 
could understand the request for the pillars. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if the fence could be moved farther back from the sidewalk.  Mr. Gee 
said that he thought he could go to 8’ from the sidewalk.  He believes there is about 15’ 
or 20’ before he would hit the existing trees. 
 
Motion by Nelson 
Supported by Kessler 
 

 3



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
MOVED, to grant Tony Gee, 533 E. Wattles, relief of Chapter 83 to install a 48” high 
non-obscuring fence and two (2) masonry columns 4’-11” in height located in the front 
yard along E. Wattles Road. 
 

• Fence is to be a minimum of 8’ from the right of way line. 
• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE REQUEST CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUEST.  DON STURR OF NATIONAL SIGNS, LTD, 30 E. 
BIG BEAVER, for relief to erect three (3) wall signs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to erect 
three (3) wall signs.  Section 85.02.05, 3 allows one (1) wall sign, up to 10% of the area 
of the front of the structure to a maximum of 200 square feet in area and an additional 
wall sign 20 square feet in area.  The plans submitted indicate three (3) wall signs, one 
39.79 square feet, one 32.5 square feet and one 29.79 square feet in area.  These 
signs exceed the number of wall signs that are permitted. 
 
Mr. Don Sturr representing Kona Grill and Mr. William Siewert of MLS Signs were 
present.   Mr. Sturr said that after reviewing the plans they would like to withdraw the 
request for a sign on the south side of the building.  Visibility would be poor for traffic 
traveling north or south.   
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that it was his understanding that the petitioner could have a sign 
on the front of the building, the north side, up to 200 square feet and one additional sign 
that would be up to 20 square feet.  Mr. Stimac said that was correct and the reason this 
request was before the Board was because the petitioner is asking for a second sign 
that would be 29.79 square feet. 
 
Mr. Sturr said that they would like a larger sign on the west side of the building as it 
would be very visible to people traveling along Livernois and Big Beaver. 
 
Mr. Kessler stated that he could understand the need for more signage as this 
restaurant is on a corner and it is possible that the mature vegetation in the area would 
obscure the Logo. 
 
Mr. Nelson asked if they planned to add signage to the awnings on the building.  Mr. 
Sturr stated that there would not be any signage on the awnings. 
 
 

 4



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                           FEBRUARY 7, 2007 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There are no written objections or approvals on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Nelson 
 
MOVED, to grant Don Sturr of National Signs, LTD, 30 E. Big Beaver relief of the 
Ordinance to erect a wall sign on the west side of the building that will be 29.79 square 
feet in area, where Section 85.02.05 allows an additional wall sign 20 square feet in 
area. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• The total area of signage proposed is considerably less that permitted by the 

Ordinance. 
 
Yeas:  All – 5 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:03 A.M. 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 

 5



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-1- 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chairperson Schultz at 7:35 p.m. on February 13, 2007 in the Council Chambers of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Thomas Strat 
Robert Schultz Kathleen Troshynski 
John J. Tagle Wayne Wright 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Cheryl Printz, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-029 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman, Strat, Troshynski and Wright are excused 
from attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chairperson Schultz informed all present that while there was a quorum, a 
unanimous vote would be needed to have approval on any agenda items.  He 
stated that any petitioner who desired to do so could withdraw their item from this 
evening’s agenda.  
 
Commissioner Hutson noted that he would be asking to be excused from items 
#12 & 13 due to a conflict of interest, so those items would not be able to be 
considered tonight. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01m



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-2- 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-030 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by:  Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised agenda as distributed. 
 
Yes:  All present (5) 
No:  None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – 

Article 35.00.00  Planned Unit Developments 
 
Planning Director Miller presented a summary on the Planning Department report 
on the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00 Planned 
Unit Developments. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING RE-OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-031 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXXV GENERAL PROVISIONS, 
pertaining to Planned Unit Developments (PUD), be amended as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Draft dated 
February 7, 2007.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-3- 

Yes:  All present (5) 
No:  None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP-937) – Existing Industrial Building Parking and Drive 

Modifications, West side of Rochester Road, North of Maple, Section 27 – Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Theodore Wahl and Ken Dudry of PEA were present for the petitioner. 
 
Planning Director Miller provided the Planning Commission with a review of the 
site plan and stated that this was presented to the Planning Commission on 
January 9, 2007 and was postponed due to a request for additional information 
regarding the storm water retention.  The petitioner did submit additional 
information pertaining to this matter for the Planning Commission’s review. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated that the site plan showed storm catches in the 
parking lot, but it did not show were they were draining to.  He then asked if the 
storm catches been eliminated. 
 
Mr. Dudry responded that they will be outleting to the existing drain on the west 
side of the property and then there is an existing catch basin on the east that 
they will tie into.  The storm catches have been eliminated. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked City Attorney Lancaster if there was a liability to the 
City from a potential slip and fall as a result of water pooling and freezing in the 
parking lot.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster responded that the City would not be liable 
because of the existence of governmental immunity and the site plan must meet 
all engineering standards prior to final approval. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-032 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the existing 
Industrial Building Parking and Drive Modifications, located on the west side of 
Rochester and north of Maple, Section 27, within the M-1 Zoning District, be 
granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-4- 

Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #7) – Proposed 

Village at Big Beaver, Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Robert Jacobs was present on behalf of the petitioner.  In view of the five vote 
rule, he requested that this item be moved to one of the study sessions in 
February. 
 
Planning Director Miller stated that due to notification requirements for a Public 
Hearing the March 6, 2007 meeting is the earliest date to postpone to. 
 
Philip Fitzgerald, business manager for First Baptist Church of Troy, 2601 John 
R, Troy, stated he would like to have the opportunity to speak on this item when it 
is considered. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-033 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends that The Village at Big 
Beaver Preliminary Planned Unit Development be postponed until March 6, 
2007. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-5- 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING REQUEST (Z-725) – Proposed Office Bldg., 

East of Livernois, South side of Wattles, Section 22 – From R-1C (One Family 
Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Planning Director Miller presented a summary on the Planning Department report 
for rezoning request Z-725.  He noted that there was an error on the written 
correspondence regarding this location, and it should read that it is located on 
the south side of Wattles.   
 
Bill Mosher, 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was present on behalf of the 
petitioner.  He stated that this is a unique parcel.  It has been for sale for three 
years with residential zoning, but the housing market is weak.  There have, 
however, been a lot of inquiries for office use.  This is a more compatible use in 
light of the surrounding parcel arrangements and their uses.  
 
Tony Haddad, 6507 John R, the petitioner, stated he would like to proceed with 
the rezoning request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lee Nardi, 6507 John R, stated he lives directly across the street from the 
proposed office.  There is way too much noise from the church and mainly the 
school.  There are floodlights on at the school that light up the neighborhood.  
The proposed office location will be directly in front of his front window and he 
does not wish to look at it.  In addition, we have a lot of truck traffic creating a 
large amount of noise, and any office use would make the area less desirable. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Vleck stated he agreed that if it were to be rezoned, it would be 
spot zoning; however, we have a piece of property where on the north it is 
residential, but on both the east and west side there are heavy use zoning.  It 
would be difficult to justify a residential use going into this area and poses a 
difficult zoning question. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked if there are any wetlands. 
 
Planning Director Miller replied that the natural features map does not indicate 
any wetlands. 
 
Chairperson Schultz added that the east and south property of the border are 
active drains. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-6- 

Mr. Haddad informed the Planning Commission that approximately a year ago 
the Brookfield academy wanted to buy the property.  They were unable to put a 
daycare in the location due to ordinance restrictions.  Despite the ordinance 
being changed, they pulled out of the purchase agreement.  The point is, the 
ordinance already exists to permit daycare at a private academy and that is 
consistent with office zoning.  
 
Chairperson Schultz asked if daycares, in schools, require O-1 zoning. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded that the City amended the Zoning Ordinance 
to allow a daycare be in a single family zoning district in a private school.  They 
are also permitted in other residential zoning when they are adjacent to an O-1 
zoning or other commercial zoning. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified that this property does not require O-1 zoning if 
Brookfield Academy wanted to put a daycare at that site.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02- - 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size, be 
granted. 
 
MOTION DIED for lack of second. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-034 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. If approved the O-1 parcel would constitute an undesirable spot zone. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Vleck, Kerwin 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-7- 

NO ACTION ON MOTION due to failure to obtain minimum of five (5) votes 
needed to pass or fail. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-035 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby reconsiders the vote on the 
R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the south side of 
Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-036 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. If approved the O-1 parcel would constitute an undesirable spot zone. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Schultz, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU-348) – Existing Troy Church 

of the Nazarene Addition, West side of Crooks, South of South Blvd. (6840 
Crooks), Section 4, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-8- 

Planning Director Miller provided the Planning Commission with a review of the 
Planning Department report on the request for SU-348.   
 
Discussion followed on proposed conditions to the Special Land Use request. 
 
Chairperson Schultz asked if the six-foot screen wall, which is proposed at the 
rear of the property, is required by the City even though it is screening the trees 
on their own property. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded yes it is required because it is a parking lot.  
However, the petitioner could seek relief of the requirement from the Zoning 
Board of Appeals. 
 
Mark Hiller, Livingston Engineering, and Denise Wegner, Senior Pastor, were 
both present representing the petitioner. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
There was no one present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Kerwin complimented the petitioner for putting the sidewalk going 
through to Sunrise.  She asked if they are considering a school of any kind in the 
future, and what are the use plans for the facility. 
 
Pastor Wegner responded that a school is not being considered.  The proposed 
uses include: use for a teen group, 6 classrooms for Sunday school and 
Wednesday night education, youth groups, and community events such as blood 
drives. 
 
Commissioner Hutson asked if they anticipate using the fellowship hall during 
worship services for Sunday school. 
 
Pastor Wegner replied that typically they do not have Sunday school at the same 
time as services.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-037 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in 
the total number of required parking spaces to eighty-three (83) when a total of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-9- 

one hundred nine (109) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street 
parking space requirements for churches, as per Article XL.  This reduction 
meets the standards of Article 40.20.12 given the nature of use at the Troy 
Church of the Nazarene. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 10.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as 
requested for the proposed Troy Church of the Nazarene Addition, located on the 
west side of Crooks, South of South Boulevard, in Section 4, within the R-1B 
zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant shall provide a dumpster enclosure meeting the 

requirements of Section 39.70.09 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
2. All connecting sidewalks shall be at least 5 feet in width. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

    
 

At this point in the meeting, Assistant City Attorney Lancaster noted the applicant for 
Agenda Item #12 was present and suggested the Planning Commission consider 
Agenda Item #12 at this time since the Commissioner Hutson will be abstaining from 
this vote and no action will take place this evening. 

 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-038 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission move Agenda Item #12, Site Plan 
Review (SP-909 C) proposed Starbucks Coffee Restaurant, Northwest corner of 
Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 29, H-S (Highway Service) and B-3 (General 
Business) District, to Agenda Item 8a. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-10- 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

8a. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP-909 C) – Proposed Starbucks Coffee Restaurant, 
Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 29, H-S (Highway Service) 
and B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-039 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the 
proposed Amendment to Consent Judgment, as requested for the proposed 
Starbucks Restaurant, located on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Crooks, located in Section 29, on approximately 0.53 acres, within the B-3 and 
H-S zoning districts, be postponed to the meeting of February 27, 2007 for the 
following reason: 
 
1. The petitioner requested item is postponed until more planning 

commission members were in attendance.   
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLANS 
 
9. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Timbercrest Farms Site Condominium, 32 units/lots 

proposed, South of Wattles Road, West of Fernleigh, Section 24, Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Principal Planner Savidant provided a summary of the Planning Department 
report for the Planning Commission. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified the number of units on the site plan is 32.   
 
Principal Planner Savidant verified that there were 32 units on the site plan. 
 
There was no one member of the public present to speak. 
 
Elaine Simpson, 50215 Schoenherr, was present representing the applicant.  
She stated there are 32 units and an outlot.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-11- 

Commissioner Vleck stated that on the court where lots 51, 52, 53, and 54 are 
located, the sidewalk goes all the way to the property line.  He asked if it would 
be possible to shorten that street to obtain additional landscaping between the 
sidewalk and the property line. 
 
Nader Wehbe, 25775 W. 10 Mile Rd., Southfield, Engineer for the development, 
was present.  He responded that they have just reduced it by five feet so the 
sidewalk is now 6 feet from the property line. 
 
Chairperson Schultz asked if the Planning Department has an alternative site 
plan that is different from the one which the Planning Commission has. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant replied no. 
 
Mr. Wehbe clarified that the change can be made and in fact, has been made at 
the site construction stage in their offices; he continued that this is a minor 
change. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked for clarification of where the outlot was located. 
 
Mr. Wehbe stated that the outlot is east of the cul-de-sac, east of lot 53. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant stated that the outlot is not marked on the site plan. 
 
Planning Director Miller informed the Planning Commission that an outlot cannot 
be created as part of a site condominium and requested clarification by the 
petitioner. 
 
Ms. Simpson responded that they originally submitted 33 lots.  After it was 
reviewed by the Planning Department, we were informed that the 33rd lot could 
not be included in the application. 
 
Planning Director Miller stated that it will just not be part of the site condominium 
and technically it is going to be split from the development and will not be part of 
the development. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-040 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Timbercrest Farms Site Condominium, including 
32 units, located south of Wattles and west of Fernleigh, Section 24, within the R-
1C zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-12- 

1. The stub street between lots 51 be shortened to allow for a minimum of six 
feet between the edge of the sidewalk and the property line to the east. 

 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
10. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 11 units/lots 

proposed, South side of Big Beaver Road, East of Adams, Section 30, Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Principal Planner Savidant provided the Planning Commission with a summary of 
the Planning Department report for the Villas of Somerset Site Condominiums. 
 
Joseph Crucciolla, 2025 W. Long Lake Rd, developer for the site, was present. 
 
Jeff Rizzo, 13399 West Star, surveyor and engineer for the site, was present. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked if any other locations for the retention areas were 
considered. 
 
Mr. Rizzo stated they did consider underground retention, but the City prohibits 
this.  They decided to expand the existing retention basin to the adjacent 
subdivision to the west.  
 
Commissioner Tagle will this be a dry pond and what are landscaping plans. 
 
Mr. Rizzo expects it to be a dry pond, and they will meet any landscaping plans 
that the City requires, but basically they will seed or sod the area. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant noted that the pond will be turned over to the City and 
become public property. 
 
Shelly Lauer, 3812 Village Ct, stated she lives just south of property.  The 
residents of the Northpointe 1 subdivision currently maintain that particular 
retention area, how will the combination of the detention areas affect us?  
 
Chairperson Schultz explained that when the retention ponds are built, they are 
deeded over to the city.  They are mowed by the City on an annual basis.   
 
Ms. Lauer stated their subdivision is not aware of this, and it is her understanding 
that this is not owned by the City. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-13- 

Chairperson Schultz responded that the ownership will have to be determined by 
the City. 
 
Karen Lueck, 3826 Village Ct., how do we determine who cares for the property 
once it is combined? 
 
City Attorney Lancaster replied that City staff can research and get an answer for 
the residents.   
 
Commissioner Tagle asked if there is a plan with the boundaries of the existing 
retention area. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded that the existing retention area is off of the 
subject property at the southwest corner. 
 
Tim Madigan, 3798 Village Ct., stated his lot is directly south of the proposed 
subdivision.  Are there any plans for walls, landscaping or fences on the south 
border? 
 
Chairperson Schultz replied that those plans would include whatever is required 
by a City for a residential property abutting another residential property; but there 
are no requirements for walls, landscaping or fences.   
 
Chairperson Schultz observed that there is an existing berm, and asked what are 
the plans for this area? 
 
Mr. Rizzo stated that as part of the design, the berm is right in the future retention 
area.  In addition, with the berm, Units 7 & 8 will have no usable back yard so 
their thoughts were to remove the berm.  He stated the developer may consider 
using the trees on other areas of the property. 
 
Jim Lieck, 3826 Village Ct, stated that the residents have re-landscaped the 
berm, put in 15 large trees, and maintained it for the past 12 years with the 
cooperation of church.  This berm is a major issue for the homeowners.  They 
would like to see trees replanted, perhaps onto their properties. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated the Commission certainly understands your 
concerns, however, that is a risk when making improvements on land not owned. 
 
David Plunkett, representing the church.  While the church understand the 
residents concerns, this is the churches property. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked for clarification on whether the berm was going away. 
 
Mr. Rizzo replied that their intent is to remove the berm to provide suitable area 
for detention and to provide unit 7 and 8 a usable backyard.  To leave it would 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-14- 

leave only the building set back, limiting what a homeowner could do in their 
backyard. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin clarified that the developer was volunteering to replanting 
the trees on the berm. 
 
Mr. Crucciolla replied, absolutely, they are looking to remove the trees, the berm 
and then replant the trees in the area. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated there is confusion due to the grading plan shows the 
elevation for the berm as it exists, it does not show the berm would be removed.   
 
Mr. Rizzo clarified that the intent was to remove the existing 8-inch storm sewer 
and the berm.  The proposed grades and the existing contour of the berm, it 
indicates that it will be removed. 
 
Discussion followed on the drawings submitted and the lack of accuracy to the 
preliminary grading plan. 
 
Mr. Rizzo noted that this is a preliminary grading plan that will be worked out in 
engineering.  He added that they are showing a proposed storm line, if we are 
putting in a storm line, we are not going to maintain the berm. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated it is reasonable to assume that you were going to dig 
into the berm, and replace it since you show the elevations restored.  The 
Commission was surprised tonight to see that the berm was going away. 
 
Mr. Rizzo requested that this site plan be approved subject to the removal of the 
berm.  He added if the site plan is approved, subject to the removal of the berm, 
the developer is willing to work with residents to replant the existing trees at the 
property line.  They will work to accommodate the size of the trees and use what 
means are necessary to preserve them. 
 
Chairperson Shultz confirmed that according to the site plan there are 
approximately 28 trees on the berm.  He asked if the developer’s offer of 
replacing the 28 trees was acceptable to the homeowners association. 
 
Homeowner representative, Karen Lueck, stated that the developer has spoken 
with the residents regarding the trees, and he has been very responsive.  She 
noted that they have to work with the developer pertaining to the re-grading of 
the area and how it affects their yards. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked Ms. Lueck, on behalf of the homeowners, if it is 
acceptable to the homeowners if the berm is being removed if the trees are 
replanted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-15- 

Ms. Lueck answered yes. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin commented that the Commission encourages developers 
to work with neighbors and she is satisfied that this is occurring here.  In addition 
she stated she appreciated the developer volunteering to save trees because 
they are valuable to the community.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-041 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, including 11 
units, located south of Big Beaver and east of Adams, Section 30, within the R-1C 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. It is understood that the existing berm on the south side of that property will 

be removed.   
2.  All trees existing within that berm will be transplanted and replanted after the 

installation of the drainage.   
3. Due to the removal of the existing berm, which extends into the neighboring 

properties to the south, the developer will work with those neighbors to 
ensure the proper drainage from the property owners from the south to the 
new development. 

 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

STREET VACATION 
 
11. PUBLIC HEARING - STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-189) – Alley, west of 

Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, approximately 489.50 feet 
abutting Lots 5 through 13 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3 – Zoned B-1 
(Local Business) and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Principal Planner Savidant reviewed the Planning Department report pertaining 
to the Street Vacation Request, SV-189. 
 
David Plunkett, 300 N. Old Woodward, was present on behalf of the petitioner. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-16- 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked if the alley is 100% located on the applicant’s 
property?  
 
Principal Planner Savidant responded that because it is an alley, it currently is 
City property.  It abuts the entire plat of the applicant’s property. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified that the entire 20 feet will go to the petitioner. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant responded yes. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster noted that the City will look at the plat, and if it 
is on the plat, it will revert back to the property of the plat.  This issue will still 
need to be researched and verified.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-042 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for an alley located west of 
Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, approximately 489.50 feet 
abutting Lots 5 through 13 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3, be 
approved. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
12. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP-909 C) – Proposed Starbucks Coffee Restaurant, 

Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 29, H-S (Highway Service) 
and B-3 (General Business) District 
 
This item was considered as item 8a. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-17- 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST (CR-001) – 
Proposed Troy Medical Office (formerly Z-719), West side of Livernois, North of 
Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster stated that if so desired, the Planning 
Commission can open the Public Hearing and keep it open until a later date. 
 
Brandon Kaufman, 4657 Woodrich, West Bloomfield, the developer and 
petitioner, was present.  He noted his difficulty in attending this evening’s 
meeting and stated he was hoping for site plan approval tonight.  He asked that 
the Public Hearing and discussion take place this evening, while he was present, 
and the Planning Commission action be taken at a later date to be determined by 
the Commission.   
 
Chairperson Schultz asked Mr. Kaufman if he would prefer the item to be 
postponed until the study session February 27th or the Regular Meeting of March 
6th. 
 
Mr. Kaufman stated that he would prefer February 27th. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant summarized the Planning Department report 
regarding Conditional Zoning Request, CR-001.  
 
Commissioner Hutson excused himself from the meeting at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Mr. Kaufman stated that they have taken a significant amount of time to meet 
with the homeowners on several occasions.  We have taken into account the 
screening, building elevations, mechanical system locations, parking lot, as well 
as the layout and design.  We have also worked with the property owner to the 
south.  They recognize this development is adjacent to them and they are trying 
to be receptive to their concerns.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING REMAINS OPEN 
 
Chairperson Schultz asked for clarification on the window on the north elevation.   
 
Mr. Kaufman replied that the floor plan, with no window, would supersede the 
elevation plan. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-18- 

Commissioner Hutson re-entered at 9:33 p.m. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-043 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 conditional rezoning request, as per Section 
03.24.00 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the west side of 
Livernois, north of Big Beaver, within Section 21, being approximately 1.26 acres 
in size, be postponed until the Study Session on February 27, 2007, until more 
Planning Commission members will be in attendance. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER 
 
14. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
No one was present to speak. 
 

 
15. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Planning Director Miller thanked the Planning Commissioners that are in 
attendance due to the inclement weather. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin asked if the Parks and Recreation Department would be 
consulted in the Agenda Item pertaining to the replacement of trees. 
 
Chairperson Schultz commented that if there are any prohibited species, they 
would not be allowed to transplant the trees and that will be handled 
administratively. 
 
Commissioner Vleck added that the trees in question are newer and should not 
have prohibited species among them.  He stated that he noticed around the City 
the blue containers seeking clothes donations.  He asked if there are any 
ordinances that regulate this?  In his opinion, they are littering the City and 
perhaps this should be looked at further. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-19- 

Principal Planner Savidant asked the Commission members to retain their 
packets for the items that have been postponed in an effort to conserve on paper 
usage.    
 
Chairperson Schultz thanked everyone for attending.  While it was an unusual 
meeting, what was accomplished was done efficiently.   

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Chairperson Schultz adjourned the meeting at 9:39 p.m. 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\02-13-07 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-1- 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chairperson Schultz at 7:35 p.m. on February 13, 2007 in the Council Chambers of the 
Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Michael W. Hutson Lawrence Littman 
Mary Kerwin Thomas Strat 
Robert Schultz Kathleen Troshynski 
John J. Tagle Wayne Wright 
Mark J. Vleck 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Cheryl Printz, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-029 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Littman, Strat, Troshynski and Wright are excused 
from attendance at this meeting for personal reasons. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chairperson Schultz informed all present that while there was a quorum, a 
unanimous vote would be needed to have approval on any agenda items.  He 
stated that any petitioner who desired to do so could withdraw their item from this 
evening’s agenda.  
 
Commissioner Hutson noted that he would be asking to be excused from items 
#12 & 13 due to a conflict of interest, so those items would not be able to be 
considered tonight. 

 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01n



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-2- 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-030 
Moved by:  Kerwin 
Seconded by:  Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the revised agenda as distributed. 
 
Yes:  All present (5) 
No:  None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS – For Items Not on the Agenda 
 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 225) – 

Article 35.00.00  Planned Unit Developments 
 
Planning Director Miller presented a summary on the Planning Department report 
on the Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 225) – Article 35.00.00 Planned 
Unit Developments. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING RE-OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-031 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles IV DEFINITIONS and XXXV GENERAL PROVISIONS, 
pertaining to Planned Unit Developments (PUD), be amended as printed on the 
proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment, Planning Commission Draft dated 
February 7, 2007.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-3- 

Yes:  All present (5) 
No:  None 
Absent:  Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
5. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP-937) – Existing Industrial Building Parking and Drive 

Modifications, West side of Rochester Road, North of Maple, Section 27 – Zoned 
M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Theodore Wahl and Ken Dudry of PEA were present for the petitioner. 
 
Planning Director Miller provided the Planning Commission with a review of the 
site plan and stated that this was presented to the Planning Commission on 
January 9, 2007 and was postponed due to a request for additional information 
regarding the storm water retention.  The petitioner did submit additional 
information pertaining to this matter for the Planning Commission’s review. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated that the site plan showed storm catches in the 
parking lot, but it did not show were they were draining to.  He then asked if the 
storm catches been eliminated. 
 
Mr. Dudry responded that they will be outleting to the existing drain on the west 
side of the property and then there is an existing catch basin on the east that 
they will tie into.  The storm catches have been eliminated. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked City Attorney Lancaster if there was a liability to the 
City from a potential slip and fall as a result of water pooling and freezing in the 
parking lot.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster responded that the City would not be liable 
because of the existence of governmental immunity and the site plan must meet 
all engineering standards prior to final approval. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-032 
Moved by:  Hutson 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the existing 
Industrial Building Parking and Drive Modifications, located on the west side of 
Rochester and north of Maple, Section 27, within the M-1 Zoning District, be 
granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-4- 

Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (P.U.D. #7) – Proposed 

Village at Big Beaver, Southwest corner of Big Beaver and John R, Section 26, 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Robert Jacobs was present on behalf of the petitioner.  In view of the five vote 
rule, he requested that this item be moved to one of the study sessions in 
February. 
 
Planning Director Miller stated that due to notification requirements for a Public 
Hearing the March 6, 2007 meeting is the earliest date to postpone to. 
 
Philip Fitzgerald, business manager for First Baptist Church of Troy, 2601 John 
R, Troy, stated he would like to have the opportunity to speak on this item when it 
is considered. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-033 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends that The Village at Big 
Beaver Preliminary Planned Unit Development be postponed until March 6, 
2007. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-5- 

REZONING REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING - REZONING REQUEST (Z-725) – Proposed Office Bldg., 

East of Livernois, South side of Wattles, Section 22 – From R-1C (One Family 
Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Planning Director Miller presented a summary on the Planning Department report 
for rezoning request Z-725.  He noted that there was an error on the written 
correspondence regarding this location, and it should read that it is located on 
the south side of Wattles.   
 
Bill Mosher, 47745 Van Dyke, Shelby Township, was present on behalf of the 
petitioner.  He stated that this is a unique parcel.  It has been for sale for three 
years with residential zoning, but the housing market is weak.  There have, 
however, been a lot of inquiries for office use.  This is a more compatible use in 
light of the surrounding parcel arrangements and their uses.  
 
Tony Haddad, 6507 John R, the petitioner, stated he would like to proceed with 
the rezoning request. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Lee Nardi, 6507 John R, stated he lives directly across the street from the 
proposed office.  There is way too much noise from the church and mainly the 
school.  There are floodlights on at the school that light up the neighborhood.  
The proposed office location will be directly in front of his front window and he 
does not wish to look at it.  In addition, we have a lot of truck traffic creating a 
large amount of noise, and any office use would make the area less desirable. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Vleck stated he agreed that if it were to be rezoned, it would be 
spot zoning; however, we have a piece of property where on the north it is 
residential, but on both the east and west side there are heavy use zoning.  It 
would be difficult to justify a residential use going into this area and poses a 
difficult zoning question. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked if there are any wetlands. 
 
Planning Director Miller replied that the natural features map does not indicate 
any wetlands. 
 
Chairperson Schultz added that the east and south property of the border are 
active drains. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-6- 

Mr. Haddad informed the Planning Commission that approximately a year ago 
the Brookfield academy wanted to buy the property.  They were unable to put a 
daycare in the location due to ordinance restrictions.  Despite the ordinance 
being changed, they pulled out of the purchase agreement.  The point is, the 
ordinance already exists to permit daycare at a private academy and that is 
consistent with office zoning.  
 
Chairperson Schultz asked if daycares, in schools, require O-1 zoning. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded that the City amended the Zoning Ordinance 
to allow a daycare be in a single family zoning district in a private school.  They 
are also permitted in other residential zoning when they are adjacent to an O-1 
zoning or other commercial zoning. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified that this property does not require O-1 zoning if 
Brookfield Academy wanted to put a daycare at that site.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02- - 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by:  
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size, be 
granted. 
 
MOTION DIED for lack of second. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-034 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. If approved the O-1 parcel would constitute an undesirable spot zone. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Schultz, Tagle 
No: Vleck, Kerwin 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-7- 

NO ACTION ON MOTION due to failure to obtain minimum of five (5) votes 
needed to pass or fail. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-035 
Moved by: Schultz 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby reconsiders the vote on the 
R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the south side of 
Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-036 
Moved by: Hutson 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to O-1 rezoning request, located east of Livernois, on the 
south side of Wattles, within Section 22, being approximately 1 acre in size be 
denied, for the following reasons: 
 
1. The application is inconsistent with the Future Land Use Plan.   
2. If approved the O-1 parcel would constitute an undesirable spot zone. 
 
Yes: Hutson, Kerwin, Schultz, Tagle, Vleck 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (SU-348) – Existing Troy Church 

of the Nazarene Addition, West side of Crooks, South of South Blvd. (6840 
Crooks), Section 4, Zoned R-1B (One Family Residential) District 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-8- 

Planning Director Miller provided the Planning Commission with a review of the 
Planning Department report on the request for SU-348.   
 
Discussion followed on proposed conditions to the Special Land Use request. 
 
Chairperson Schultz asked if the six-foot screen wall, which is proposed at the 
rear of the property, is required by the City even though it is screening the trees 
on their own property. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded yes it is required because it is a parking lot.  
However, the petitioner could seek relief of the requirement from the Zoning 
Board of Appeals. 
 
Mark Hiller, Livingston Engineering, and Denise Wegner, Senior Pastor, were 
both present representing the petitioner. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPEN 
 
There was no one present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Kerwin complimented the petitioner for putting the sidewalk going 
through to Sunrise.  She asked if they are considering a school of any kind in the 
future, and what are the use plans for the facility. 
 
Pastor Wegner responded that a school is not being considered.  The proposed 
uses include: use for a teen group, 6 classrooms for Sunday school and 
Wednesday night education, youth groups, and community events such as blood 
drives. 
 
Commissioner Hutson asked if they anticipate using the fellowship hall during 
worship services for Sunday school. 
 
Pastor Wegner replied that typically they do not have Sunday school at the same 
time as services.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-037 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby approves a reduction in 
the total number of required parking spaces to eighty-three (83) when a total of 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-9- 

one hundred nine (109) spaces are required on the site based on the off-street 
parking space requirements for churches, as per Article XL.  This reduction 
meets the standards of Article 40.20.12 given the nature of use at the Troy 
Church of the Nazarene. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site 
Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 10.30.04 of the Zoning Ordinance, as 
requested for the proposed Troy Church of the Nazarene Addition, located on the 
west side of Crooks, South of South Boulevard, in Section 4, within the R-1B 
zoning district, is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. The applicant shall provide a dumpster enclosure meeting the 

requirements of Section 39.70.09 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance. 
2. All connecting sidewalks shall be at least 5 feet in width. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

    
 

At this point in the meeting, Assistant City Attorney Lancaster noted the applicant for 
Agenda Item #12 was present and suggested the Planning Commission consider 
Agenda Item #12 at this time since the Commissioner Hutson will be abstaining from 
this vote and no action will take place this evening. 

 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-038 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission move Agenda Item #12, Site Plan 
Review (SP-909 C) proposed Starbucks Coffee Restaurant, Northwest corner of 
Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 29, H-S (Highway Service) and B-3 (General 
Business) District, to Agenda Item 8a. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-10- 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 

8a. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP-909 C) – Proposed Starbucks Coffee Restaurant, 
Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 29, H-S (Highway Service) 
and B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-039 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the 
proposed Amendment to Consent Judgment, as requested for the proposed 
Starbucks Restaurant, located on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and 
Crooks, located in Section 29, on approximately 0.53 acres, within the B-3 and 
H-S zoning districts, be postponed to the meeting of February 27, 2007 for the 
following reason: 
 
1. The petitioner requested item is postponed until more planning 

commission members were in attendance.   
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLANS 
 
9. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Timbercrest Farms Site Condominium, 32 units/lots 

proposed, South of Wattles Road, West of Fernleigh, Section 24, Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Principal Planner Savidant provided a summary of the Planning Department 
report for the Planning Commission. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified the number of units on the site plan is 32.   
 
Principal Planner Savidant verified that there were 32 units on the site plan. 
 
There was no one member of the public present to speak. 
 
Elaine Simpson, 50215 Schoenherr, was present representing the applicant.  
She stated there are 32 units and an outlot.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-11- 

Commissioner Vleck stated that on the court where lots 51, 52, 53, and 54 are 
located, the sidewalk goes all the way to the property line.  He asked if it would 
be possible to shorten that street to obtain additional landscaping between the 
sidewalk and the property line. 
 
Nader Wehbe, 25775 W. 10 Mile Rd., Southfield, Engineer for the development, 
was present.  He responded that they have just reduced it by five feet so the 
sidewalk is now 6 feet from the property line. 
 
Chairperson Schultz asked if the Planning Department has an alternative site 
plan that is different from the one which the Planning Commission has. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant replied no. 
 
Mr. Wehbe clarified that the change can be made and in fact, has been made at 
the site construction stage in their offices; he continued that this is a minor 
change. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked for clarification of where the outlot was located. 
 
Mr. Wehbe stated that the outlot is east of the cul-de-sac, east of lot 53. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant stated that the outlot is not marked on the site plan. 
 
Planning Director Miller informed the Planning Commission that an outlot cannot 
be created as part of a site condominium and requested clarification by the 
petitioner. 
 
Ms. Simpson responded that they originally submitted 33 lots.  After it was 
reviewed by the Planning Department, we were informed that the 33rd lot could 
not be included in the application. 
 
Planning Director Miller stated that it will just not be part of the site condominium 
and technically it is going to be split from the development and will not be part of 
the development. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-040 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Timbercrest Farms Site Condominium, including 
32 units, located south of Wattles and west of Fernleigh, Section 24, within the R-
1C zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-12- 

1. The stub street between lots 51 be shortened to allow for a minimum of six 
feet between the edge of the sidewalk and the property line to the east. 

 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
10. SITE PLAN REVIEW – Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, 11 units/lots 

proposed, South side of Big Beaver Road, East of Adams, Section 30, Zoned R-1C 
(One Family Residential) District 
 
Principal Planner Savidant provided the Planning Commission with a summary of 
the Planning Department report for the Villas of Somerset Site Condominiums. 
 
Joseph Crucciolla, 2025 W. Long Lake Rd, developer for the site, was present. 
 
Jeff Rizzo, 13399 West Star, surveyor and engineer for the site, was present. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked if any other locations for the retention areas were 
considered. 
 
Mr. Rizzo stated they did consider underground retention, but the City prohibits 
this.  They decided to expand the existing retention basin to the adjacent 
subdivision to the west.  
 
Commissioner Tagle will this be a dry pond and what are landscaping plans. 
 
Mr. Rizzo expects it to be a dry pond, and they will meet any landscaping plans 
that the City requires, but basically they will seed or sod the area. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant noted that the pond will be turned over to the City and 
become public property. 
 
Shelly Lauer, 3812 Village Ct, stated she lives just south of property.  The 
residents of the Northpointe 1 subdivision currently maintain that particular 
retention area, how will the combination of the detention areas affect us?  
 
Chairperson Schultz explained that when the retention ponds are built, they are 
deeded over to the city.  They are mowed by the City on an annual basis.   
 
Ms. Lauer stated their subdivision is not aware of this, and it is her understanding 
that this is not owned by the City. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-13- 

Chairperson Schultz responded that the ownership will have to be determined by 
the City. 
 
Karen Lueck, 3826 Village Ct., how do we determine who cares for the property 
once it is combined? 
 
City Attorney Lancaster replied that City staff can research and get an answer for 
the residents.   
 
Commissioner Tagle asked if there is a plan with the boundaries of the existing 
retention area. 
 
Planning Director Miller responded that the existing retention area is off of the 
subject property at the southwest corner. 
 
Tim Madigan, 3798 Village Ct., stated his lot is directly south of the proposed 
subdivision.  Are there any plans for walls, landscaping or fences on the south 
border? 
 
Chairperson Schultz replied that those plans would include whatever is required 
by a City for a residential property abutting another residential property; but there 
are no requirements for walls, landscaping or fences.   
 
Chairperson Schultz observed that there is an existing berm, and asked what are 
the plans for this area? 
 
Mr. Rizzo stated that as part of the design, the berm is right in the future retention 
area.  In addition, with the berm, Units 7 & 8 will have no usable back yard so 
their thoughts were to remove the berm.  He stated the developer may consider 
using the trees on other areas of the property. 
 
Jim Lieck, 3826 Village Ct, stated that the residents have re-landscaped the 
berm, put in 15 large trees, and maintained it for the past 12 years with the 
cooperation of church.  This berm is a major issue for the homeowners.  They 
would like to see trees replanted, perhaps onto their properties. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated the Commission certainly understands your 
concerns, however, that is a risk when making improvements on land not owned. 
 
David Plunkett, representing the church.  While the church understand the 
residents concerns, this is the churches property. 
 
Commissioner Tagle asked for clarification on whether the berm was going away. 
 
Mr. Rizzo replied that their intent is to remove the berm to provide suitable area 
for detention and to provide unit 7 and 8 a usable backyard.  To leave it would 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-14- 

leave only the building set back, limiting what a homeowner could do in their 
backyard. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin clarified that the developer was volunteering to replanting 
the trees on the berm. 
 
Mr. Crucciolla replied, absolutely, they are looking to remove the trees, the berm 
and then replant the trees in the area. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated there is confusion due to the grading plan shows the 
elevation for the berm as it exists, it does not show the berm would be removed.   
 
Mr. Rizzo clarified that the intent was to remove the existing 8-inch storm sewer 
and the berm.  The proposed grades and the existing contour of the berm, it 
indicates that it will be removed. 
 
Discussion followed on the drawings submitted and the lack of accuracy to the 
preliminary grading plan. 
 
Mr. Rizzo noted that this is a preliminary grading plan that will be worked out in 
engineering.  He added that they are showing a proposed storm line, if we are 
putting in a storm line, we are not going to maintain the berm. 
 
Chairperson Schultz stated it is reasonable to assume that you were going to dig 
into the berm, and replace it since you show the elevations restored.  The 
Commission was surprised tonight to see that the berm was going away. 
 
Mr. Rizzo requested that this site plan be approved subject to the removal of the 
berm.  He added if the site plan is approved, subject to the removal of the berm, 
the developer is willing to work with residents to replant the existing trees at the 
property line.  They will work to accommodate the size of the trees and use what 
means are necessary to preserve them. 
 
Chairperson Shultz confirmed that according to the site plan there are 
approximately 28 trees on the berm.  He asked if the developer’s offer of 
replacing the 28 trees was acceptable to the homeowners association. 
 
Homeowner representative, Karen Lueck, stated that the developer has spoken 
with the residents regarding the trees, and he has been very responsive.  She 
noted that they have to work with the developer pertaining to the re-grading of 
the area and how it affects their yards. 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked Ms. Lueck, on behalf of the homeowners, if it is 
acceptable to the homeowners if the berm is being removed if the trees are 
replanted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-15- 

Ms. Lueck answered yes. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin commented that the Commission encourages developers 
to work with neighbors and she is satisfied that this is occurring here.  In addition 
she stated she appreciated the developer volunteering to save trees because 
they are valuable to the community.  
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-041 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council, that 
the Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Villas of Somerset Site Condominium, including 11 
units, located south of Big Beaver and east of Adams, Section 30, within the R-1C 
zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. It is understood that the existing berm on the south side of that property will 

be removed.   
2.  All trees existing within that berm will be transplanted and replanted after the 

installation of the drainage.   
3. Due to the removal of the existing berm, which extends into the neighboring 

properties to the south, the developer will work with those neighbors to 
ensure the proper drainage from the property owners from the south to the 
new development. 

 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

STREET VACATION 
 
11. PUBLIC HEARING - STREET VACATION REQUEST (SV-189) – Alley, west of 

Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, approximately 489.50 feet 
abutting Lots 5 through 13 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3 – Zoned B-1 
(Local Business) and R-1B (One Family Residential) Districts (the abutting parcels) 
 
Principal Planner Savidant reviewed the Planning Department report pertaining 
to the Street Vacation Request, SV-189. 
 
David Plunkett, 300 N. Old Woodward, was present on behalf of the petitioner. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-16- 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Commissioner Vleck asked if the alley is 100% located on the applicant’s 
property?  
 
Principal Planner Savidant responded that because it is an alley, it currently is 
City property.  It abuts the entire plat of the applicant’s property. 
 
Chairperson Schultz clarified that the entire 20 feet will go to the petitioner. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant responded yes. 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster noted that the City will look at the plat, and if it 
is on the plat, it will revert back to the property of the plat.  This issue will still 
need to be researched and verified.   
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-042 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Vleck 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the street vacation request, as submitted, for an alley located west of 
Rochester Road between Marengo and DeEtta, approximately 489.50 feet 
abutting Lots 5 through 13 of Troy Little Farms Subdivision, Section 3, be 
approved. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEWS 
 
12. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP-909 C) – Proposed Starbucks Coffee Restaurant, 

Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 29, H-S (Highway Service) 
and B-3 (General Business) District 
 
This item was considered as item 8a. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-17- 

POSTPONED ITEM 
 

13. PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST (CR-001) – 
Proposed Troy Medical Office (formerly Z-719), West side of Livernois, North of 
Big Beaver, Section 21 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise 
Office) 
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster stated that if so desired, the Planning 
Commission can open the Public Hearing and keep it open until a later date. 
 
Brandon Kaufman, 4657 Woodrich, West Bloomfield, the developer and 
petitioner, was present.  He noted his difficulty in attending this evening’s 
meeting and stated he was hoping for site plan approval tonight.  He asked that 
the Public Hearing and discussion take place this evening, while he was present, 
and the Planning Commission action be taken at a later date to be determined by 
the Commission.   
 
Chairperson Schultz asked Mr. Kaufman if he would prefer the item to be 
postponed until the study session February 27th or the Regular Meeting of March 
6th. 
 
Mr. Kaufman stated that he would prefer February 27th. 
 
Principal Planner Savidant summarized the Planning Department report 
regarding Conditional Zoning Request, CR-001.  
 
Commissioner Hutson excused himself from the meeting at 9:30 p.m. 
 
Mr. Kaufman stated that they have taken a significant amount of time to meet 
with the homeowners on several occasions.  We have taken into account the 
screening, building elevations, mechanical system locations, parking lot, as well 
as the layout and design.  We have also worked with the property owner to the 
south.  They recognize this development is adjacent to them and they are trying 
to be receptive to their concerns.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING REMAINS OPEN 
 
Chairperson Schultz asked for clarification on the window on the north elevation.   
 
Mr. Kaufman replied that the floor plan, with no window, would supersede the 
elevation plan. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-18- 

Commissioner Hutson re-entered at 9:33 p.m. 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-043 
Moved by: Kerwin 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1B to O-1 conditional rezoning request, as per Section 
03.24.00 of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, located on the west side of 
Livernois, north of Big Beaver, within Section 21, being approximately 1.26 acres 
in size, be postponed until the Study Session on February 27, 2007, until more 
Planning Commission members will be in attendance. 
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent: Littman, Strat, Troshynski, Wright 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

OTHER 
 
14. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 

 
No one was present to speak. 
 

 
15. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

 
Planning Director Miller thanked the Planning Commissioners that are in 
attendance due to the inclement weather. 
 
Commissioner Kerwin asked if the Parks and Recreation Department would be 
consulted in the Agenda Item pertaining to the replacement of trees. 
 
Chairperson Schultz commented that if there are any prohibited species, they 
would not be allowed to transplant the trees and that will be handled 
administratively. 
 
Commissioner Vleck added that the trees in question are newer and should not 
have prohibited species among them.  He stated that he noticed around the City 
the blue containers seeking clothes donations.  He asked if there are any 
ordinances that regulate this?  In his opinion, they are littering the City and 
perhaps this should be looked at further. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL FEBRUARY 13, 2007 
  

-19- 

Principal Planner Savidant asked the Commission members to retain their 
packets for the items that have been postponed in an effort to conserve on paper 
usage.    
 
Chairperson Schultz thanked everyone for attending.  While it was an unusual 
meeting, what was accomplished was done efficiently.   

 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Chairperson Schultz adjourned the meeting at 9:39 p.m. 
 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
       
Cheryl Printz, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Final\02-13-07 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on February 27, 2007 in the Council Board Room of the Troy 
City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mary Kerwin (arrived at 7:37 p.m.) 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Kathleen Troshynski 
Mark J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Jonathan Shin, Student Representative 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-044 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published.  
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Kerwin (arrived at 7:37 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. MINUTES – February 6, 2007 Special/Study Meeting 

 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-045 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Troshynski 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the February 6, 2007 Special/Study meeting minutes as 
presented.   
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Kerwin (arrived at 7:37 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01o



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENT (Items Not on the Agenda) 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

5. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Wright provided a brief BZA report. 
 
 

6. DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (DDA) REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief DDA report. 
 
 

7. PLANNING AND ZONING REPORT 
 
Mr. Miller provided a brief planning and zoning report. 
 
 

8. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 929) – Land Banking of Parking Spaces at Suma 
Medical Office Building, North side of Big Beaver, West of John R, Section 23 – 
Zoned O-1 (Low Rise Office), P-1 (Vehicular Parking), E-P (Environmental 
Protection) and R-1E (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the Planning Department report.  The applicant proposed 
to revise their site plan, which received Final Site Plan Approval on February 20, 
2007.  They proposed to landbank 46 of 183 required spaces, or 25% of the 
required number of spaces. 
 
Lisa High of CDPA Architects, Inc., 26600 Telegraph, Southfield, MI, the applicant, 
explained there is no need for the parking spaces at this time.  She stated the 
owner intends to plant turf in the landbanked area. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-046 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Kerwin 
 
WHEREAS, Section 40.20.13 provides the Planning Commission with the authority to 
approve up to 25% of the total required parking spaces for a proposed use; and 
 
WHEREAS, The applicant proposes landbanking 46 spaces, or 25% of the 183 
parking spaces required for the proposed Medical Office Building. 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the revised site 
plan for the proposed Medical Office Building, located on the north side of Big Beaver, 
west of John R, located in Section 23, on approximately 4.61 acres, within the O-1, 
P-1, E-P and R-1E zoning districts, is hereby granted. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

FURTHER RESOLVED, In the event there is a demonstrated need for additional 
parking on the site, the owner shall install such landbanked parking, up to the 
minimum required by Section 40.21.01, at the request of the City of Troy.  
 
Yes: All (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

9. FINAL REPORT FROM HISTORIC HOMES STUDY COMMITTEE – Request to 
Remove 2955 Quail Run Drive from the List of Historic Resources 
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the report.  City Management recommended that the 
Planning Commission support the resolution of the Historic District Study 
Committee and recommend that 2955 Quail Run Drive be de-listed. 
 
Carl Freeman, 2955 Quail Run Drive, owner of the subject property, asked the 
Planning Commission to support the application. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-047 
Moved by:  Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, To recommend that 2955 Quail Run Drive be de-listed. 
 
Yes: All (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 

POSTPONED ITEMS 
 

10. PUBLIC HEARING – CONDITIONAL REZONING REQUEST (CR-001) – Proposed 
Troy Medical Office (formerly Z-719), West side of Livernois, North of Big Beaver, 
Section 21 – From R-1B (One Family Residential) to O-1 (Low Rise Office) 
 
Mr. Hutson stated he has a financial interest in the subject property and recused 
himself from the meeting.  
 
Mr. Savidant summarized the report. 
 
Brandon Kaufman, 4657 Wendrick Drive, West Bloomfield, MI 48323, the applicant, 
described the project.   
 
Mr. Strat expressed his opposition to the rectangular, unimaginative detention pond. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Mr. Kaufman indicated the detention pond would be fenced.  Additionally, he stated 
they were considering putting detention underground and adding 8 additional 
parking spaces that would bring the parking lot closer to Livernois.    
 
Mr. Savidant indicated the written conditional rezoning agreement includes 
provisions for underground detention. 
 
Ms. Kerwin stated the Planning Commission should receive a copy of the written 
agreement. 
 
Chair Schultz stated that the fence is not delineated on the site plan.  He also 
expressed his opposition to parking spaces located so close to Livernois. 
 
Mr. Tagle expressed his opposition to the fenced detention pond. 
 
Ms. Lancaster summarized the Planning Commission options in terms of taking 
action that evening.  They could make a recommendation to City Council that 
includes their various concerns related to proposed improvements that are not 
shown on the submitted plan, or they could postpone until such time that their 
concerns have been addressed by the applicant and shown on a revised plan. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-048 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones the item to the 
March 2007 Regular meeting. 
 
Yes: All (8) 
No: None 
Abstain: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Chair Schultz called for a break at 8:35 p.m. 
 
Chair Schultz reconvened the meeting at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 

11. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 909-C) – Proposed Starbucks Coffee Restaurant, 
Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, Section 20, H-S (Highway Service) and 
B-3 (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Hutson stated he has a financial interest in the subject property and recused 
himself from the meeting.  
 
Mr. Miller summarized the item. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

Mr. Wright stated that in his opinion the exit drive on Crooks Road was not a 
significant safety issue, as there were many similar situations already in Troy. 
 
Mr. Strat stated that the exit drive was a safety issue. 
 
Ms. Kerwin stated that an overlay zone would assist in the future development of 
the Big Beaver Corridor.  She asked about the status of this item. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that City Management is moving forward with the Planning 
Consultant in the development of overlay district language.  Furthermore, the key 
concepts should be incorporated into the ongoing Master Plan, which is the primary 
tool to implement these concepts. 
 
There was discussion related to the lack of a drive-through window and the location 
of the building on the property. 
 
Michele Sargent, JSN Design, 30100 Telegraph, Suite 350, Bingham Farms, 48323, 
representing the project architects, summarized the project. 
 
Ms. Sargent stated the location of the building in its proposed location is safer than 
if it were to be located closer to the intersection.  She stated the right-turn only 
turning lane on Crooks is safer than the initial proposed drive, which allowed left 
turns. 
 
Joe Rogowski, 33493 W. 14 Mile Road, Suite 100, Farmington Hills, attorney for the 
applicant, further summarized the project.  He stated there was no evidence that the 
right-turn only exit drive on Crooks would cause accidents, nor were there any 
standards that called for the elimination of the exit drive. 
 
Mr. Strat asked if the architects had ever considered a site layout featuring the 
building at the intersection. 
 
Ms. Sargent replied there was but it was never presented to the Planning 
Department because it did not meet Starbucks’ needs and also for reasons stated 
earlier in her presentation, including maintaining the fabric of the area. 
 
Mr. Tagle asked if it was Starbucks’ intent that drivers exiting the site onto Crooks 
and intending to go southbound would be required to cross at least one lane of 
traffic, or would turn right onto westbound Big Beaver, turn around on eastbound 
Big Beaver and then turn right onto Crooks. 
 
Mr. Rogowski replied it was Starbucks’ intent to maintain the traffic pattern that 
already exists.   
 
Chair Schultz stated that people going northbound on Crooks would attempt to turn 
left into the exit drive.  He saw it happen when the gas station was in operation. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

Mr. Wright stated the elimination of the exit drive would create a greater safety issue 
by forcing people to exit on Big Beaver, cut across three lanes of traffic to the 
eastbound turn lane, then cut across three lanes of traffic to the southbound turn 
lane. 
 
Mr. Littman stated that he has concerns with the Crooks exit drive but he would 
support the plan because the site needs to be developed and Starbucks needs the 
exit drive. 
 
Mr. Strat stressed the importance of moving forward with overlay zoning for the Big 
Beaver Corridor.  He stated the building should have been located closer to the 
intersection, there should be more landscaping and trees, and the site was over 
parked. 
 
Chair Schultz stated he would have preferred a screening hedge along the edge of 
the parking area. 
 
There was further discussion on the item. 
 
Resolution # PC-2007-02-049 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Littman 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends that the proposed 
Amendment to Consent Judgment, as requested for the proposed Starbucks 
Restaurant, located on the northwest corner of Big Beaver and Crooks, located in 
Section 20, on approximately 0.53 acres, within the B-3 and H-S zoning districts, be 
granted. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Littman, Schultz, Troshynski, Wright 
No: Strat, Tagle, Vleck 
Abstain: Hutson 
 
MOTION CARRIED  
 
Mr. Vleck stated that he voted “No” because the southbound exit drive on Crooks is 
dangerous and should be eliminated.  Furthermore, there was no coordination with 
the recently adopted Key Concepts of the Big Beaver Corridor Study.  Finally, he 
was frustrated that the applicant did not address the exit drive as a significant safety 
issue, then stressed that the location of the building closer to the intersection would 
be a safety issue. 
 
Mr. Strat concurred with Mr. Vleck’s reasons.  Additionally, he stated pedestrian 
circulation on the site would be safer if the building were placed closer to the 
intersection. 
 
Mr. Tagle concurred with both Messrs. Vleck and Strat. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

OTHER ITEMS 
 

12. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 228) – Article 21.00.00  
Outdoor Seasonal Displays in the B-2 (Community Business) District 
 
Mr. Miller summarized the report.   
 
Assistant City Attorney Lancaster explained her concerns regarding enforcement of 
the proposed Zoning Ordinance text amendment.  Permitting outdoor displays 
through zoning creates problems such as grandfathering of non-conforming uses 
and difficulties in enforcement.  She recommended that outdoor displays be 
permitted by license, similar to a sidewalk sale license.  A license would be easier to 
enforce and easier to revoke than if it were to be permitted under the Zoning 
Ordinance. 
 
There was general discussion on this item.  It was agreed to move forward with this 
item as a license to be granted by the City Clerk or City Council.  
 
Ms. Lancaster stated she would craft a draft license application and ordinance for 
presentation to the Planning Commission. 
 
 

13. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 229) – Article 28.00.00  Rental 
Car Agencies in the M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented this item. 
 
General discussion followed. 
 
The Planning Commission voted 6 to 3 in support of permitting car rental agencies 
by conditional use in the M-1 Light Industrial District, as per the proposed text 
amendment.  
 
Mr. Miller announced that there would be a public hearing on this item at the March 
13, 2007 Regular meeting. 
 
 

14. PLANNING COMMISSION PRIORITIES 
 
There was general consensus that the Planning Discussion will discuss their 
priorities at a future meeting.  
 
 

15. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
Dale R. Zygnowicz, 6370 Elmoor, thanked the Planning Commission for their time. 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT FEBRUARY 27, 2007 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

16. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
There was general discussion. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
       
Robert Schultz, Chair 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2007 PC Minutes\Draft\02-27-07 Special Study Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   February 28, 2007  
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC)  was held on February 28, 2007 at 7:00 PM at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver.  Andrew Corey and Nicole Vitale called the meeting to 
order at 7:03 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski  

Andrew Corey (Co-chair) 
Maxine D’Amico 
Alex Gabriel 
Rishi Joshi  
Jessica Kraft  
Joseph Niemiec 
Anupama Prasad 
Kristin Randall (Secretary) 
Neil Shaw 
Katie Thoenes  
Nicole Vitale (Co-chair) 
Karen Wullaert  

MEMBERS ABSENT: None 
VISITORS: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
STAFF PRESENT:  Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 

 Resolution # TY-2007-2-2 
  Moved by   Thoenes 
  Seconded by  Bozimowski 

   
  RESOLVED, That the minutes of January 24, 2007 be approved. 

  Yes:  All – 13 
            No:       0  
  Absent:  0    
 
3.   Attendance Report:  

Updated through January 2007.  Reviewed by council members, no 
comments.   

 
4.   Visitor:   Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Presented information on the following: 

-Make up of legal department – 5 attorneys and 4 paralegals. 
-Provide effective and efficient legal services to City Council, 
management and boards/committees. 
-Reports directly to City Council. 
-Summarized defense and plaintiff areas covered by department. 
-6,531 cases in 2006. 
-114 Civil Court appearances in 2006. 
-Sunshine Act – Freedom of Information Act (FOIA). 
-Open meetings policy. 
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01p



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   February 28, 2007  
 

 2

 
5. Troy Daze Festival Update:      

-Discussed upcoming meeting and which Youth Council member will attend.   
-Discussed letter and requested that item be added to March agenda. 

 
6.  Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provid ed Advance Notification  
  No motion – no excused members 
  Resolution # TY- 

  Moved by   
  Seconded by    

  
 RESOLVED that  

  Yes:   
            No:         
  Absent:    
 
7.  Youth Council Comments –  

-None. 
 
8. Public Comments  –  

-None. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:17 P.M.   
 
_______________________________________ 
Andrew Corey, Co-chair 
 
_______________________________________ 
Scott Mercer, Recreation Supervisor 

 
Reminder Next Meeting: March 28 at 7:00 P.M.  



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        March 1, 2007 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
March 1, 2007 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair Bud Black called the meeting to order at  
1:00 PM. 
 
Present: Bud Black, Member Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Pauline Noce, Member James Berar, Member   
 JoAnn Thompson, Member   David Ogg, Member  
 Merrill Dixon, Member Frank Shier, Member 
 Betty Coven, Member Carla Vaughan, Staff   
 
Absent: None    
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Ron Hynd, Tim Burns 
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2007-3-001 
Moved by Jo Rhoads  
Seconded by Pauline Noce  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Feb. 1, 2006 be approved as submitted. 
 
Yes:  9       
No:  0       
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed awards, accomplishments, and upcoming events within the Troy 
School District  
 
Old Business 
  
Shuffleboard and Bocce Ball:  Carla reported that the “learn to play” sessions and league 
information is in the March newsletter and people may register now.  A total of 20 people have 
expressed an interest, and a direct mailing about upcoming programs has been sent to them.  
The equipment will be stored at the front desk.  A ribbon cutting ceremony will be planned for 
April or May, but the courts will open as soon as weather permits. 
 
Catering Service at the Community Center:  Carla reported that City Council approved the 
bid from A & S Catering to become the 'preferred' caterer at the Troy Community Center.  Four 
other companies submitted bids but they did not accept the revenue sharing percentage that 
was proposed by A & S Catering.  The city attorney is finalizing the terms of the contract.    
 
The new food policy for the Troy Community Center is outlined in the attached document.  
Non-profit groups that meet residency will be allowed to bring in their own food and will not be 

campbellld
Text Box
J-01q



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        March 1, 2007 

2 

charged the service fee. In addition, they will only be charged the $30 cleaning fee if they do 
not clean up the food or beverages they serve at their events.  The kitchen is not available for 
use by any groups. 
 
Lunch Visits:  JoAnn Thompson reported that they visited the Clawson Center again and 
proposed that a committee be set up to promote a warm and welcoming atmosphere in the 
Troy dining room.  Carla will announce this in the April newsletter and schedule a meeting for 
interested persons on April 3 at 10 a.m.  
 
AEDs:  Carla checked with building supervisor Kraig Schmottlach and he indicated that way 
the AEDs are identified with signs and arrows pointing to their location is within code and there 
are no plans to mount them on the wall at the present time. All staff who are trained to use 
them know how they work and where they are located.  There are 10-15 people in the building 
at all times that are trained on how to use them.  There was a suggestion in the box that an 
AED be placed on the second floor.  There are three in the building with no plans to add one 
on the second floor.  JoAnn suggested that the committee make a recommendation to City 
Council about the placements of the AEDs and she will write something up for the next 
meeting. 
 
New Business 
 
Garden:  Landscape annalist Ron Hynd gave a presentation about the garden that will be 
planted this year outside the windows of the senior lunchroom.  The Committee approved of 
the plans. 
 
Tim Burns:  Oakland County Commissioner Tim Burns introduced himself and talked about 
issues of interest to senior citizens. 
 
Newsletter Survey:  Carla asked the committee to review a survey she plans to send out 
about the senior newsletter. 
 
Reports 
 
Park Board:  Merrill Dixon reported that they held a special meeting to make a 
recommendation to City Council about selling a parcel of land.  
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they discussed how to better promote Medi-Go. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that in the first month, there were 28 requests for service 
from the SHARP home repair program.  More volunteers are needed and the next meeting is 
March 8 at 7 p.m. at the Community Center.  The County Spelling Duel was held in Troy on 
February 28.  There were 16 contestants from 6 cities.  JoAnn Thompson took third place.  A 
drop-in badminton program starts tomorrow and a new walking club is forming. 
 
OLHSA:  Jo Rhoads reported that the Angel Home Care Company gave a presentation on 
their service. 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report.  
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                        March 1, 2007 

3 

Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that there was one comment about the food being bad and 
the people being cliquish.  There was also a suggestion that we offer theme lunches and that a 
volunteer committee be formed to pursue this.  These suggestions were discussed under old 
business – lunch visits.  There was also a suggestion about the AEDs that was discussed 
under old business – AEDs.   
 
Comments 
 
James Berar discussed his attendance at the City Council meeting. 
 
Merrill Dixon asked that Advisory Committee brochures be available at the Expo. 
 
Frank Shier, in response to Carla’s newsletter survey, stated that more info would increase 
readership. 
 
Jo Rhoads stated that the type should be larger. 
 
JoAnn reported that she won’t be at the next Supper Club meeting, but Pauline will be there. 
 
Pauline Noce stated that the meeting was too long. 
 
Betty Coven introduced herself to the committee.    
 
The meeting was adjourned at 3:25 p.m.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Bud Black, Chair               
 
 
 
Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft March 6, 2007 
 

-1- 

A Meeting of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) was held Wednesday, March 6, 2007, at 
Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Road in the Lower Level Conference Room. Chairman 
McGinnis called the meeting to order at 7:33 AM. 
 
ROLL CALL 
   PRESENT:  Chairman Donald E. McGinnis, Jr.   

Commissioner David Cannon    
 Commissioner Patrick Daugherty (Absent-Excused) 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Phillip Nelson, City Manager, Lori Grigg-Bluhm - City 

Attorney, Peggy Sears - Human Resources Director, 
Charles Craft – Police Chief, Lieutenant Michael 
Lyczkowski, Representing TCOA, Officer Michael Geise, 
TPOA President, and Barbara A. Pallotta – Deputy City 
Clerk; and 

 
 John Higgins and Steve Standfest, EMPCO, Inc. 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  
 
Approval of Minutes of Monday, March 8, 2006 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-001 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the Minutes of 
the meeting of Wednesday, March 8, 2006 as presented. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty  
 
PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS:  
 
Peggy Sears advised that there are no content changes in the approval of qualifications, 
posting and test battery for Police Captain at this time. 
 
Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Captain  
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-002 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Captain as 
PRESENTED. 

pallottaba
Text Box
J-01r



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft March 6, 2007 
 

-2- 

Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Lieutenant  
 
Peggy Sears advised that there are no content changes in the approval of qualifications, 
posting and test battery for Police Lieutenant at this time. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-003 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Lieutenant as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
Approval of Qualifications, Posting and Test Battery for Police Sergeant 
 
Peggy Sears advised that there are no content changes in the approval of qualifications and  
posting, and requested that John Higgins of EMPCO, Inc. outline the proposed changes for the 
test battery for Police Sergeant. 
 
Mr. Higgins explained that the changes being recommended for Police Sergeant  are in the 
review and challenge phase of the written test, in an attempt to make the written test as 
transparent as possible. He continued by stating that the test results will be forwarded to the 
department after the written exam has been scored. The applicants will meet together and be 
given a copy of the exam, a copy of the correct answers and a print-out of their own answers. 
candidates will be allowed one hour to review their test with the text book; no note taking will be 
permitted. Mr. Higgins believes these revisions will provide total transparency and will increase 
credibility to the process. He added that this will also provide the candidate with the opportunity 
for immediate review. 
 
Chair McGinnis believes this new process will help to reduce challenges. 
 
Mr. Higgins agreed and added that challenges will be accepted on the spot. The candidate will 
be given a form and once completed, will be forwarded to subject matter experts for review and 
decision. The challenge will either be accepted or denied; if accepted, EMPCO will rescore all 
tests and will score that item as though everyone answered correctly. 
 
Lieutenant Lyczkowski asked if the new process is to merely facilitate challenges? 
 
Mr. Higgins replied yes and added that in almost all cases there is no challenge. 



Civil Service Commission (Act 78) – Minutes - Draft March 6, 2007 
 

-3- 

City Attorney Bluhm asked if challenges could only be made during the hour review? 
 
Mr. Higgins confirmed that challenges could only be made during the hour review. 
 
Ms. Sears interjected that an orientation meeting explaining the entire process is held for the 
candidates prior to testing. 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-004 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis  
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby APPROVES the job 
qualifications, the posting, and the test battery for the recruitment of Police Sergeant as 
PRESENTED. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
  
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Election of Chairperson 
 
Resolution #CSC-2007-03-005 
Moved by Cannon 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) hereby ELECTS Donald E. 
McGinnis, Jr. as Chairperson of the Civil Service Commission (Act 78) for a period of one 
year. 
 
Yes: All-2  
No: None 
Absent: Daugherty 
 
OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 
Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 7:40 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
Donald E. McGinnis, Jr., Chairman  Barbara A. Pallotta, Deputy City Clerk 
 



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

March 1, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Charles T. Craft, Chief of Police 
    Wendell Moore, Research & Technology Administrator 
 
SUBJECT:   2006 Calls for Police Service Report 
 
Background: 
 
 Each quarter the police department publishes a year-to-date report comparing current year calls 

for service with calls for police service from the previous year. In addition, at years end the 
department provides a 10-year history of criminal occurrences.    

 The report’s format complies with the National Incident Based Reporting System.  All offenses 
within an incident are reported.   

 Group A Crime increased 5.8% (204 incidents) from the 2005 level.  Within the group, the 
following categories show notable variations from 2005 levels: 
 Breaking and Entering: Up 13.4% (39 incidents) 
 Destruction/Damage to Property/Vandalism: Up 20.1% (73 incidents) 
 Drug/Narcotics Offenses: Up 24.5% (39 incidents) 
 Fraud Offenses: Up 60.9% (67 incidents) 
 Motor Vehicle Theft: Up 12.6% (16 incidents) 
 Robbery: Up 36.8% (7 incidents) 

• Group B Crime decreased 16.7% (354 incidents).  Significant variations from the 2005 levels 
occurred in the following:  
 Drunkenness: Decreased by 78.3% (18 incidents) 
 Drunk Driving: Decreased 17.9% (80 incidents) 
 Liquor Law Violations:  Increased 20.3% (15 incidents) 
 Bad Checks:  Increased 500.0% (25 incidents) 

 Total incidents of crime (Group A & B combined) decreased by 2.7% (150 incidents).   
 Clearance rates (the percentage of offenses for which a perpetrator has been prosecuted, or 

positively identified but not prosecuted) continue to be high, 33.1% for Group A Crime, and 64.1% 
for Group B Crime.  In total 43.6% of all reported crime has been cleared.   

 Arrests have increased 14.8% (185 arrests) for Group A crime, and decreased 5.8% (75 arrests) 
for Group B crime.  Overall, arrests increased by 4.3% (110 arrests).   

 Group C (non-criminal) calls for police service decreased by 2.8% (951 incidents).   
 Year to date reported traffic crashes and traffic citations issued totals are as follows: 
 Property Damage crashes decreased 12.5% (353 crashes). 
 Injury crashes are down 19.1% (125 crashes). 
 Fatal crashes remained the same: 6 crashes in both 2005 and 2006. 
 Reported crashes occurring on Private Property decreased 9.7% (110 crashes) 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02a



 2

 Total traffic crashes are down 12.7% (588 crashes) 
 Hazardous traffic citations issued are down 25.0% (2961 citations). 
 Non-hazardous traffic citations issued are down 58.8% (889 citations) 
 License/title/registration citations decreased 23.3% (899 citations).     
 Parking citations decreased 35.5% (425 citations). 

 Overall, crimes and non-criminal calls for police are down 2.8% (1138 crimes/calls for service). 
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 None 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 None 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
• City of Troy Goal #1- Enhance the livability and safety of the community. 
• While in some categories the percentage increases are large, the corresponding numerical 

increases are not; particularly when spread over a twelve-month period.  However, they are of 
concern to the police department in that we have enjoyed a decreasing overall crime rate in recent 
years.   

• When viewed in context of the ten-year history, 2006 had the fourth lowest number of Part-I 
(which corresponds closely with Group A) crime occurrences during that period.  However, it is the 
third consecutive year we have seen an increase in Part-I crime.  The increase in reported 
burglaries accounts for the majority of the overall Part-I crime increase.   

• Traffic enforcement showed significant decreases from 2005 levels.  Several factors are believed 
to have contributed to this decrease: 
 Traffic crashes decreased. 
 The Traffic Safety Unit (which issues the majority of traffic citations) was short personnel 

during the year. 
 Officers are being focusing enforcement activity on problem locations (high crash areas, citizen 

complaints), and targeting specific driving behaviors.  This strategy does not result in 
increased citation issuance; however, those issued are directed at problem resolution.    

 
 
 
 



Troy Police Department
Annual 2006/2005 Comparison - Incident Based Reporting

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES
Percent Percent Percent

Group A Crime Categories 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 Percent
Arson 5 3 66.7% 6 5 20.0% 0 2         - 1 16.7%
Assault Offenses 643 625 2.9% 650 628 3.5% 215 199 8.0% 227 34.9%
Bribery 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Breaking and Entering 313 276 13.4% 317 278 14.0% 35 16 118.8% 23 7.3%
Counterfeiting/Forgery 71 107 -33.6% 72 111 -35.1% 14 21 10.9% 15 20.8%
Destruction/Damage/Vandalism 437 364 20.1% 473 398 18.8% 11 17 -35.3% 33 7.0%
Drug/Narcotic Offenses 198 159 24.5% 325 281 15.7% 244 186 31.2% 314 96.6%
Embezzlement 85 79 7.6% 85 80 6.3% 50 50        NC 38 44.7%
Extortion/Blackmail 0 1         - 0 1         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Fraud Offenses 177 110 60.9% 201 123 63.4% 58 39 48.7% 47 23.4%
Gambling Offenses 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Homicide Offenses 2 1 100.0% 2 1 100.0% 1 1        NC 2 100.0%
Kidnapping/Abduction 3 0         + 3 0         + 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Larceny/Theft Offenses 1,535 1,572 -2.4% 1,567 1,595 -1.8% 743 670 10.9% 545 34.8%
Motor Vehicle Theft 143 127 12.6% 155 136 14.0% 20 8 150.0% 15 9.7%
Pornography/Obscene Material 2 1 100.0% 2 1 100.0% 1 2 -50.0% 1 50.0%
Prostitution Offenses 3 1 200.0% 5 1 400.0% 4 1 300.0% 5 100.0%
Robbery 26 19 36.8% 27 19 42.1% 8 10 -20.0% 7 25.9%
Sex Offenses, Forcible 25 25        NC 26 25 4.0% 7 11 -36.4% 5 19.2%
Sex Offenses, Nonforcible 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Stolen Property Offenses 14 7 100.0% 21 14 50.0% 14 9 55.6% 15 71.4%
Weapon Law Violations 11 12 -8.3% 21 24 -12.5% 13 11 18.2% 19 90.5%

Group A Total 3,693 3,489 5.8% 3,958 3,721 6.4% 1,438 1,253 14.8% 1,312 33.1%

Group B Crime Categories
Bad Checks 30 5 500.0% 30 5 500.0% 10 2 400.0% 10 33.3%
Curfew/Loitering/Vagrancy 0 0        NC 0 1         - 0 0        NC 0 0.0%
Disorderly Conduct 250 243 2.9% 274 253 8.3% 12 13 -7.7% 36 13.1%
Driving Under the Influence 366 446 -17.9% 450 463 -2.8% 396 453 -12.6% 442 98.2%
Drunkenness 5 23 -78.3% 5 25 -80.0% 0 1         - 0 0.0%
Family Offenses, Nonviolent 17 14 21.4% 19 15 26.7% 0 0        NC 2 10.5%
Liquor Law Violations 89 74 20.3% 143 130 10.0% 200 179 11.7% 137 95.8%
Peeping Tom 7 2 250.0% 7 2 250.0% 2 1 100.0% 2 28.6%
Runaway (Under 18) 14 28 -50.0% 14 28 -50.0% 0 0        NC 7 50.0%
Trespass of Real Property 21 22 -4.5% 23 28 -17.9% 5 7 -28.6% 8 34.8%
All Other 964 1,260 -23.5% 1,046 1,364 -23.3% 586 630 -7.0% 646 61.8%

Group B Total 1,763 2,117 -16.7% 2,011 2,314 -13.1% 1,211 1,286 -5.8% 1,290 64.1%

Group A and B Total 5,456 5,606 -2.7% 5,969 6,035 -1.1% 2,649 2,539 4.3% 2,602 43.6%
Above data includes both completed and attempted offenses.

AnnualAnnual Annual Annual



Troy Police Department
Annual 2006/2005 Comparison - Incident Based Reporting

INCIDENTS OFFENSES ARRESTS CLEARANCES
Percent Percent Percent

Description 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 2005 Change 2006 Percent
Alarms 3,850 4,328 -11.0% 3,850 4,328 -11.0% NA NA NA NA NA
All Other 29,663 30,136 -1.6% 30,129 30,551 -1.4% 901 771 16.9% NA NA

Group C Miscellaneous Total 33,513 34,464 -2.8% 33,979 34,879 -2.6% 901 771 16.9% NA NA

Group E Fire Total 27 64 -57.8% 27 64 -57.8% NA NA NA NA NA

Grand Totals 38,996 40,134 -2.8% 39,975 40,978 -2.4% 3,550 3,310 7.3% 2,602 43.6%

Traffic Crashes and Citations

Reportable Traffic Crashes 2006 Alcohol Involved Crashes
Personal Injury 531 656 -19.1% 21 Incidents--4.0% involved alcohol.

Property Damage 2,471 2,824 -12.5% 39 Incidents--1.6% involved alcohol.
Fatal 6 6        NC 1 Incidents--16.7% involved alcohol.

Total Reportable 3,008 3,486 -13.7% 61 Incidents--2.0% of all reportable crashes involved alcohol.

Private Property Crashes 1,020 1,130 -9.7%

Crashes Grand Total 4,028 4,616 -12.7%

Traffic Citations
Hazardous 8,903 11,864 -25.0%

Non-hazardous 622 1,511 -58.8%
License, Title, Registration 2,965 3,864 -23.3%

Parking 772 1,197 -35.5%
Traffic Citations Total 13,262 18,436 -28.1%

Annual Annual Annual Annual



Part I Crimes 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
Criminal Homicide 2 1 0 1 2 0 2 0 1 4
Forcible Rape 10 7 9 12 12 7 12 7 11 6
Robbery 26 19 20 27 21 18 19 15 21 23
Aggravated Assault 50 39 32 49 45 45 49 50 65 64
Burglary 313 276 239 292 344 314 348 264 385 427
Larceny 1,537 1,572 1,564 1,563 1,507 1,712 1,819 1,915 2,347 2,659
Motor Vehicle Theft 145 127 112 158 120 201 132 157 164 205
Arson 5 3 3 5 10 19 6 3 4 7

Total Part I 2,088 2,044 1,979 2,107 2,061 2,316 2,387 2,411 2,998 3,395

Part II Offenses
Negligent Homicide 0 5 2 1 2 2 0 3 1 1
Non-Aggravated Assault 294 312 299 273 309 286 318 319 330 379
Forgery/Counterfeiting 71 115 113 109 99 69 51 58 41 41
Fraud 177 108 163 184 207 256 279 317 299 285
Embezzlement 85 80 91 82 100 115 113 105 113 84
Stolen Property 14 7 14 11 8 6 20 22 16 21
Vandalism 437 364 443 558 482 505 638 521 770 735
Weapons 11 12 14 10 12 23 19 22 24 24
Accosting and Soliciting 3 1 10 1 1 1 1 2 0 2
Sex Offenses 42 31 46 37 48 36 39 47 44 50
Narcotics 186 142 134 93 103 128 133 147 143 124
Gambling 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0
Family and Children 17 13 24 10 15 17 24 12 15 7
OUIL/OUIN 366 446 447 322 455 476 470 452 580 399
Liquor Laws 89 74 71 60 70 86 101 69 120 84
Disorderly 28 74 117 119 100 128 133 111 117 93
All Other Offenses 1,546 1,778 1,928 2,141 2,209 2,568 2,612 2,822 2,920 2,593

Total Part II 3,366 3,562 3,916 4,011 4,220 4,702 4,951 5,029 5,534 4,922

Total Part I & II 5,454 5,606 5,895 6,118 6,281 7,018 7,338 7,440 8,532 8,317
Total Part III 33,513 34,464 32,871 32,391 33,348 35,797 37,869 37,787 36,738 34,966
Total Part V Fire 27 64 58 77 69 140 158 144 149 133

Total Incidents 38,994 40,134 38,824 38,586 39,698 42,955 45,365 45,371 45,419 43,416

Traffic Citations
Hazardous 8,384 11,869 11,538 12,356 11,621 13,250 12,240 11,621 11,627 9,800
Non-Hazardous 3,349 5,378 5,072 3,829 5,027 4,161 5,017 5,797 6,091 5,547
Parking 718 1,195 798 886 1,120 1,717 1,479 1,686 2,163 1,513

Total Citations 12,451 18,442 17,408 17,071 17,768 19,128 18,736 19,104 19,881 16,860

Traffic Crashes
Property Damage 2,471 2,824 2,638 2,700 2,474 2,737 3,247 3,049 3,078 3,017
Personal Injury 531 656 716 722 753 882 940 930 1,008 1,060
Fatal 6 6 10 2 7 9 8 8 3 4

Total State Reportable 3,008 3,486 3,364 3,424 3,234 3,628 4,195 3,987 4,089 4,081
Private Property 1,020 1,130 1,133 1,137 1,317 1,345 1,440 1,479 1,491 1,406

Total Crashes 4,028 4,616 4,497 4,561 4,551 4,973 5,635 5,466 5,580 5,487

UCR ACTUAL INCIDENTS BY CRIME CLASS GROUP
TEN YEAR TREND



DATE:        March 1, 2007 

TO:            Phillip M. Nelson, City Manager
FROM:       Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued during the Month of February 2007

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 9 $1,075,347.00 $8,759.00

Sub Total 9 $1,075,347.00 $8,759.00

COMMERCIAL
Completion (New) 1 $1,000,000.00 $7,145.00
Tenant Completion 1 $139,000.00 $1,118.00
Add/Alter 16 $1,783,330.00 $14,815.00
Temp. Office Trailer 1 $4,500.00 $115.00

Sub Total 19 $2,926,830.00 $23,193.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 5 $844,620.00 $6,647.00
Add/Alter 11 $187,351.00 $2,556.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 3 $2,900.00 $145.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 1 $500.00 $35.00
Repair 3 $7,744.00 $225.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $170.00

Sub Total 26 $1,043,115.00 $9,778.00

TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
New 2 $420,000.00 $3,230.00
Add/Alter 1 $13,800.00 $243.00

Sub Total 3 $433,800.00 $3,473.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 3 $2,577,000.00 $15,474.00

Sub Total 3 $2,577,000.00 $15,474.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 40 $0.00 $4,475.00
Fences 1 $0.00 $15.00

Sub Total 41 $0.00 $4,490.00

TOTAL 101 $8,056,092.00 $65,167.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
J-02b



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2007
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 207 $2,070.00
Cert. of Occupancy 37 $2,841.65
Plan Review 63 $4,285.00
Microfilm 31 $559.00
Building Permits 101 $65,167.00
Electrical Permits 116 $10,139.00
Heating Permits 90 $4,845.00
Air Cond. Permits 34 $2,215.00
Plumbing Permits 81 $4,595.00
Storm Sewer Permits 4 $70.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 5 $155.00
Sewer Taps 11 $23,570.00

TOTAL 780 $120,511.65

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2007
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 25 $125.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 31 $465.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 15 $15.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 3 $30.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 6 $90.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 10 $100.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 2 $30.00

TOTAL 19 $855.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2006 2006 2007 2007

JANUARY 116 $7,273,163.00 119 $7,595,008.00

FEBRUARY 94 $6,659,691.00 101 $8,056,092.00

MARCH 127 $5,629,425.00 0 $0.00

APRIL 174 $5,766,996.00 0 $0.00

MAY 216 $11,290,598.00 0 $0.00

JUNE 218 $10,681,352.00 0 $0.00

JULY 198 $11,269,902.00 0 $0.00

AUGUST 150 $14,170,725.00 0 $0.00

SEPTEMBER 161 $12,827,192.00 0 $0.00

OCTOBER 134 $10,733,680.00 0 $0.00

NOVEMBER 111 $6,690,950.00 0 $0.00

DECEMBER 94 $10,508,219.00 0 $0.00

TOTAL 1793 $113,501,893.00 220 $15,651,100.00



2004 2004

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2007

6 5
0

10
20
30
40
50
60

Ja
nu

ar
y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r



Mar 1, 2007 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 2007Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter NEMER PROPERTY GROUP 2855 COOLIDGE 100  171,000
Commercial, Add/Alter INTEGRATED ACOUSTICAL INC 1700 W BIG BEAVER 100  171,000
Commercial, Add/Alter JK CONSTRUCTION INC 3270 W BIG BEAVER 415  118,000
Commercial, Add/Alter OMNI CONSTRUCTION 2800 W BIG BEAVER Y-303  296,000
Commercial, Add/Alter BOULDER CONSTRUCTION 1080 KIRTS 500  145,000
Commercial, Add/Alter SHAWMUT DESIGN & CONSTRUCTION 2800 W BIG BEAVER N-112  500,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  1,401,000

Commercial, Completion New AUCH, GEORGE W. CO 3838 LIVERNOIS  1,000,000

Commercial, Completion NewTotal  1,000,000

Commercial, Tenant Completion PRODIGY CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 1470 W MAPLE  139,000

Commercial, Tenant CompletionTotal  139,000

Industrial, Add/Alter ACME ENTERPRISES, INC 2045 AUSTIN  284,947
Industrial, Add/Alter DIVERSIFIED CONSTRUCTION SPECIALIS 2963 INDUSTRIAL ROW  520,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  804,947

Inst./Hosp., Add/Alter BEAUMONT SERVICES CO 44197 DEQUINDRE  2,500,000

Inst./Hosp., Add/AlterTotal  2,500,000

Total Valuation:  5,844,947Records  12



 

 
 
March 6, 2007 
 
 
To:  Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Troy Daze Advisory Committee Recommended Appointment to Parks and Recreation 

Advisory Board 
 
 
At the February 27, 2007 meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee the following action was 
taken: 
 
RESOLUTION #TD-2007-02-011 
Moved by Sandy Macknis 
Seconded by Jeff Super 
 
RESOLVED, that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee recommends to City Council that Jeff Stewart 
be appointed to serve on the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board as Troy Daze Advisory 
Committee representative. 
 
Yes: Super, Gonda, Macknis, Hattan, Miller, O’Brien 
No: Preston 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-02c



campbellld
Text Box
J-02d



























campbellld
Text Box
J-03a



campbellld
Text Box
J-03b



campbellld
Text Box
J-03c



campbellld
Text Box
J-04a



S M T W T F S
1 2 3

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

March 2007
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

April 2007March 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
March 1

1:00pm Advisory Committee 
for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

2 3

4

5
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

6
7:30am Civil Service 

Commission Act 78 
1:00pm Board of Review
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study Meetin
7:30pm Historic District Study

7
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

6:30pm ADVISORY 
COMMITTEE & 
COFFEE SET UP 
(Conference Room C)

8
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

9 10

11

12
9:00am Board of Review
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

13
1:00pm Board of Review
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

14
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

1:00pm Retiree Health Care 
Benefits Board 
(Conference Room C)

15
7:00pm CANCELLED Parks & 

Recreation Advisory 
Board (Community 
Center - 3179 
Livernois)

16 17

18

19
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

20
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

21
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

22
7:00pm City 

Council-Workshop 
(Council Boardroom)

23 24

25

26 27
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

7:30pm Historical Commission
(Museum Resource R

28
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

29 30 31

campbellld
Text Box
J-05



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

April 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

May 2007April 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun

April 1

2
8:00am Election Commission 

(Council Boardroom)
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

3
7:00pm Ethnic Issues 

Advisory Board 
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Special/Study Meetin
7:30pm Historic District Study

Committee (Museum 

4
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room L

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

5
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

6
City Hall Closed

7

8

9
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

10
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

11
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

12
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

13 14

15

16
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

17
3:00pm BRA Meeting (Council

Boardroom)
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

18
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

19
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 

7:00pm Cable Advisory 
Committee 
(Conference Room C)

20 21

22

23 24
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council Boa

25
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

26 27 28

29

30
3:00pm LDFA Committee 

(Council Boardroom)



S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5

6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

May 2007
S M T W T F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

June 2007May 2007

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Sat/Sun
May 1

7:00pm Ethnic Issues 
Advisory Board 
(Conference Room C)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

7:30pm Historic District Study
Committee (Museum 

2
8:30am Building Code Board 

of Appeals 
(Conference Room 
LL)

7:00pm Persons with 
Disabilities Meeting 
(Conference Room C)

3
1:00pm Advisory Committee 

for Senior Citizens 
(Community Center 
Room 301)

4 5

6

7 8
7:30pm Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

9
12:00pm Employee's 

Retirement System 
Board  (Conference 
Room C)

10
7:30pm Library Advisory 

Board (Library 
Director's Office)

11 12

13

14
7:00pm Liquor Advisory 

Committee Meeting 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm City Council Meeting 
(Council Chambers)

15
7:30pm BZA (Chambers)
7:30pm Historic District 

Commission 
(Conference Room C)

16
7:30am DDA Meeting 

(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

7:30pm Traffic Committee 
(Conference Room 
Lower Level)

17
7:00pm Parks & Recreation 

Advisory Board 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

18 19

20

21
7:30pm City Council Meeting 

(Council Chambers)

22
7:00pm Troy Daze Advisory 

Committee 
(Community Center - 
3179 Livernois)

7:30pm Planning Commission 
Special/Study 
Meeting (Council 
Boardroom)

23
7:00pm Youth Council (Lower

Level Conference 
Room)

24 25 26

27

28
City Hall Closed

29 30 31



campbellld
Text Box
J-06





campbellld
Text Box
J-07































































































































 

 
 
March 12, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director  
 
SUBJECT:   Welcome Home Recognition for Local Servicemen & Women 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 On February 5, 2007 the Troy City Council passed a resolution (#2007-02-041) to recognize the 

service and sacrifice of our citizens who have undergone the hardships of overseas military 
deployment.  The resolution states that we will recognize Troy citizens who serve in the armed 
forces upon their return to Troy with a public proclamation and a yard sign. 

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 The Community Affairs Department will write and frame the proclamations and our Public Works 

Department can print the lawn signs.  Costs will be minimal and can be taken out of the 
Community Affairs Other account (748.7962). 

 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 Proclamations will be presented at future City Council meetings. 
 Another suggestion is to present them with a 90 day pass to our Troy Community Center. 

 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 Per our Sign Ordinance, the lawn signs would have to be no more than 6 sq. ft. (2’ x 3’) and no 

more than 14 sq. ft. per site.  
 
Options: 
 
 Promotion to residents will be via press releases, our website and cable channel.   
 As our residents contact us, we will print the proclamations and signs and schedule the 

servicemen and women at upcoming Council meetings upon their return home to Troy. 
       

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
J-08



 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT 
 

 
March 9, 2007 
 
 
TO:     Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM:   Phillip L. Nelson, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:   Strategic Planning Initiatives - Part 1 
 
 
 
Background: 
 
 On Friday, January 26,2007 I submitted a report on proposed strategic planning initiatives.   

Council has scheduled a special meeting to discuss these initiatives on March 22, 2007. 
 Council Member Martin Howrylak suggested that Council and Administration begin discussing the 

topic of strategic planning initiatives at the next regularly scheduled Council meeting under the K- 
section of the agenda, which is reserved for study items. 

 
Options: 
 
 I have broken down the original PowerPoint presentation to “Part 1”, which covers current 

assumptions and keys to goal achievement as they relate to Council goals I (Enhance the livability 
and safety of the community) and V (Maintain relevance of public infrastructure to meet changing 
public needs), which I chose to combine for the sake of discussion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PLN/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2007\03.19.07 - Strategic Planning Initiatives - Part 1 

campbellld
Text Box
K-01



1

Keys for Implementation 
of City Council Goals 

and the 
Troy Futures Report

Strategic Planning 
Initiatives



2

Zeitgeist: The style or spirit of 
the the times.



3

Current Assumptions

The economic outlook in Michigan will remain 
stagnant for the next 2-3 years

Due to unsettled global political situations the 
price of fuel and other natural resources will 
continue to increase in price

The supply of natural resources, especially 
petroleum-based resources, will continue to 
decrease



4

Current Assumptions

Continued regional growth will impact Troy’s 
infrastructure and possibilities for growth and 
development

The continued focus for development will be “new 
urbanism”, meaning higher land use densities with 
more emphasis on mixed use development



5

Current Assumptions

Demographic changes indicate that homebuyers 
(especially baby boomers and Gen-Xers) favor 
high density condos and townhouses in urban 
settings over large lot single family suburban 
dwellings

Another focus of new building will be “green” 
developments or more environmentally friendly 
buildings and land uses



6

Current Assumptions

Very little money will be available to spend on 
new highways or roadways

Just as big business is doing, government will 
restructure funding expenditures to focus on core 
product delivery

Information technology will continue to be one of 
the basic components of the national economy



7

Current Assumptions

The median age of the population will continue to 
increase

Partnerships with other governmental entities and 
the private sector will be the primary mode of 
achieving goals and objectives for the community

Revenue sharing and pass-through funds from other 
levels of government will continue to decrease



8

Current Assumptions

Troy will continue to fund a greater share of 
arterial street maintenance on roads under the 
jurisdiction of the RCOC

Information sharing with residents and property 
owners and more input from citizens with regard 
to public policy issues will become even more 
important



9

Current Assumptions

Embracing diversity and understanding the 
different cultures in Troy will play an ever-
increasing role in public policy making

The City will have to be cognizant of changing 
development processes and will have to change 
planning philosophies to maintain new 
developments that promote community 
sustainability but also meet the needs of changing 
demographics and other socio-economic factors



10

Current Assumptions

Continued unfunded mandates from other levels of 
government will continue to create mandates to 
reallocate funds or will result in the loss of funds

Tax increases will not be seen as viable ways to 
make up for lost revenues

Development and redevelopment will remain the 
primary source of revenue generation for the future



11

Current Assumptions

Infrastructure capacities are sufficient to 
accommodate a certain amount of infill and 
redevelopment growth.  However, growth of 
surrounding areas and large-scale development 
could strain capacity.  Therefore, planning 
documents should be drafted to consider the next 
generation of development and be flexible enough 
to plan for the second generation of development 
in Troy and surrounding communities.



12

Current Assumptions

While the automobile will remain the primary mode 
of transportation, more emphasis will be placed on 
other forms, including light rail and bus

The markets will continue to drive the demands for 
development which, based on the level and timing 
of new development, could result in potential 
changes to the City’s investment in infrastructure 
and other ancillary needs



13

Keys to Goal Achievement

Enhance the livability and 
safety of the community

Maintain relevance of public 
infrastructure to meet 
changing public needs

and

Sustainability: To keep up or keep going, as an 
action or process.



14

Keys to Goal Achievement

1. Variety of housing stock

2. Sound law and code enforcement

3. Outstanding protection services

4. Good parks and open space, and quality-of-life 
venues and practices

5. Good schools



15

Keys to Goal Achievement

6. Property maintenance and rehabilitation

7. Sound infrastructure and maintenance of 
infrastructure

8. Sound financial structure to pay for infrastructure 
construction and maintenance

9. Excellent communications among neighbors and 
with local government



16

Critical Policy Points

Does the Council want to investigate creation of a 
certified development corporation to act as a 
clearing house for loan pool development, 
contractor and design pool, and development of 
a corporate partner pool?

Should the City consider the design and 
implementation of a stipend program for various 
neighborhoods around the community?

Does the Council want strict interpretation of 
existing laws?



17

Critical Policy Points

Does the Council want to expand community-
oriented policing programs?

Is City Council willing to accommodate requests to 
increase land use densities and to allow multiple-
story commercial buildings in smaller areas?

If so, will Council support additional or reprioritized 
funding for equipment, resources and programs 
intended to assist and accommodate new 
development?



18

Critical Policy Points

Does City Council want to partner with the Troy 
School District and the higher education 
establishments in Troy to develop training and 
educational programs to assist the unemployed or 
underemployed in the community?

If the Council chooses to be a partner, to what 
extent is Council willing to participate, financially, 
in terms of area maintenance and infrastructure 
development, and in other areas such as public 
parking, etc.?



19

Critical Policy Points

Financially, does the Council wish to establish and 
utilize alternative revenue sources to pay the 
public share of development costs, such as:

Common Area Maintenance Agreements

Build-for-Art Fees

Excise Fees (if allowable)?



20

Critical Policy Points

Does City Council want staff to work with the Road 
Commission for Oakland County on a series of 
short-term improvements to the road system?

Does the Council want to move toward a longer-
term solution of taking over maintenance of the 
entire major arterial street network within Troy?



21

Key Board & 
Commission Roles

Parks and Recreation Advisory Board

Ensure viable programs and venues to offer to 
residents for relaxation and reflection.  To assist in 
formation of programs such as build-for-art and other 
criteria that encourages new art or cultural programs



22

Key Board & 
Commission Roles

Planning Commission

Creation of land use planning and development 
programs to correlate with new density or form 
standards.  Review of relevant codes for home 
businesses.  Work with Council and staff on a 
planned unit development standard that conforms 
to principles of what the City wants rather than what 
the City wants to preclude.  Work with staff 
concerning residential bulk regulations for housing 
rehabilitation or remodeling that might have higher 
lot coverage and reduced setbacks.



23

Key Board & 
Commission Roles

Zoning Board of Appeals

Work with Planning Commission to review codes 
concerning home businesses



24

Primary Staff Focus

Design criteria for creation of a certified 
development corporation and foster public-private 
partnerships for housing upgrades or remodeling

Develop proposals to initiate amendments of 
current building codes where and if needed

Establish logistics for park and open space plans 
that provide flexible and relevant uses for the 
community



25

Primary Staff Focus

Creation of programs that assist the unemployed or 
underemployed with adequate time and resources 
to find employment or to start different career 
paths 

Develop a neighborhood liaison system to assist 
neighbors in maintaining properties or other forms 
of assistance



26

Primary Staff Focus

Generate budget programs that allocate resources 
to Council-adopted core products and other 
budget programs and projects based on Council-
adopted level of service classification

Produce communication media to ensure that 
residents are aware of what is happening in Troy

Work with the private sector to provide financial 
management information to residents who might 
need assistance



27

Key Partnerships

Oakland County
State of Michigan
Financial Community
Building and Trades Contractors
Communications Companies
Home Improvement Materials Vendors



28

Primary Staff Focus

Enforce existing codes

Draft zoning text amendments or use consultants 
to draft new form-based zoning codes

Develop policy-related information concerning 
core products



29

Primary Staff Focus

Draft business plan to correlate Council goals with 
available resources

Establish logistics for Council review concerning 
level of service and allocation of resources

Form criteria for filling any employment vacancies 
to meet highest priority needs



30


	AGENDA: March 19, 2007
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:
	Oakland County Fire Prevention Association – Presentation of
	Presentation to Troy Community Coalition – Parenting Awarene


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1 Rezoning Application (File Number: Z-725) – Proposed Off
	C-2 Street Vacation Application (File Number: SV 189) – A Se
	C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (File Number: ZOTA 225) 

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Proposed Resolution to Reduce the Property Tax Millage R

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations
	a\) Parenting Awareness Month – March, 2�
	b\) Community Development Block Grant We�

	E-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions
	a\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 9: Ap�
	b\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Aw�
	c\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Be�
	d\) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: St�

	E-5 Application for New SDM License for Target Corporation
	E-6 Troy Racquet Club Rates

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda
	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Brownfield Redevelopment Authority; and Economic Development Corporation b) City Council Appointments:  Advisory
	F-2 Scheduling Special Meetings
	F-3 Proposed Amendment to Chapter 13 – Historic Preservation
	F-4 Third Addendum to Tennis Lease
	F-5 Hooters v. Troy – Proposed Consent Judgment
	F-6 Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Food Service Agreement with K
	F-7 Request for Annual Personnel Review
	F-8 Library Issues

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	UM/ULI Funding Request


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1 No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1 No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Final – March 8, 2006
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – October 3, 2006
	Historic Commission/Final – October 24, 2006
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – November 7, 2006
	Historic District Commission/Final – November 21, 2006
	Historic District Study Committee/Final – December 5, 2006
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Final – January 16, 2007
	Historic District Commission/Final – January 16, 2007
	Youth Council/Final – January 24, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – February 1, 2
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 6, 2007
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – February 7, 2007
	Planning Commission/Draft – February 13, 2007
	Planning Commission/Final – February 13, 2007
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – February 27, 2007
	Youth Council/Draft – February 28, 2007
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – March 1, 2007
	Civil Service Commission (Act 78)/Draft – March 6, 2007

	J-2 Department Reports:
	Police Department – 2006 Calls for Police Service Report
	Building Department – Permits Issued During the Month of Feb
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee – Recommended Appointment to Pa
	City of Troy Monthly Financial Report – February 28, 2007

	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Craft from Edward Crippen Commending Officer
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Craft from Robert Corso, Drug Enfo
	Letter of Thanks to Troy City Council from Bradley Miller, R

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	State of Michigan Senate Resolution No. 13 – A Resolution Co

	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Communication from the State of Michigan Public Service
	J-7  Report from SEMCOG – American Community Survey Profile 
	J-8  Communication from Community Affairs Director Cindy Ste

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1 Strategic Planning Initiatives – Part 1

	PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items
	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session:  No Closed Session Requested

	ADJOURNMENT



